Utah State University DigitalCommons@USU

Elusive Documents

U.S. Government Documents (Utah Regional Depository)

8-1961

Silt Project, Colorado: Colorado River Storage Project

U.S. Department of Agriculture

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.usu.edu/elusive_docs

Part of the Natural Resources Management and Policy Commons, and the Water Resource Management Commons

Recommended Citation

U.S. Department of Agriculture, "Silt Project, Colorado: Colorado River Storage Project" (1961). *Elusive Documents.* Paper 29. https://digitalcommons.usu.edu/elusive_docs/29

This Report is brought to you for free and open access by the U.S. Government Documents (Utah Regional Depository) at DigitalCommons@USU. It has been accepted for inclusion in Elusive Documents by an authorized administrator of DigitalCommons@USU. For more information, please contact digitalcommons@usu.edu.



IVAN F. WYMORE # 5146146 SILT PROJECT, COLORADO COLORADO RIVER STORAGE PROJECT

COLORADO STATE UNIVERSITY LIBRARIES

A Report of reappraisal of direct agricultural bene fits and project impacts

> LIBRARIES COLORADO STATE UNIVERSITY FORT COLLINS, COLORADO 80022



U. S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE Salt Lake City, Utah

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

REPORT OF

REAPPRAISAL OF DIRECT AGRICULTURAL BENEFITS

AND PROJECT IMPACTS

SILT PROJECT

COLORADO

COLORADO RIVER STORAGE PROJECT

In Cooperation With Bureau of Reclamation United States Department of the Interior

Report Prepared by

USDA Field Advisory Committee and USDA Field Party Salt Lake City, Utah - August 1961

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

In preparing this report, full use was made of available field data, published reports, and the combined judgement of agricultural technicians familiar with the project area, its agricultural problems and conditions. The U. S. Bureau of Reclamation furnished the USDA Field Party with preliminary reports, land classification maps and field sheets, information regarding water supply and acreage and location of lands to be included in the project. This information was used to augment field investigations such as soil surveys, economic surveys, engineering surveys, crop yield determinations, and irrigation water investigations made by members of the USDA Field Party. Soil Conservation Service and Economic Research Service.

The U. S. Forest Service, U. S. Bureau of Land Management, and others assisted in the watershed studies. The Forest Service also prepared Chapter III regarding the relationship of the project to national forest lands. Assistance from representatives of the Colorado State University, Colorado Cooperative Extension Service, Colorado Agricultural Experiment Station, State and County Agricultural Stabilization and Conservation Committees, U. S. Farmers Home Administration, Agricultural Research Service, and others was valuable in preparing the report.

The contributions and assistance of these organizations in the preparation of this report are gratefully acknowledged.

CONTENTS

SUM	1ARY	i
I.	GENERAL INFORMATION	1 1 1 2 2 2 3 3 3 3
II.	EVALUATION OF DIRECT AGRICULTURAL BENEFITS FROM THE SILT PROJECT Evaluation Areas - General Description	55880
	Findings	9 13 14 14 14 17 20
	Land and Irrigation Development	22 22 23 23 23 23
	Projected Agricultural Economy	26 26 27 27 27 30
	Direct Agricultural Benefits	31 31 35 36 38
	Livestock Enterprises and Production Rates	38 38 39 39 40 45

1

III.	RELATIONSHIP OF THE SILT PARTICIPATING PROJECT TO THE MA PROTECTION AND USE OF THE WHITE RIVER NATIONAL FOREST AN	ANA ND 1	GEME NON ·	ENT,
	FEDERAL FOREST RESOURCES			. 46
	Introduction			1,6
	Area Concerned	, ,	0 0	1.6
	Proport Status and Custon Hao	0	0 0	1.6
	Present Status and current use	0 0	0 0	, 40
	Existing Facilities	• •	• •	, 40
	Current Management	0 0	0 0	, 46
	Current Use	0 0		. 46
	Estimated Future Status Without Project Developments .			. 47
	Impacts of Project Construction and Operation on the Nat	tio	na1	
	Forest			1.7
	General Administration	, ,	• •	1.7
		• •	• •	, 41
	Protection	• •	• •	, 40
	Resource Use and Development	• •		. 48
	Losses or Benefits to Resource Values			, 48
	Impacts on Nonfederal Forest and Forest-Range Lands	• •	0 0	. 48
	Summary and Findings			. 48
TV	RELATIONSHIP OF WATERSHED CONDITIONS TO THE STIT PROJECT	г.		1.9
T	Location and Size	• •	• •	1.0
		0 0	• •	· 49
	watersned characteristics	0 0	• •	. 50
	Topography and Geology	• •	• •	. 50
	Precipitation and Runoff	• •	0 0	。 50
	Vegetative Cover	0 0		。 50
	Soils and Erosion			. 51
	Land Use			51
	Land Ownership			52
	Watershed Problems	0		52
	Land Transford	• •	• •	,)2 50
	Land frequient	• •	• •	• 23
	rederal Lands	• •	• •	, 54
	Private Land		• •	. 54
	Flood Prevention Structural Measures			. 55
	Irrigation Aspects			. 55
	Findings			. 55
V	ACTIVITIES OF THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICUI TURE			
••	DADTICH ADIV AFFECTED DV THE CT T DOLLECT			57
	PARILULARLI AFFECIED DI INE SILI PROJECI	• •	• •	· 21
	Introduction	• •	• •	• 51
	Agricultural Extension Education and Information		• •	. 57
	Technical Assistance	0 0		57
	Farm Credit and Financing	0 0		. 58
	Cost-Sharing for Conservation Measures			. 58
	National Forest Lands			58
	Research Needs			59
		. 0		, ,,

REPORT OF REAPPRAISAL OF DIRECT AGRICULTURAL BENEFITS AND PROJECT IMPACTS SILT PROJECT - COLORADO

SUMMARY

Authority

This report on the Silt participating project, Colorado River Storage Project, has been prepared by the U. S. Department of Agriculture in response to the President's letters of March 19, 1954 to the Secretary of Agriculture and the Secretary of the Interior. In his letters, the President requested that a reappraisal of the direct agricultural benefits, expected to be produced by the participating projects of the Colorado River Storage Project, be made by the Department of Agriculture in correction with the Department of the Interior. Following authorization of the Colorado River Storage Project by the Congress on April 11, 1956, an understanding was reached in July 1956 between the Secretary of Agriculture and Secretary of the Interior regarding conduct of a survey to reappraise direct agricultural benefits and to appraise project impacts. The Department of Agriculture survey was made under the authority of Section 6, Public Law 566, 83rd Congress, as amended, which authorizes the Department to cooperate with other Federal, State and local agencies to make investigations and surveys of the watersheds of rivers as a basis for the development of coordinated programs.

Purpose and Scope

The purpose of this report is to present information regarding the soil capabilities for irrigation, the present and future land use and production pattern, the costs associated with on-farm irrigation development, prospective size and type of farm, direct agricultural benefits and probable farm incomes with proposed irrigation development for the Silt project. In addition to the agricultural phases, this report deals with the impacts of the project on the national forests and the relationship of watershed conditions to the project.

This report also is intended to aid the Bureau of Reclamation in developing their Definite Plan Report, and to provide information bearing on the relationship of the project to the regular programs of the Department of Agriculture. It is based on the Silt project plan as outlined by the Bureau of Reclamation and is confined to the proposed project facilities and the project lands to which the Bureau of Reclamation plans to furnish irrigation water.

The assumptions made concerning the level of management and application of practices as a result of project development are not technical recommendations of the Department of Agriculture for the best land and water use on the project. It is assumed that the level of management and application of practices represent the average that will exist during the project evaluation period.

General Description

The Silt project is located in southeastern Garfield County, Colorado. Elevation of project lands varies from 5,500 to 6,300 feet. The climate is semi-arid. Average annual precipitation approximates 11 inches. The average frost-free period varies from 128 to 141 days. Project lands are all privately owned and are located on Harvey and Davie Mesas and in Dry Elk Valley. Agriculture is the basic industry of the project area, with livestock production being the principal type of farming. Mining, railroading and recreation also are a part of the local economy.

Proposed Project Development

The Silt project will furnish supplemental irrigation water for 4,479 acres of land presently irrigated with only a partial water supply and 2,118 acres of non-irrigated land. In addition, 244 acres of Bureau of Reclamation class 4 land and 226 acres of class 6W presently irrigated land will continue to receive their present water supplies.

The project plan proposes the construction of the Rifle Gap Dam and Reservoir on Rifle Creek and the Silt Pumping Plant located on the Colorado River. The reservoir will have an initial capacity of 12,650 acre-feet, including 9,500 acre-feet of active capacity for irrigation and 3,150 acrefeet inactive capacity for sediment, fish and wildlife. In addition to the dam and pumping plant, several canals and laterals, plus interceptor and outlet drains, will also be constructed as part of the project. The existing Harvey Gap Reservoir will continue to deliver water for use on lands on Harvey Mesa. The increase in water supplies provided by the project will be 5,030 acre-feet for presently irrigated lands and 6,700 acre-feet for new lands, a total of 11,730 acre-feet, at the point of diversion.

Evaluation of Direct Agricultural Benefits

Evaluation Areas

For purposes of the analysis, project lands were grouped into eight evaluation areas. The soils, climate and water supply within each evaluation area reflect similar crop adaptations, productivity, land and irrigation development and production costs. Estimates of farm incomes and direct agricultural benefits were developed for each area and for the project as a whole. These areas have been designated as A, B, C, D, E, F, G and H. Lands in evaluation areas A and B are geographically located on Harvey Mesa, lands in C and D are located on Davie Mesa and lands in E, F, G and H in Dry Elk Valley.

Evaluation Area A comprises 2,835 acres of presently irrigated land and 383 acres of new land. Soils are deep, medium to fine textured and have slopes ranging from 0-6 percent. Most of the project soils having saline, alkali and high water table problems are included in this evaluation area.

Evaluation Area B comprises 1,286 acres of presently irrigated land and 176 acres of new land. Soils are similar to those in evaluation area A but slopes are steeper, generally from 6-12 percent. Evaluation area B lands are intermingled with lands of evaluation area A.

With project development, presently irrigated lands in evaluation areas A and B will receive approximately an additional .9 acre-foot of water per acre delivered at the farm headgate. Intermingled non-irrigated new lands will receive 2.7 acre-feet of water delivered at the farm headgate.

Evaluation Area C consists of 657 acres of non-irrigated new lands to be served by the Davie Ditch. Soils are similar to those in evaluation area A on slopes from 0-6 percent. New farm units will be established on these lands.

Evaluation Area D comprises 215 acres of non-irrigated new lands to be served by the Davie Ditch. Soils and slopes are similar to those in evaluation area B. Crop distribution and crop yields will average the same as for evaluation area B.

Lands in evaluation areas C and D are presently non-irrigated. With project development they will receive approximately 2.7 acre-feet of water per acre delivered at the farm headgate.

Evaluation Area E is comprised of 181 acres of presently irrigated land located in Dry Elk Valley. Soils are deep with medium to fine textures, moderate to slow permeability, generally on slopes between 3 and 6 percent. Irrigation water will be delivered by direct diversion from East Rifle Creek.

Evaluation Area F consists of 177 acres of presently irrigated land located in Dry Elk Valley. Soils are similar to those in evaluation area E but slopes are steeper, generally from 6-12 percent.

With project development, lands in evaluation areas E and F will receive approximately an additional 1.9 acre-feet of irrigation water per acre delivered at the farm headgate.

Evaluation Area G comprises 341 acres of non-irrigated new land in Dry Elk Valley. Soils and slopes are similar to evaluation area E.

Evaluation Area H is composed of 346 acres of non-irrigated new land in Dry Elk Valley. Soils are similar to evaluation area E but slopes are steeper, generally from 6-12 percent.

Lands in evaluation areas G and H are presently non-irrigated. With project development they will receive approximately 2.7 acre-feet of water per acre delivered at the farm headgate.

Soils

Basic soils data were obtained from a soil survey of the project area completed by the Soil Conservation Service. Laboratory data on project soils were furnished by the Agricultural Research Service and the Cooperative Soil Survey Laboratories in Fort Collins, Colorado. Land classification field sheets and laboratory data were obtained from the Bureau of Reclamation.

Evaluation area A comprises 3,218 acres of which 71 percent are in capability class III and 29 percent in capability class II. The 1,462 acres in evaluation area B, 215 acres in evaluation area D, 177 acres in evaluation area F and the 346 acres in evaluation area H are all in capability class IV. Evaluation area C comprises 657 acres of which 62 percent are in capability class II and 38 percent in capability class III. Eightyeight percent of the 181 acres in evaluation area E are in capability class III and 12 percent in capability class II. Evaluation area G comprises 341 acres of which 84 percent are in capability class III and 16 percent in capability class II.

It is concluded that soils comprising the 6,597 acres of land designated by the Bureau of Reclamation as the Silt Project, which have been interpretively grouped into capability classes II-1,400 acres, III-2,997 acres, and IV-2,200 acres, are suitable for cultivation under irrigation.

Irrigation Supplies and Requirements

Several studies of irrigation requirements have been made in the general vicinity of the Silt project. These data, with additional information supplied by personnel familiar with the area, were used in estimating irrigation water requirements. In the past the water supply has averaged about one-third of requirements in the Dry Elk Valley and about two-thirds of requirements on Harvey Mesa. Estimated water requirement at the farm headgate is 2.86 acre-feet per acre. Weighted future average on-farm irrigation efficiencies are estimated at 53 percent and weighted average net seasonal crop consumptive use at 18.2 inches.

The period 1937-60 was selected as the basis for project water supply studies Project water supplies during a period of years of comparable precipitation and water yield would with project average 2.74 acre-feet per acre of irrigation water at the farm headgate, thus meeting 96 percent of the average water requirements of the project lands.

Land and Irrigation Development

Estimates of development costs for project lands were made by evaluation areas on the basis of the level of management expected on the project and the physical requirements of the soils and site conditions. They are consistent with anticipated irrigation efficiencies and expected crop yields.

Estimated costs include land leveling and the establishment of farm irrigation systems and associated requirements. Estimated on-farm drainage costs for a limited acreage of project lands with water table conditions are also included. Weighted average development per acre of irrigable land is estimated as follows: evaluation area A, \$65.03; evaluation area B, \$26.07; evaluation area C, \$66.53; evaluation area D, \$52.37; evaluation area E, \$39.04; evaluation area F, \$26.90; evaluation area G, \$69.77; evaluation area H, \$37.92.

Direct Agricultural Benefits and Potential Farm Incomes

The economic analysis of the proposed Silt irrigation project has two primary objectives: (1) an appraisal of direct agricultural benefits from project development, and (2) an appraisal of prospective farm incomes from representative sizes and types of farms considered most likely with the proposed irrigation development. Both of these analyses contribute to a general appraisal of the prospects for a successful, stable, irrigated agricultural economy. Farm incomes were estimated for five farm types, namely: range beef, grade-A dairy, feeder calves, farm flock of sheep, and cash-crop.

Project lands are expected to be used largely for the production of grain and forage crops. Sale of livestock and livestock products will likely be the predominant sources of agricultural income to project farmers.

The residual approach was used to estimate direct agricultural benefits from irrigation water. The total value of crop and pasture production was allocated to the various factors of production, except water, in accordance with their projected market prices with the residual being credited to the project as a direct benefit. For the 319 acres of project lands which presently have a full water supply from pumping, it is assumed that these lands would have direct agricultural benefits equal to the savings in present pumping costs, minus abandonment losses for present pumping equipment.

Estimates of returns with the project in the analysis are based on weighted averages of anticipated farm types and of sizes of 130 acres in evaluation area A, 135 acres in evaluation areas C and E, 140 acres in evaluation area G, 150 acres in evaluation area B, 155 acres in evaluation areas D and F, and 160 acres in evaluation area H. The annual equivalent value of direct agricultural benefits attributed to the project for the evaluation area lands are estimated at, A-\$16.22, B-\$7.83, C-\$25.68, D-\$14.62, E-\$14.64, F-\$11.92, G-\$27.15, and H-\$12.45 per acre. Direct agricultural benefits on present pump lands are estimated to be \$21.55 per acre. The weighted average for the entire 6,597 acres is \$15.85 per acre, or \$104,531 annually.

Development of the project will result in a more stable and profitable agricultural economy. For the sizes and types of farms analyzed, estimated farm incomes will vary from \$3,903 for a farm-flock sheep farm on evaluation area A lands to \$8,606 for a grade-A dairy farm on evaluation area C lands. The general conclusion from this analysis is that the income prospects for fully developed farms of the five types of farms analyzed are adequate to provide a satisfactory level of living and to make some payment for irrigation water.

Relationship of the Silt Project to National Forest Lands

The Silt project features and project lands are all outside the exterior boundary of the White River National Forest. As far as can be foreseen, the project will not impair or affect any existing facility or service on national forest lands.

Relationship of Watershed Conditions to the Silt Project

The watershed area of the Silt project comprises about 175 square miles. It consists of the East, Middle and West Rifle Creek drainages, plus the drainage area of the lands lying south of the Grand Hogback and the west portion of Dry Elk Valley north of Harvey Gap Reservoir. Sixty-three percent of the lands in the watershed are owned by the Federal Government, with the remaining 37 percent being in private and State ownership.

Watershed problems consist largely of: (1) silt and sediment production from the Mancos shale areas above the Rifle Gap Reservoir; (2) denuded watershed lands due to improper grazing practices and loss of protective cover by fire; (3) abandoned beaver dams, which break and contribute sediment to stream flows; and (4) local flood water and sediment damage to irrigation canals and systems following thunderstorms and rapid snow-melt runoff on erosive type soils and steep and sparsely vegetated slopes.

No large flood control structures are recommended. The high and intermediate elevation zones pose no flood problems to the project. Flood control structures will be ineffectual in the lower elevation zones due to steep slopes, raw soils and sparse vegetation. Critical areas do exist and their harmful effects can be lessened by improved management such as fencing, revegetation and restricted grazing. Canal or ditch designs should provide protection for runoff from these lower elevation areas. Individual floods will be small due to short slopes and low rainfall but the cumulative effects of these events creates a need for corrective measures.

Sediment production can be reduced by the application of land treatment measures to watershed lands. Improved watershed conditions will reduce ditch and canal operation and maintenance cost. Establishment of land treatment measures on problem areas will also reduce sediment carried by streams and extend the useful life of the reservoirs.

Needed watershed treatment can be accomplished and would be justified under programs of Federal land administering agencies and by private land owners with assistance normally furnished by Federal and State agencies through Soil Conservation Districts and otherwise.







LOCATION MAP



R. 92 W.

R. 93 W.

SILT PROJECT

CHAPTER I

GENERAL INFORMATION

Organization

Pursuant to the U. S. Department of Agriculture Memorandum of Understanding between the Soil Conservation Service, Forest Service, and Agricultural Research Service (Economic Research Service) dated February 2, 1956, a USDA Field Advisory Committee, Colorado River Storage Project was established. The committee is composed of a representative from each of these agencies and a member representing the concerned state agricultural colleges. Principal duties of the committee are to maintain appropriate liaison and facilitate coordination of activities by the respective services and the state agricultural colleges in the survey. Field relationships with the Bureau of Reclamation and other interested State and Federal agencies are also a responsibility of the committee.

A USDA Field Party, working under direction of the USDA Field Advisory Committee and operating within a plan of work dated August 22, 1956, is headquartered at Salt Lake City, Utah. The party is responsible for the collection and analysis of data and the preparation of this report.

Applicable data from previous investigations were utilized in the study.

Description of the Area

Location and Physical Features

The Silt project is located in southeastern Garfield County, Colorado. The project area is bounded by the Colorado River on the south, the White River Plateau on the north, Elk Creek on the east and Rifle Creek on the west. Project lands are located generally in three areas, namely: Harvey Mesa, Dry Elk Valley and Davie Mesa. The town of Silt is located near the southeastern boundary of the project and the town of Rifle is located approximately three miles south and west of the southwestern boundary of the project. Elevation of project lands varies from 5,500 feet above sea level in the Davie and Harvey Mesa area to 6,300 feet above sea level in Dry Elk Valley.

Water for the project will be supplied from Rifle Creek by storage of surplus early season runoff in the proposed Rifle Gap Reservoir or the existing Harvey Gap Reservoir, and by exchange of natural flow water for stored water. Water will also be supplied to project lands from the Silt pumping plant located at Davis Point on the Colorado River. Rifle Creek is formed by its tributaries of East, Middle and West Rifle Creeks, which drain the White River Plateau and Coulter Mesa areas north of the Grand Hogback.

Project lands are all privately owned and are within the boundary of the Bookcliff Soil Conservation District.

From an irrigation agriculture standpoint, the topography of the area is extremely rough. More than half of the area consists of high mesa lands. Secondary mesas and alluvial fans lying below the higher mesas have excessive slopes and are cut by canyons and severely eroded gullies. These lower mesas and alluvial fans, together with the gentler sloping valley bottoms, furnish the greater part of the farming land.

Project soils have developed primarily from loess deposits over shale, sandstone and gravel outwash material. Other soils have developed in alluvium from Wasatch, Mancos and Mesa Verde sandstones and shales and undifferentiated loess and alluvium. They reflect the influence of their parent material and the semi-arid climate under which they were developed. Organic matter content is low; however, soils are generally deep and with additions of nitrogen and phosphorus are highly productive. Soils on Harvey Mesa and Davie Mesa have loam, silt loam, sandy clay loam and clay loam textures. Soils in Dry Elk Valley have clay loam and clay textures. In some areas where drainage is a problem, soils contain large enough accumulations of alkali salts to restrict crop production.

Cl imate

The climate of the project area is temperate, semi-arid and is suitable for diversified irrigation farming. Relative humidity is low. Average annual precipitation recorded at Rifle (1931-1952) is 10.5 inches.

The average frost-free period for the Harvey Mesa area is estimated at 141 days, with the last killing frost occurring about May 13 and the first killing frost about September 30. The average frost-free period for Dry Elk Valley is estimated at 128 days. The last killing frost occurs about May 23 and the first killing frost about September 27.

History of Settlement

In 1878 two prospectors from Leadville came into Garfield County and reported evidence of carbonate deposits. Settlement in the project area started in 1880 while western Colorado was still inhabited by the Ute Indians. In 1882 Garfield County was formed from part of Summit County and was named after President Garfield. The first fruit orchards were planted in 1888. Most of the early settlers were prospectors and miners who turned to agricultural pursuits after being unsuccessful in mining. First appropriations of water for irrigation were made in 1882 from streams tributary to the Colorado River.

Agricultural Development

Agriculture is the basic industry of the project area. Crop production consists principally of hay and grain, most of which are used locally in the feeding of cattle, sheep, hogs and poultry. Small acreages of sugar beets, potatoes, corn and fruit are also grown. Presently irrigated lands in the project area experience irrigation water shortages after June of each year. Dairy, range beef and sheep, feeder calf, farm flock of sheep and cashcrop farms comprise the bulk of the existing type of farms. These same types of farms are expected to prevail with project conditions. Adjacent national forest and public domain lands are used from spring, summer and fall grazing by cattle and sheep. Range rights on these lands are fully utilized and no additional grazing permits are available for any new farms developed by the project.

Industrial Development

In addition to agriculture, several other industries contribute to the local economy. Mining is important in Garfield County. Seven workable coal veins, with a combined thickness of 100 feet, are located within a few miles of Rifle. The county has an estimated oil-shale deposit of 500 billion barrels of oil. The U. S. Burchu of Mines developed and operated a pilot oil-shale plant and mine six miles west of Rifle. This plant has now been turned over to the Navy Petroleum Reserves. The Union Oil Company of California is also active in the oil-shale development. They erected and operated, during the period of 1956-58, a three million dollar research extraction plant near Parachute Creek. During 1960 the plant was dismantled and shipped to South America for similar shale research. The Union Carbide Nuclear Company recently completed an eight and one-half million dollar uranium and vanadium mill at Rifle.

Recreation and railroading also provide the area with a substantial source of income.

General

The towns of Rifle and Silt are both located on the main line of the Denver and Rio Grande Western Railroad, which operates between Denver and Salt Lake City, Utah. U. S. Highways 6 and 24 also connecting Denver and Salt Lake City, pass through Rifle and Silt. Colorado State Highway 13 extends north from Rifle to Meeker and Craig.

Census records show Garfield County with a population of 10,560 in 1940, 11,625 in 1950 and 12,017 in 1960. Population of Rifle was 1,373 in 1940, 1,525 in 1950 and 2,135 in 1960.

Proposed Development

The Silt project plan proposes the construction of the Rifle Gap Dam and Reservoir on Rifle Creek, approximately seven miles above the town of Rifle. Surplus early season runoff will be stored in the reservoir. Approximately 80 percent of the water stored in the reservoir will be used to replace natural flow water now used to irrigate some 2,600 acres of land in the lower Rifle Creek Valley. The remainder of the water stored in the reservoir will be used to irrigate new lands on Davie Mesa and upper Cactus Valley. In exchange, natural flow of East Rifle Creek will be diverted above the proposed reservoir and used to irrigate lands in Dry Elk Valley and Harvey Mesa. The existing Harvey Gap Reservoir will continue to store early season runoff delivered through the Grass Valley Canal from Rifle Creek for use on lands on Harvey Mesa. The Rifle Gap Reservoir will have a capacity of 12,650 acre-feet, including 9,500 acre-feet of active capacity for irrigation and 3,150 acre-feet of inactive capacity for sediment control and fish and wildlife.

Additional irrigation water for project lands will be pumped from the Colorado River by the Silt pumping plant located at Davis Point. This water will be delivered to project lands in the lower Harvey Mesa and lower Antlers and Cactus Valleys by the Silt pump canal. A portion of this area is currently receiving water through eight private pumping systems with lifts from the Cactus Valley Canal. The increase in water supplies provided by the project will be 5,030 acre-feet for presently irrigated lands and 6,700 acre-feet for new lands, a total of 11,730 acre-feet, at the point of diversion.

Irrigation water made available by the project will be used to irrigate 4,479 acres of land now irrigated with only a partial water supply and 2,118 acres of land not now irrigated. In addition, 244 acres of Bureau of Reclamation Class 4 land and 226 acres of class 6W presently irrigated land will continue to receive present water supplies. Several miles of interceptor and outlet drains will also be constructed as part of the project. Total acreage of project lands to receive water will be 6,597 acres.





EVALUATION AREA MAP SILT PROJECT GARFIELD COUNTY, COLORADO

JUNE 1961







R. 92 W.



CHAPTER II

EVALUATION OF DIRECT AGRICULTURAL BENEFITS FROM THE SILT PROJECT

The evaluation of direct agricultural benefits for the project is based on the proposed facilities and the project lands to which the Bureau of Reclamation plans to furnish irrigation water. Intervening lands not included in the project are not considered in the report. The assumptions made concerning the level of management and application of practices as a result of project development are not technical recommendations of the Department of Agriculture for the best land and water use on the project. It is assumed that the level of management and application of practices represents the average that will exist during the project evaluation period.

Evaluation Areas - General Description

To facilitate the presentation of basic agricultural data and to assist in the analysis of direct agricultural benefits, project lands were grouped into evaluation areas. Soils, climate, and water supply within each evaluation area reflect similar crop adaptations, productivity, land and irrigation development and production costs.

Eight evaluation areas were established to represent conditions in the project area. These areas have been designated by the letters A, B, C, D, E, F, G and H. The acreage of each is shown in table 1.

Destant	•	Evaluation Areas									°						
Lands	00	Harvey	M	esa		Davi	e	Mesa	0		Dry	Ell	k V	a11	ey		Total
Chronomonic monogeneration of the second sec	00	A		В	**	С	00	D	00	E	000	F	•	G	00	H	° IVUAI
		കാരം അ	• •	6 660 660	•	* * *		- Ac	re	5 -	, GBO	en co	a 10	an a	• •	G G	
Presently irrigated lands		2,835	1	,286				-		181		177		8		68	4,479
Non-irrigated lands		383	-	176		657		215		63		680 6		<u>341</u>		346	2,118
Total Acreage		3,218	1	,462		657		215	:	181		177		341		346	6,597

Table 1. - Irrigable land acreage by evaluation areas, Silt project

Evaluation areas A and B are located geographically on Harvey Mesa, evaluation areas C and D on Davie Mesa and evaluation areas E, F, G and H in Dry Elk Valley. The areas are described as follows:

Evaluation Area A

Evaluation area A comprises 2,835 acres of presently irrigated land and 383 acres of new land. The new land is intermingled with presently irrigated land and will likely be used to enlarge existing operating units. Evaluation area A lands will receive water either by diversion from East Rifle Creek or by pump from the Colorado River.

The soils are deep, medium to fine textured, generally on slopes from 1 to 6 percent. They have medium water intake rates, moderate to slow permeability in subsoil and substratum and high water holding capacity. Most of the project soils having saline, alkali and high water table problems are included in this evaluation area. Proposed project drainage, supplemented by on-farm drainage, should correct these problems and result in crop yields equal to other lands in the evaluation area.

Lands within this evaluation area can be farmed intensively and will produce high yields. All of the sugar beets now grown in the project area are on these lands and the majority of the expanded acreage of sugar beets with the proposed project is expected to be on these lands.

Effectiveness of the past water supply has been increased by the improved distribution provided by use of the Harvey Gap Reservoir. There are 213 acres included within this evaluation area that have had a full water supply by pumping from Cactus Valley Ditch. Benefits on these lands will be calculated separately from the other lands in this evaluation area. Presently irrigated lands will receive approximately .9 acre-foot per acre of additional irrigation water and new lands will receive approximately 2.7 acrefeet per acre with development of the proposed project. Crop yields have been good but substantial improvement is expected from the additional water.

Evaluation Area B

This evaluation area comprises 1,286 acres of presently irrigated land and 176 acres of new land. The new land is in small scattered tracts intermingled with presently irrigated land, and it is anticipated that the new lands will be added to existing farm units.

Evaluation area B lands are intermingled with lands of evaluation area A. It is very unlikely that a farm unit will have lands of evaluation area B only. Soils are similar to evaluation area A but slopes are steeper, generally from 6 to 12 percent.

A small acreage is affected with water table, salt and alkali. Another small acreage has stones on the surface. Project drainage is not planned for the wet areas, but farm drains may be installed by individual operators. It is not anticipated that drainage or stone removal will be applied to the degree to develop these lands to their maximum productive capacity.

Because of the steep slopes and the degree of development anticipated for these lands, types of crops will be restricted and crop yields will average lower than yields in evaluation area A. Cropping systems will include alfalfa-grass hay, small grain, and grass legume pastures. With livestock as the principal enterprise, feed crops from these evaluation area B lands can usefully supplement more intensive cropping on evaluation area A lands within farm units.

Water supply has been the same as for evaluation area A and approximately .9 acre-foot per acre of additional water is expected with the proposed project development for presently irrigated lands. Intermingled non-irrigated new lands will receive 2.7 acre-feet of water delivered at the farm headgate. There are 106 acres included within this evaluation area that will be evaluated separately since they now have a full water supply pumped from Cactus Valley Ditch.

Evaluation Area C

This evaluation area consists of 657 acres of new lands to be served by the Davie Ditch. These lands have been farmed previously but are now abandoned. Soils are similar to those in evaluation area A and it is anticipated that they will produce similar crops and yields when irrigated. Water supply will come through Davie Ditch from the Rifle Gap Reservoir. Approximately 2.7 acre-feet of irrigation water per acre will be furnished these lands with project development. New farm units will be established because these lands are physically separated from presently irrigated areas.

Evaluation Area D

Evaluation area D comprises 215 acres of new land intermingled with evaluation area C lands also to be served by Davie Ditch. Irrigation water supply will be the same as evaluation area C. Soils and slopes are similar to evaluation area B. It is anticipated that these lands will have the same limitations in cropping as those in evaluation area B. Crop distribution and yields are projected to average the same as for evaluation area B. New units established on lands of evaluation area D will likely include some lands in evaluation area C.

Evaluation Area E

Evaluation area E is comprised of 181 acres of presently irrigated land located in Dry Elk Valley. Soils in this evaluation area are deep with medium to fine textures, moderate to slow permeability, generally on slopes between 3 and 6 percent. A small acreage of land has a high water table which should be corrected by the proposed project drainage.

Evaluation area E lands will be served by direct diversion of irrigation water in the Grass Valley Canal from East Rifle Creek. Average water supply with project development is anticipated to be the same as for other evaluation areas. The proposed project will supply approximately 1.9 acre-feet per acre additional irrigation water to these lands. Crop distribution will be similar to evaluation area A and average crop yields will be slightly lower due to the estimated shorter growing season.

Evaluation Area F

Evaluation area F is comprised of 177 acres of presently irrigated land located in Dry Elk Valley, interspersed with lands of evaluation area E. Soils are similar to evaluation area E but slopes are steeper (6 to 12 percent). There is a small acreage of wet land but it is anticipated that the proposed project drainage will correct this condition.

Lands in this evaluation area will also be served by direct diversion into the Grass Valley Canal from East Rifle Creek. The proposed project will supply approximately 1.9 acre-feet per acre additional irrigation water to these lands.

It is anticipated that the same crop distribution will occur on these lands as on lands of evaluation area B. Crop yields are estimated slightly lower than those in evaluation area B. The differences in crop yields will be similar to those between evaluation areas A and E.

Evaluation Area G

This evaluation area comprises 341 acres of new land in Dry Elk Valley. Soils and slopes are similar to evaluation area E. Climate and crop yields with project are the same as for evaluation area E. Water to be furnished by the proposed project is approximately 2.7 acre-feet per acre.

Evaluation Area H

Evaluation area H is comprised of 346 acres of new land in Dry Elk Valley. Soils and slopes are similar to those in evaluation area F. Climate and crop yields with project are the same as evaluation area F. Water supply to be furnished by the proposed project is approximately 2.7 acre-feet per acre.

Soils Inventory

Sources of Data

Soil information used in the reappraisal of the Silt project was obtained from the Soil Conservation Service, Agricultural Research Service and Bureau of Reclamation. A soil survey of the project was completed by the Soil Conservation Service. Laboratory data on project soils were furnished by the Agricultural Research Service and the Cooperative Soil Survey Laboratories in Fort Collins, Colorado. The Bureau of Reclamation supplied land classification field sheets and laboratory data on the chemical and physical properties of project soils. Information on water intake rates of soils was obtained from cylinder infiltrometer tests on selected sites of dominant soils.

General Description of Soils and Soil Problems

More than half the project acreage is comprised of soils that have developed in loess over sandstone shale and gravel outwash material. The remaining acreage is composed of soils which have developed from alluvium or undifferentiated loess and alluvium.

Generally, the soils are deep, medium to fine textured, are high in silt and low in organic matter, have moderate to slow permeability and have a high water-holding capacity. Project soils generally have a moderate capacity to hold nutrients and require additions of nitrogen and phosphorus to obtain good yields of adapted crops. Slopes range from less than 1 to 12 percent, with the majority between 4 and 12 percent. Erosion is slight to moderate.

Although local in nature, salinity, albali and high water table are problems in all geographic areas of the project where land is presently irrigated. These coexisting problems can be reduced, if not eliminated, by improving on-farm irrigation and improving drainage by providing adequate outlets and keeping outlets free of vegetation to allow a free flow of excess water. The Bureau of Reclamation plans to provide project drainage (digging new outlets and cleaning out natural drainageways) for areas in which there is a concentration of these problems.

With the moderate to high silt content of these soils and slopes from 1 to 12 percent, there is a general problem of soil erosion which can be kept to a minimum with applicable soil and water conservation practices. The fine textured soils require special management or a refinement of soil management practices to prevent puddling and compaction from tillage equipment, which take considerable time to correct.

Factors affecting the capability classification of soils in this project are climate, fine surface texture, degree of salt, alkali, water table, stoniness, and percent slope. The acreage of land capability units within each evaluation area and soil and water relationships are shown in table 2. Project acreage and general soil characteristics for each land capability unit are shown in table 3. These units, tabulated by evaluation areas, allow a general appraisal to be made of each evaluation area and of differences between evaluation areas.

Soils in capability class II have some limitations that reduce the choice of plants or require moderate conservation practices. Soils in capability class III have severe limitations that reduce the choice of plants or require special conservation practices or both. Soils in capability class IV have severe limitations that restrict the choice of plants or require very careful management or both.

: Land : Evaluation : Cana- :	:	:	Soi1	Water-holdi	ng Capacity	:
Areas : bility : : Unit :	Acres :	% Slope : :	Depth Inches	Inches per foot of soil	: Total inches : for profile	Remarks
A IIC IIS IIE IIES IIES1 IIES1 IIES1 IIIS1 IIIS2 IIIS2 IIIS3 IIIE	48 10 493 6 19 297 43 13 113 2 1,883	0-1 0-1 1-3 1-3 1-3 1-3 1-3 1-3 1-3 1-3 1-3 3-6	60+ 60+ 60+ 60+ 60+ 60+ 60+ 60+ 60+ 60+	2.0 2.0 1.7 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.5 2.0 2.5 2.0	10+ 10+ 8+ 10+ 10+ 10+ 10+ 10+ 12+ 10+ 12+ 10+	Some soils underlain by
IIIes IIIes1 IIIes2 IIIes3 Total Acres (A)	38 9 188 <u>56</u> 3,218	3-6 3-6 3-6 3-6	60+ 60+ 60+ 60+	2.0 2.5 2.0 2.5	10+ 12+ 10+ 12+	graver between 30 and 40"
B IVs2	21	3-6	60+	2.0	8+	Some soil underlain by
IVs3 IVslı IVs5 IVe IVe1	8 103 19 64 1,000	3-6 3-6 3-6 6-12 6-12	60+ 60+ 60+ 60+ 48-60+	2.5 1.7 1.5 2.0 2.0	12+ 8+ 3+ 9+ 10+	gravel at 40" Gravel between 20 and 48" Shallow to gravel Some soils overlying gravel at 30 to 48" Some soils underlain by gravel between 30 and 48"
IVe2 IVe4	24 223	6 - 12 6 - 12	60+ 60+	2.0 1.7	10+ 7+	some with shale at 48" Much of soil underlain by gravel between 20 and 48"
Total Acres (B)	1,462					
C IIe IIes2 IIIe	280 127 244	1-3 1-3 3-6	60+ 60+ 60+	2.0 2.0 2.0	10+ 10+ 10+	Small area of soil underlain
IIIes2 Total Acres (C)	<u>6</u>	3-6	60+	2.0	8+	Gravel at 48"
D IVe	101	6-12	60+	2.0	9+	Some soils underlain by
IVel IVel Total Acres (D)	69 <u>45</u> 215	6 - 12 6 - 12	60+ 60+	2.0 2.0	10+ 10+	draver permeen zo and to.
E IIe IIIs IIIe IIIes1 Total Acres (E)	21 10 112 <u>38</u> 181	1-3 1-3 3-6 3-6	60+ 60+ 60+ 60+	2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0	10+ 10+ 10+ 10+	
F IVs IVs3 IVs4	5 27 5	1-3 3-6 1-3	60+ 60+ 60+	2.5 2.5 2.0	12+ 12+ 10+	Small acreage underlain by shale at depths between 26 and 60
IVe1	113	6-12	36-60+	1.7	7+	Much of soils underlain by gravel between 20 and 48"
IVe2 IVe4 Total Acres (F)	9 18 177	6 - 12 6 - 12	60+ 60+	2.0 1.7	10+ 3+	Gravel at 20" - moderately stony soil
G IIe	56	1-3	60+	2.0	9+	Some soils underlain by
IIIs IIIe	39 179	1-3 3-6	60+ 60+	2.0	10+ 9+	Some soils underlain by
IIIesl Total Acres (G)	<u>67</u> 341	3-6	60+	2.5	12+	gravel between 36 and 60"
H IVs1 IVe1 IVe2 IVe4 Total Acres (H)	92 175 38 <u>41</u> 346	3-6 6-12 6-12 6-12	60+ 60+ 60+ 60+	2.5 1.7 2.0 1.7	12+ 7+ (5+) 3+ (These soils are shallow to deep over gravel but all are deep to underlying rock
TOTAL PROJECT ACRES	6,597		*	0		

Table 2. - Generalized soil-water relationship and acreages of land capability units by evaluation areas, Silt Project

10

Land : Capability : Unit :	Acres	: Permeability :	Slope Percent	: Susceptibility to erosion	: : Topography :	Depth Inches	: Underlying : Material	: Remarks
IIc	48	Slow	0-1	Slight	Smooth to slightly undulating	60+	Sandstone and shale	
IIs	10	Moderate	0-1	Slight	Smooth to slightly undulating	60+	Sandstone and shale	Has a saline and water table problem
IIe	850	Slow to moderate	1-3	Slight	Slightly rolling	48"-grave1 60+"-ss & shale	Gravel, sandstone and shale	
IIes	6	Slow	1-3	Slight	Slightly rolling	60+	Primarily shale inter- bedded with sandstone	
IIesl	19	Slow	1-3	Slight	Slightly rolling	60+	Primarily shale inter-	
IIes2	424	Moderate to slow	1-3	Slight to moderate	Slightly rolling	60+	Primarily shale inter- bedded with sandstone	About half the acreage has a saline, alkali and water table problem
IIe1s1	43	Moderate	1-3	Moderate	Slightly rolling	60+	Primarily shale inter- bedded with sandstone	Small acreage has saline, alkali and water table problems
IIIs	49	Slow	1-3	Slight	Slightly rolling	60+	Primarily sandstone	
IIIs1	13	Slow	1-3	Slight	Slightly rolling	60+	Primarily shale with interbedded sandstone	
IIIs2	113	Moderate to slow	1-3	Slight to moderate	Slightly rolling	60+	Primarily shale with interbedded sandstone	Saline, alkali and water table problems
IIIs3	2	Slow	1-3	Slight	Slightly rolling	60+	Primarily shale with interbedded sandstone	Saline, alkali and water table problems
IIIe	2,418	Moderate to slow	3-6	Slight to moderate	Slightly to moderately rolling	60+	Sandstone, shale and gravel	Small acreage with saline and water table problem. Considerable acreage of soils underlain by gravel at denths of 30-18 inches
IIIes	38	Moderate to slow	3-6	Slight to moderate	Slightly to moderately rolling	60+	Shale interbedded	70% of acreage has saline, alkali
II Ies1	114	Slow	3-6	Slight to moderate	Slightly to moderately rolling	60+	Primarily sandstone.	Small acreage with salt, alkali and water table problems
IIIes2	194	Moderate	3-6	Moderate	Slightly to moderately rolling	60+	Primarily shale with interbedded sandstone	50% of acreage has saline, alkali and water table problems
IIIes3	56	Slow	3-6	Slight to moderate	Slightly to moderately rolling	60+	Primarily shale with interbedded sandstone	80% of acreage has saline, alkali and water table problems
IVs	5	Slow	1-3	Slight	Slightly rolling	60+	Sandstone	
IVs1	92	Slow	3-6	Slight to moderate	Slightly to moderately rolling	60+	Sandstone	
IVs2	21	Moderate	3-6	Moderate	Slightly to moderately rolling	60+	Shale interbedded with sandstone	Small acreage of saline, alkali and water table problems
IVs3	35	Slow	3-6	Slight to moderate	Slightly to moderately rolling	60+	Shale and sandstone	Saline, alkali and water table problems
IVs4	108	Slow to moderate	3-6	Slight to moderate	Slightly to moderately rolling	60+	Shale and sandstone	Moderately stony soils
IVs5	19	Rapid	3-6	Slight to moderate	Slightly to moderately rolling	60+	Shallow to gravel, deep to shale	
IVe	165	Moderate to slow	6-12	Moderate	Moderately rolling	60+	Shale, sandstone and gravel	Soil, to gravel, ranges from 20 to 48 inches thick
IVe1	1,357	Slow to moderate	6-12	Moderate	Moderately rolling	60+	Shale, sandstone and gravel	30% of soils underlain by gravel between 20 and 48 inches
IVe2	71	Slow	6-12	Moderate	Moderately rolling	60+	Shale and sandstone	
IVel	327	Moderate to slow	6-12	Moderate	Moderately rolling	60+	Shale and sandstone	Small acreage with saline, alkali and water table problems. About 60% of acreage moderately stony.

Table 3.	- Generalized	soi1	characteristics	bv	land	capability	units.	Silt	Project
100010).				-5			,		

Project total

Frend .

6,597 acres

This area is comprised of deep, medium to fine textured soils on slopes ranging from 0 to 6 percent. They have weakly to strongly developed B horizons with corresponding moderate to slow permeability. About 17 percent of the acreage consists of soils underlain by gravel at depths between 20 and 48 inches. Depth to shale is over 60 inches. Most of the project soils having saline, alkali and high water table problems, are included in this evaluation area. There are 2,302 acres or 71 percent of soils grouped into capability class III and 916 acres or 29 percent grouped into capability class II.

Evaluation Area B - Soils

Soils in this evaluation area are generally deep, predominantly medium textured, have weakly to strongly developed B horizons, moderate to slow permeability, and slopes ranging from 3 to 12 percent. Thirty-five percent of this acreage consists of soils underlain by gravel between 12 and 48 inches. Depth to shale is over 60 inches. A small acreage is affected by salt, alkali, high water table and flooding. This evaluation area includes most of the moderately stony soils on the project. Steep slope is the major soil problem affecting the capability classification. All the soils comprising the 1,462 acres in this evaluation area are grouped into capability class IV.

Evaluation Area C - Soils

Soils of this evaluation area have developed primarily from loess; however, a small acreage has developed from alluvium. They are deep, medium textured soils with weakly to strongly developed B horizons, moderate to slow permeability, and slopes ranging from 1 to 6 percent. A small acreage of soils is underlain by gravel at depths between 30 and 48 inches. Slope as it affects the soil erosion potential is the only significant problem affecting the capability classification of these soils. There are 407 acres or 62 percent of the soils grouped into capability class II and 250 acres or 38 percent grouped into capability class III.

Evaluation Area D - Soils

This evaluation area is comprised of deep, medium textured soils which predominantly have weakly developed B horizons, moderate permeability, and slopes ranging from 6 to 12 percent. A small acreage of soils, representing about 13 percent of this area, is underlain by gravel at depths between 20 and 48 inches. Except for a small acreage that is slightly affected by salt and alkali, the only soil problem is slope as it affects the soil erosion potential. All the soils in this evaluation area (215 acres) are grouped into capability class IV.

Evaluation Area E - Soils

Soils of this evaluation area are deep with medium to fine texture, moderate to slow permeability, and slopes ranging from 1 to 6 percent. There is a small acreage with a high water table problem but slope, as it affects the soil erosion potential, is the significant criterian for capability classification of these soils. There are 160 acres or 88 percent of the soils in capability class III and 21 acres or 12 percent in capability class II.

Evaluation Area F - Soils

This evaluation area is comprised of deep, medium to fine textured soils with moderate to slow permeability. Slopes range from 1 to 12 percent, but the majority of the soils have slopes ranging from 6 to 12 percent. About 50 percent of the acreage is underlain by gravel between 20 and 48 inches. There are a few acres of soil with saline, alkali and water problems. Also, there is a small acreage of moderately stony soils. However, the major problem affecting the capability classification of these soils is moderately steep slopes. All the soils, comprising the 171 acres, in this evaluation area are grouped into capability class IV.

Evaluation Area G - Soils

This evaluation area is comprised of deep, medium to fine textured soils with moderate to slow permeability and slopes ranging from 1 to 6 percent. About 25 percent of the acreage is underlain by gravel at a depth of 48inches. The major problem significant to the capability classification of soils is slope as it effects the soil erosion potential. There are 285 acres or 84 percent of the soils grouped into capability class III and 56 acres or 16 percent grouped into capability class II.

Evaluation Area H - Soils

Soils comprising this evaluation area are deep with medium to fine texture, moderate to slow permeability, and slopes ranging from 3 to 12 percent. About 40 percent of the acreage is underlain by gravel at depths between 20 and 48 inches. There is a small acreage which is moderately stony, but the soil problems significant to capability classification are fine textures and moderately steep slopes. All the soils in this evaluation area (346 acres) are grouped into capability class IV.

Findings

It is concluded that soils comprising the 6,597 acres of land designated by the Bureau of Reclamation as the Silt Project, which have been interpretively grouped into capability classes II-1,400 acres, III-2,997 acres, and IV-2,200 acres, are suitable for cultivation under irrigation.

Sources of Data

Reports on several studies include estimates of irrigation requirements in the general vicinity of the Silt project. Included are the following: (1) Appendix B of the Record of the Upper Colorado River Basin Compact Commission: (2) Consumptive Use of Water in the Irrigated Areas of the Upper Colorado River Basin. by Blaney and Criddle; and (3) Consumptive Use and Irrigation Water Requirements of Crops in Colorado, by Blaney and Criddle. Additional related information is contained in the Water Supply Papers of the U. S. Geological Survey. Climatological Data by the U. S. Weather Bureau. Colorado Heat and Moisture Indexes for Use in Land Capability Classification by the Soil Conservation Service, and other publications. These and other available related reports were carefully reviewed for the purpose of this study. In addition, information was supplied by technicians of the Colorado State University, Colorado Agricultural Experiment Station, Colorado Cooperative Extension Service, Colorado State Engineer, Agricultural Research Service, U. S. Bureau of Reclamation, U. S. Soil Conservation Service, and others familiar with the area.

Water Requirements

Consumptive use requirements for the principal crops in the area were estimated by the Blaney-Criddle procedures (table 4). Long climatological records are available for the town of Rifle, located adjacent to the project area; however, there are material differences in elevation between Rifle and the several parts of the project. Some adjustment of both the temperature and precipitation records at Rifle is necessary, therefore, before they can be considered representative of the project area. There are no data available to guide estimates of the amount of adjustment needed. In addition, considerable variation of elevation occurs within the various parts of the project area. Considering these limitation, a refined and detailed estimate of consumptive use within the project area was not attempted. From inspection of the area and discussions with technicians familiar with the area, it appears that the Davie Mesa-Harvey Mesa area could be reasonably considered as one unit for purposes of estimating the consumptive use reguirements, and the Dry Elk Valley as a separate unit.

Estimates of mean temperatures for the two project areas described above were made by application of standard adiabatic lapse rates, 3° per 1,000 feet, for the elevational differences, to the average mean temperature at Rifle as given by the U. S. Weather Bureau, Bulletin W, Supplement 11-5 (1931-1952).

For the purpose of this study, effective precipitation is considered to be 85% of the average precipitation for the ten driest consecutive years (1931-1940). Extension of the precipitation record at Rifle to the project area was difficult in the absence of data on the variability within the area. The Dry Elk Valley presents considerable uncertainty, as it is reputed to be at least partially in an area of "rain shadow" north and east of the Grand Hogback.

	Alfalfa :	Clover & Grass Pasture	Corn :	Small Grain	: Sugar : Beets
Davie and Harvey Mesas, Evaluation Areas A, B, C and D					
Frost-free Period Consumptive use coefficient Consumptive use factor Consumptive use, Inches	.85 28.78 24.46	.80 28.78 23.02	.75 26.47 19.85	.75 20.61 15.45	。70 28.78 20.15
Nonfrost-free Period Consumptive use coefficient Consumptive use factor Consumptive use, Inches	。70 4.87 3.41	.65 4.87 3.16	-	-	00 *****
Total Consumptive Use, Ac. Ins./Acre Effective Seasonal Precipitation, Inches	27.87 4.84	26.18 4.84	19.85 3.40	15.45 2.32	20.15 4.07
Net Irrigation Requirement, Ac. Ins./Acre	23.03	21.34	16.45	13.13	16.08
Dry Elk Valley, Evaluation Areas E,F,G & H Frost-free Period Consumptive use coefficient Consumptive use factor Consumptive use, Inches	.85 25.52 21.69	.80 25.52 20.41	.75 24.47 18.35	。75 19。98 14。99	.70 25.52 17.86
Nonfrost-free Period Consumptive use coefficient Consumptive use factor Consumptive use, Inches	。70 6。76 4。73	。65 6。76 4。39		6 9 6	5
Total Consumptive Use, Ac. Ins./Acre Effective Seasonal Precipitation, Inches	26.42 5.50	24.80 5.50	18.35 3.90	14.99 2.74	17.86 4.22
Net Irrigation Requirement, Ac. Ins./Acre	20.92	19.30	14.45	12.25	13.64

Table 4. - Estimate of consumptive use requirements for major crops, Silt project

- 15 -

From an inspection of the area and a consideration of the lapse rates, it was concluded that the effective precipitation of the Davie Mesa-Harvey Mesa area will approximate the average precipitation (ten driest consecutive years) at Rifle, and the corresponding monthly amounts have accordingly been used. For an estimate of precipitation in the Dry Elk Valley, a correlation was developed between the records at Rifle and those at Collbran, the nearest station with similar characteristics and located at near the same elevation as the Dry Elk Valley.

The various irrigation water losses expected within the project at the projected level of land development under project operations were estimated by considering soil characteristics and site locations. Due allowance was made for leaching requirements for salt balance control. Resulting irrigation efficiency estimates were adjusted to reflect an estimated 12 percent reuse of tail water runoff and return flows as is the general practice within the area at present. Total farm irrigation water requirements were estimated by adding on-farm losses to the basic consumptive use estimates weighted by projected crop acreage distribution (table 5).

Evaluation Are	: 8 8 8 8 8	Weighted Average Consumptive Use Requirements, Acre-Inches per Irrigable Acre	00 00 00 00 00	Weighted Average Farm Irrigation Efficiency, With Project Percent	00 00 00 00 00	Farm Headgate Water Delivery Requirement, Acre Inches per Irrigable Acre
A		18.4		55		33.5
В		18.6		49		38.0
с		18.3		56		32.7
D		18.4		49		37.6
E		17.5		55		31.8
F		17.3		50		34.6
G		16.5		55		30.0
н		16.6		51		32.6

Table 5. - Irrigation requirements by evaluation areas, Silt project

Adequacy of Water Supply

Irrigation water for the Silt project is now supplied by direct diversion of the natural flows of East Rifle Creek, supplemented by releases from the existing Harvey Gap Reservoir. This reservoir is filled during the winter and spring months when stream flows exceed the needs of downstream users. Lands in the Dry Elk Valley are upstream from the Harvey Gap Reservoir and hence receive water only by direct diversions from East Rifle Creek. During the spring snow-melt period, the flow in the creek is usually greatly in excess of the irrigation requirements for all lands which use it, both project and non-project. By early summer, however, the flow diminishes rapidly and is insufficient to meet the irrigation demands. As a result. the Dry Elk Valley lands with their junior water rights are unable to obtain irrigation water subsequent to midsummer, and crop yields are adversely affected. Bureau of Reclamation operations studies indicate that the total historical supply available to the presently cultivated land in Dry Elk Valley has amounted only to about 35 percent of seasonal requirements on an ideal demand basis for a normal rotation cropping pattern.

Lands on Davie Mesa have previously been subjugated and placed under irrigation. Irrigation water was diverted directly from Rifle Creek near the Rifle Gap Reservoir site. The available water rights were of such low priority, however, that insufficient irrigation water was available and the supply was undependable. Natural precipitation is inadequate for dry farming, hence successful farming is not possible without an adequate supply of irrigation water, and these lands were abandoned.

Lands on Harvey Mesa comprise the greater part of the project, some 4,680 out of the total of 6,597 acres. These lands are supplied by direct diversions during the early part of the irrigation season when the flow of East Rifle Creek is adequate, and by releases of stored water from Harvey Gap Reservoir during the latter part of the season when their natural flow rights are junior to those of downstream users on Rifle Creek. Total seasonal water supplies available to these lands have averaged substantially less than requirements. Most severe shortages have occurred during July and August, and in a number of years the water available during these months has been less than 20 percent of requirements. Bureau of Reclamation operations studies indicate that the average seasonal water supply available to lands under the Harvey Gap Reservoir has been about 69 percent of estimated requirements. There have been few years during which all water requirements have been completely satisfied. In the 24-year study period, only four years had seasonal water supplies greater than 90 percent of ideal requirements, while in 12 years the supply was less than 60 percent of requirements.

In recent years, some 326 acres of land on the lower part of Harvey Mesa, including 7 acres of non-project land, have been irrigated by pumping from the adjacent Cactus Valley Canal, which originates by direct diversion from the Colorado River. These lands have had essentially a full water supply and, accordingly, have been analyzed separately in the economic studies. Under project operations, they would receive their water supply from project sources. Project plans propose the construction of three principal elements, (1) Rifle Gap Dam and Reservoir on Rifle Creek, (2) Davie Ditch, and (3) Silt pumping plant and canal. In addition, several canals and laterals and interceptor and outlet drains will also be constructed.

The Rifle Gap Reservoir will provide seasonal regulation of the flows of Rifle Creek. Exchange of stored water in the reservoir for natural flow rights held by downstream users will permit the increased diversion of late season flows into the Grass Valley Canal serving Dry Elk Valley and Harvey Mesa and thereby supplement the water supply for those areas.

Water for Dry Elk Valley will be supplied by direct diversion of the unregulated flows of East Rifle Creek through the Grass Valley Canal, in exchange for water stored in Rifle Gap Reservoir. Senior water rights below the Rifle Gap Reservoir will require bypassing natural flows during periods when no storage water is available in the reservoir for exchange. Since there will be no regulation of East Rifle Creek above the diversion point of the Grass Valley Canal, the water supply for the Dry Elk Valley will be affected by such bypasses.

The Rifle Gap Reservoir will provide essentially a full water supply for lands to be served by the Davie Ditch, while also ensuring that the senior rights of water users in the lower Rifle Creek Valley will be satisfied. Davie Ditch will convey water from the Rifle Gap Reservoir to serve the lands on Davie Mesa.

The Silt pumping plant will divert directly from the Colorado River and deliver to the proposed pump canal, which will distribute the water to about 1,804 acres of project lands on Harvey Mesa and a small acreage of interspersed non-project lands with water rights. The water supplied by this pumping plant and canal will supplement direct diversions from East Rifle Creek and gravity releases from Harvey Gap Reservoir. Use of pump water in exchange for gravity flow water in the area below the pump canal will equalize the water supply and minimize water shortages for lands in the Harvey Mesa service area. There are 4,680 acres of project lands, comprising evaluation areas A and B, and 358 acres of interspersed nonproject lands with water rights which must be satisfied, a total of 5,038 acres, on Harvey Mesa.

Project operations studies assume that water supplies and project impacts will be equalized in the Harvey Mesa service area. It is fully recognized that farms lying below the Silt pump canal could, if desired, and by payment of the extra pumping costs involved, obtain additional water to an extent that would eliminate their shortages in dry years. Since this supplemental pumpage would be outside of and not a part of regular project operations, neither the additional costs that might be imposed or the possible benefits that might accrue, nor the decreased water supply shortage that would result, have been estimated under the project operations analysis.

In order to assure a dependable water supply for the project lands served by the Silt pumping plant and canal, project plans recommend the reservation of an estimated maximum of 6,600 acre-feet of storage water in Green Mountain Reservoir on the Colorado River. A comparison of the adequacy of project water supplies by months and evaluation areas is given in table 6.

Idule	evaluation areas, Silt project 1/	direments, by monoris and
	Projected Water Supply With Project	: Historical Water Supply : Without Project
	: Harvey Mesa : Davie Mesa : Dry Elk Valley	: Harvey Mesa : Dry Elk Valley

company of some some her hardly and T-11- 6

Month	: Evaluation : Areas A & B	: Evaluation : :Areas C & D:Ar	Evaluation reas E,F,G & H	: Evaluation : : Areas A & B :	Evaluation Areas E,F,G & H
CERE SHECKING Day 2798	යා සා සා සා සා සා සා 	a ao	Percent -		
May	100	100	100	100	73
June	100	100	100	98	31
July	100	100	100	56	17
Aug.	90	84	90	35	25
Sept.	73	81	79	43	54
Oct.	100	100	75	100	54

1/ Based on 24-year study period 1937-1960 inclusive.

Davie Mesa, evaluation areas C and D, not irrigated under without-project 2/ conditions.

Under project operations, all lands will have a full water supply except in years of unusually deficient water yield. Effective operation of the Silt pumping plant will greatly reduce the effect of local minor water yield deficiencies. Occasional years of extremely deficient water supply. such as have occurred in the past, will result in some water supply shortages for project lands. A comparison of historical water supplies and those that would be available with the project, based on data provided by the Bureau of Reclamation, is given in table 7. Anticipated water shortages are reflected in crop yield estimates of project lands.

Interspersed among the project lands is a limited acreage of non-project land with rights to a proportional share of the present water supply. These lands are generally too steep for effective cultivation or have profile or other limitations which make them undesirable for inclusion within the project. They will continue to receive the normal water supply to which they are legally entitled from appropriate sources of supply, depending upon their location, but the supply will not be supplemented from

Table 7. - Comparison of annual water supply with and without project, by evaluation areas, Silt project $\frac{1}{2}$

	Percent of Years the "Percent of Water Requirements Available" was Equalled or Exceeded									
Percent of Water Requirements	Harvey I Evaluation Ar	* Dry Elk Valley Evaluation Areas E, F, G & H								
Available	With Project Supply	:Without: :Project: :Supply:	With Project Supply	: With :Project :Supply	:Without :Project :Supply					
	000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000	æ æ æ æ æ e	Percent							
100	65	2	69	69	60					
90	75	17	78	77	a					
80	92	36	96	96	0.1					
70	99 *	45	99 *	99 *	0.9					
60	5	52	20	-	5.0					
50	æ	90		œ	17.0					
40	-	99		8	39.0					

1/ Based on 24-year study period 1937-1960 inclusive.

project sources. There are 112 acres of these lands located in the Dry Elk Valley and 358 acres on Harvey Mesa. They produce a limited amount of forage and are owned and managed in conjunction with the project lands with which they are intermingled.

Water from both Rifle Creek and the Colorado River has been analyzed and found suitable for irrigation of project lands.

Findings

Based on estimates of consumptive use requirements and irrigation efficiencies, an average 2.86 acre-feet of water per irrigable acre will be required at the farm headgates to adequately serve the project lands. Reservoir and project operations studies and records of historical flows indicate that the water supplies available from project facilities will be adequate to meet this requirement in all but exceptionally dry years. The average water supply available for delivery to farmers during a period of years comparable to the 1937-1960 study period would be 96 percent of estimated requirements. The project water requirements and water supply are summarized in table 8.
CINCINGINGING DUCTORUSARI ONICINGING INCINGING INCINA	Harvey	r an	d Davie I	lesas		°.		Di	ry	Elk Valley	/	
Evaluatio area	n: Crop	: :ir :reo :	Net rigation quirement Inches	Projected net crop Acres	Net water supply required Acre-feet	:E1	valuati area	on: Crop	00 00 00	Net Irrigation equiremen Inches	Projecte t: net crop : Acres	:Net water d: supply P: required :Acre-feet
Ą	Alfalfa Clover & Gras	s	23.03	1253	2404.7		E	Alfalfa Clover & Gra	ass	20.92	107	186.5
	Pasture Corn Small Grain		21.34 16.45 13.13	633 270 492	1125.7 370.1 538.3			Pasture Corn Small Grain		19.30 14.45 12.25	15 24 24	24.1 28.9 24.5
. <u>B</u>	Beets Alfalfa Clover & Gras	s	16.08 23.03	375 658	502.5 1262.8		F	Alfalfa Clover & Gra	155	20.92	108	188.3
	Pasture Small Grain		21.34 13.13	326 390	579.7 426.7			Pasture Small Grain		19.30 12.25	12 47	19.3 48.0
С	Alfalfa Clover & Gras	s	23.03	148	284.0		G	Alfalfa Clover & Gra	155	20.92	123	214.4
	Pasture Corn Small Grain		21.34 16.45 13.13	241 77 77	428.6 105.6 84.3			Pasture Corn Small Grain		19.30 14.45 12.25	72 19 57	115.8 22.9 58.2
D	Alfalfa Clover & Gras	s	23.03	60	100.5		Н	Alfalfa Clover & Gra	1 55	20.92	88	153.4
	Pasture Small Grain		21.34 13.13	85 58	151.2 63.5			Pasture Small Grain		19.30 12.25	144 93	231.6 94.9
									ry C		Dry Elk Valley	
Total cro Estimated Total far Total gro Farm deli	p irrigation r on-farm water m delivery req ss irrigable a very requireme	requ lo luir lore	irement, sses, acr ement, ac age per irrig	acre-feet re-feet cre-feet gable acre,	, acre-feet			Harvey Mesa Areas A & B 7,210 6,405 13,615 4,680 2.91	Dav	vie Mesa as C & D 1,333 1,131 2,464 872 2.83	Areas E,F,G & H 1,468 1,315 2,783 1,045 2.66	Project <u>Tota1</u> 10,011 8,851 18,862 6,597 2.86
Percent o	project average f requirements	-leet per in age farm del	ive	gable a ery	cre 2.14 94		2. 11 96	100	2.14			

• 21 •

Table 8. - Projected crop distribution and seasonal consumptive use and water requirement estimates by evaluation areas, Silt project

Sources of Data

The soil survey has been generally interpreted in terms of land use and treatment as provided in the Technical Guide of the Bookcliff Soil Conservation District and the Irrigation Guide for Western Colorado Areas Below 7,000 Feet. Land classification surveys of the Bureau of Reclamation furnished supplemental information. Special site investigations, infiltration measurements, and other surveys, and direct inspection of field conditions and review with technicians familiar with the area, have furnished additional basic data. Farm plans and records of land leveling and farm irrigation development work accomplished with the assistance of Soil Conservation Service technicians assigned to the Bookcliff Soil Conservation District, have been used to obtain basic estimates of unit volumes and costs.

Development requirements have been related to the physical characteristics of the various soil mapping units on the project. Projected land development, as influenced by the soil and site characteristics, has been estimated by each capability unit and averaged by evaluation areas. Interspersed lands not included in the project have been excluded from the report. Cost estimates are based on the U. S. Department of Agriculture price projections of September 1957.

Farm Irrigation Development

Irrigation water supplies for the project area have been inadequate for the presently cultivated lands; hence, there has been no significant development of new lands in recent years. However, there has been a limited amount of additional development work accomplished since the original subjugation of the present farms. Most of this has been in connection with the stabilization of the present irrigation and has usually been restricted to: lands with better water rights; situations where specific opportunities existed for improving irrigation efficiencies and the effectiveness of the present water supply; or the improvement of particular problem areas where conditions resulted in unusual difficulty in obtaining satisfactory irrigation. In general, the principal improvements have consisted of adjustment of lengths of run to more nearly fit the requirement of the specific sites affected. the installation of limited drainage facilities, or to the leveling of uneven or undulating fields.

Under present water supply conditions, there has been little economic incentive for development of the land at a rate faster than has occurred. It is expected, therefore, that in the future without the project, conditions would remain little changed from the present and that additional land development would be largely restricted to the correction of specific problems of limited extent. With project development, the increased water supply and resulting better yields and improved economy will provide a basis for increased development. Complete irrigation systems and related development will be required for the projected new lands, and continued improvement in accordance with their site requirements can reasonably be expected for the presently cultivated lands and facilities. There are only limited areas of soils within the project having stony surfaces or profiles. These are all in capability class IV and limited to pasture and close growing crops. The estimated cost of rock and stone removal and the inherent limitations indicated by the capability classification indicate that these lands would be best restricted to hay and pasture use, for which no clearing would be required. Accordingly, no rock or stone removal has been estimated as an item of land development cost.

There are only limited data on which to base an estimate of the amount of increase in land and irrigation development that can be expected on the presently cultivated lands under the changed conditions assumed with project development. An approach has been made by estimating the requirements in accordance with the actual requirements for various capability units within or near the project area and interpolation of the remaining capability units at appropriate levels. A discounting factor based on estimates by local technicians of the requirements of the area and the cropping patterns and site factors, has been incorporated into the development estimates. Based on this procedure, estimates of average land development associated with project construction have been made and projected to the various evaluation areas. These are summarized in table 9.

Farm Drainage Development

There are considerable areas of wet or potentially wet lands within the project. Project plans include estimates for project drainage installations to provide drainage and drainage outlets for these lands. No on-farm drainage installations are included in the project drainage plans.

Detailed plans and cost estimates for on-farm drainage are not practical until observations are available of the behavior of the affected areas after the installation of the planned project drainage and an analysis of the relative economics of each site in the light of the soil capability and proposed usage. However, tentative estimates have been made of the extent of on-farm drainage installations and of the probable capital and annual costs assumed to result therefrom. The economic benefit studies assume the levels and costs of land, irrigation and drainage development outlined.

Cost estimates for on-farm drainage requirements have been made on the basis of soil types and site characteristics, with due regard to the probability that soils in certain capability units will be most economically used by retaining them in wet pasture condition. Permeability data has been furnished by the Bureau of Reclamation. Drainage requirements for specific areas have been based on the application of the Donnan procedure, and costs have been estimated by the extension of resulting typical unit costs to the areas mapped.

Findings

Estimates of development costs for project lands are based on an analysis of the physical requirements of the soils and site conditions. They are related to projected economic conditions and to the minimum requirements

Thom	IIni+	e e			Evaluat	ion Area	.S	NORONA CONCINCIANA CON	Carl 2002 and an another concard.
TCEN	Unic	: A	: B	: C	: D	: E	° F	: G	: H
Irrigable land	Acres	3,218	1,462	657	215	181	177	341	346
Dominant slopes	Percent	1-6	6-12	1-3	6-12	3-6	6-12	3-6	6-12
Dominant profile depth	Feet	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5
Dominant irrigation methods	Predomina	antly com	rrugatio	n for cl	lose grow	ing crop	s, furre	ow for ro	w crops
Maximum furrow stream size	GPM	12	Ц	10	2	10	5	10	5
Average farm irrigation efficiency	Percent	55	49	56	49	55	50	55	51
Peak period consumptive use rate	Ins./Day	.20	.20	。20	.20	٥20	。20	.20	°50
Average maximum length of runs	Feet	340	225	370	200	340	260	340	240
Average field ditch and lateral required	Ft./Acre	140	201	139	227	136	176	139	198
Weighted average land leveling earthwork required	Cy./Ac.	200	84	176	130	138	101	221	100
Farm irrigation structure, average cost per acre	Dollars	10.85	4.18	26 .2 4	16.55	10.85	4.18	19.11	4.18
Weighted average farm drainage, cost per acre	Dollars	12.16	1.53	6		8	-	6	e

Table 9. - Summary of land and irrigation development and farm drainage, by evaluation areas, Silt project

- 24 -

for land and water management at the levels expected under project conditions. Weighted average development cost estimates are summarized by evaluation areas in table 10.

Gindendanda		°		Cost Per Acre		
Eval	uation Area	: Clearing : : Clearing :	Leveling	: Farm : : Irrigation : : System :	Drainage :	Total
		88 88 Ca 03 88 88	an as as as as	Dollars -		~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
	A	1.20	36.24	15.43	12.16	65.03
	B	0.90	15.05	8.59	1.53	26.07
	с	-	31.70	34.83	-	66.53
	D	a see	23.44	28.93	8	52.37
	E	6 5 ·	24.86	14.18	65	39.04
	F		18.15	8.75		26.90
	G	2.63	39.82	27.32	æ	69.77
	н	4.56	18.00	15.36	50 20 20	37.92

Table 10. - Cost of land and irrigation development by evaluation areas, Silt project

Projected Agricultural Economy

Economic analysis of the proposed Silt irrigation project has two primary objectives: (1) An appraisal of direct agricultural benefits from project development; and (2) an appraisal of prospective farm incomes from representative sizes and types of farms considered most likely with proposed irrigation development. Both analyses will contribute to a general appraisal of the prospects for a successful and stable irrigated agricultural economy.

Procedures

An estimate of agricultural benefits and an appraisal of prospective farm incomes were derived by farm-budgeting procedures. Crop-production budgets were used in analyzing agricultural benefits; they were limited to costs and returns of crop and pasture production that would exist with a livestock economy. Farm-income budgets were used in analyzing prospective farm incomes by type of farm. In this analysis, costs and returns were carried through the livestock enterprises. The farm acreages, cropping systems, and crop yields established for appraisal of farm incomes were also used in budgeting for agricultural benefits.

The crop-production budgets consist of three basic elements: (1) The estimated quantity and value of crop and pasture production without and with project after full development of the farms; (2) the quantity and value of economic resources used in achieving the assumed level of production without and with project development (exclusive of water costs); and (3) the delay involved in achieving the increased level of production, which is accounted for by discounting procedures.

Farm-income budgets, representing costs and returns of all the enterprises anticipated for given farm types, used in estimating residual farm incomes. These incomes are available as compensation to farm operators and their families for their labor and management and for payment of water charges. The major elements involved in the analysis were: (1) The quantity of agricultural products produced for sale and their expected market values; (2) the quantity and value of resource inputs expended by project farmers to achieve the level of production anticipated (exclusive of water costs); and (3) allowance for the labor and management of the operator and family equivalent to estimated incomes that would be derived from alternative employment.

Source of Data

Numerous economic studies on irrigation development were relied upon for the economic and physical standards and the procedures used in these analyses. This background information was supplemented by specific information for the Silt project obtained from four major sources: (1) An economic survey of farms in the project area conducted during 1958 in cooperation with the Bureau of Reclamation; (2) material furnished by the Bureau of Reclamation; (3) economic analyses of other projects; 1/and (4) information furnished by Colorado State University personnel, local representatives of Federal and State agencies, irrigation companies, county officials and businessmen.

1/ Reappraisal by the USDA of Direct Agricultural Benefits for the Vernal Unit, Central Utah Project, and Paonia, Hammond, Smith Fork, Seedskadee, Florida, and Emery County projects, Upper Colorado River Storage Project

Commodity Price Projections

All prices used in estimating farm incomes, direct benefits, and associated costs are based on the September 1957 price projections of the U.S. Department of Agriculture. These projections assume "relatively high employment, a trend toward peace, continued population and economic growth, and a stable general price level."

The long-term projected index of prices received for all farm commodities is 235, base period 1910-14. A comparable index for prices paid, including interest, wages, and taxes is 265.

The price of rotation pasture used in the benefit analysis is derived from the long-term projected price of alfalfa. The computed price is based on the net income derived from alfalfa, adjusted for differences in costs of production and per acre yield of total digestible nutrients. The derived price results in the same net return per acre for alfalfa hay and rotation pasture.

Information obtained during the field survey showed that, historically, prices received locally for specific agricultural commodities marketed have been about the same as the State average prices. Projected prices for livestock and livestock products are based on data collected from the Denver and Grand Junction markets. All prices were adjusted for marketing costs and are net prices to farmers. Projected prices of crops, livestock, livestock products, and selected cost items for the Silt project are shown in table 11.

Farm Sizes

Irrigated acreage was 89 acres per farm on all farms surveyed and 121 acres on full-time farms. The economic survey included a sample of 24 full-time and 20 part-time farms.

Projected farm sizes for both with and without project are based on a familysize-farm concept in which the operator and his family furnish all the labor except during the crop harvesting season. Present sizes, current trends in size of farms, legal limitations of 160 acres of irrigable land per ownership, prospective farm incomes, and other factors were considered in establishing projected farm sizes.

Anticipated Crop Yields

Projected crop yields estimated for evaluation areas, without and with project development, are shown in tables 12 and 13. Production estimates are based on crop yields obtained in comparable areas, estimates by farmers in the project area and agricultural technicians familiar with the area, and other pertinent crop yield data. Yields reflect estimates of average managerial skill for farmers on the project.

Item	Unit	Price
Prices received 1/		Dollars
	T	20 (0
Alialia hay, baled 2/	lon	20.00
Corn Sliage 3/	do Bushel	1.35
Sugar beets	Top	11.10
Straw	do	10.00
		10,00
Butterfat (whole milk) 4/	Pound butterfat	1.06
Grade A	do	1.16
Grade C	do	.79
Cows (dairy)	Cwt.	12.30
Calves (day old dairy bulls)	Head	10.00
Calves (day old dairy heifers)	do	20.00
Cows (beef)	Cwt.	14.30
Calves (beef steers)	do	21.40
Calves (beef heifers)	do	19.10
Long yearlings (beef steers)	do	19.80
Long yearlings (beef heifers)	đo	17.40
Cull ewes	Cwt.	6.30
Lambs	do	21.75
Wool	Pound	.49
Prices paid		
Hired labor	Hour	1.00
Custom rages:		
Baling hay	Ton	5.00
Combining	Acre	5.50
Chopping corn	do	16.00
Thinning beets	đo	17.50
Hoeing beets (2 times) Pulling, topping, and loading	do	13.00
beets by machine	Ton	1.50
Hauling beets to dump	do	1.00
-		

Table 11.- Long-term projected prices received and selected prices paid, Silt project

1/ Net price received by farmers.

2/ Price in stack after shrinkage.

 $\frac{3}{2}$ Based on the price of alfalfa; 2.8 tons of corn silage equivalent to 1 ton of alfalfa.

4/Weighted average includes 73 percent grade A and 27 grade C at 3.5 test.

Based on price projections by the U. S. Department of Agriculture, September 1957.

	8	Evaluation area								
Crop	8 Unit	8 A	s B	8 E	8 F					
Alfalfa 1/	Ton	3.0	2.8	1.7	1.5					
Rotation pasture 1/	AUM	6.0	5.6	3.4	3.0					
Corn silage 1/	Ton	11.5								
Barley	Bu.	60.0	55.0	50.0	45.0					
Sugar beets 1/	Ton	13.5	ang ang ang ang							
Permanent pasture	AUM	3.0	3.0	2.0	2.0					

Table 12.- Projected crop yields, without project development, by evaluation areas, Silt project

1/ Fertilizer: Annual requirement (available) per unit of yield; alfalfa, 7.5 pounds phosphate per ton; rotation pasture, 3 pounds of phosphate and 6 pounds of nitrogen per AUM; corn silage, 5 pounds nitrogen per ton; sugar beets, 4.5 pounds phosphate and 5.5 pounds nitrogen per ton. Total phosphate required applied at time of seeding, nitrogen applied to pasture once each year.

Table 13.- Projected crop yields, with project development, by evaluation areas, Silt project

	8	0		Ev	aluati	on are	a		
Crop	: Unit	s A s	B	°C s	°D 8	E	8 F	G	° H
Alfalfa 1/	Ton	4.0	3.5	4.0	3.5	3.7	3.2	3.7	3.2
Rotation pasture 1/	AUM	8.0	7.0	8.0	7.0	7.4	6.4	7.4	6.4
Corn silage 1/	Ton	15.0		15.0		15.0	an an an an	15.0	
Barley	Bu.	70.0	60.0	70.0	60.0	70.0	60.0	70.0	60.0
Sugar beets 1/	Ton	16.0		16.0			an an an an	16.0	
Permanent pasture	AUM	3.0	3.0			2.0	2.0	ست سے میں تھا	

1/ Fertilizer: Annual requirement (available) per unit of yield; alfalfa, 7.5 pounds phosphate per ton; rotation pasture, 3 pounds of phosphate and 6 pounds of nitrogen per AUM; corn silage, 5 pounds nitrogen per ton: sugar beets, 4.5 pounds phosphate and 5.5 pounds nitrogen per ton. Total phosphate required applied at time of seeding, nitrogen applied to pasture twice each year.

Anticipated Cropping Systems

Climate, topography, distance to central markets, and opportunities for off-farm employment influence the kinds of crops that are commercially produced in the project area. Present irrigated crops consist of alfalfa and pasture on 74 percent of the cropland; small grains on 19 percent; corn silage on 4.5 percent; and sugar beets and potatoes on 2.5 percent. Development of the project is not expected to affect the kinds of crops produced.

Development of the project is expected to increase the percentage of the project area in rotation pasture, corn silage, and sugar beets and to decrease the percentage in alfalfa and small grains (table 14). On farms that do not grow sugar beets, a 7-year crop rotation is assumed, including 5 years of alfalfa or rotation pasture, and 2 years of grain and corn for silage or if topography was a limiting factor grain was substituted for corn silage in the rotation. A 9-year crop rotation was assumed on farms on which sugar beets were grown. Small grain was used as a nurse crop in the seeding of alfalfa and rotation pasture.

A 9-year crop rotation was assumed on evaluation areas A, C, and G. On evaluation areas B, D, E, F, and H a 7-year rotation was projected. Because of slopes, corn silage and sugar beets were not projected on evaluation areas B, D, F, and H.

	• Fyaluation areas •									
Crop	° A	0	B	° C	D s	E a	F	G	H	Project
AND DESCRIPTION OF THE OWNER	Acre	s A	cres	Acres	Acres	Acres	Acres	Acres	Acres	Acres
					With	out Pr	oject			
Alfalfa	1,21	4	597	a a a a a a	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	122	120	a a a a m	~~~~~	2,053
Rotation pasture	55	6	260	കുടുക്കുമായ			യമായയായ			816
Corn silage	24	7 -	ടായം അ	can can can can can		a a a a a a a a a a a	as as as as as			247
Barley	46	9	341	80 38 29 69 69	000 ang 000 ang 000 ang	48	47	80 90 90 90 90		905
Sugar beets	15	0 -				380 (39) (80) (30) (30)	ക യത്തെയാ		an an an an an	150
Range, nonirrigate	a 38	7	176	657	215			341	346	2,122
Farmstead, etc.	19	5	88			11	10			304
Total	3,21	81	,462	657	215	181	177	341	346	6,597
Permanent pasture	1/ 25	5	110			56	54			475
					W	ith Pr	oject			
Alfalfa	1,25	3	658	148	60	107	108	123	88	2,545
Rotation pasture	63	3	326	241	85	15	12	72	144	1,528
Corn silage	27	0 -		77		24	ക്ക അ അ അ അ	19	(a) (a) (a) (a) (a)	390
Barley	49	2	390	77	58	24	47	57	93	1,238
Sugar beets	37	5 -		75	an an an an an		ශ් ෂ ශ්ෂ කා කා කා	50		500
Farmstead, etc.	19	5	88	39	12	11	10	20	21	396
Total	3,21	81	,462	657	215	181	177	341	346	6,597
Permanent pasture	1/ 25	5	110	යා යා යා යා ක	as as as as as as	56	54	යන කා කා කා කා	NACE 2.56 (NO) (NO) (NO)	475

Table 14.- Projected cropping pattern, without and with project development, by evaluation areas, Silt project

1/ Nonproject lands projected to receive essentially the same supply of water without and with project development.

Direct Agricultural Benefits

A primary objective of the economic analysis is to estimate direct agricultural benefits. These benefits are defined as the value of crop and pasture production expected with project development over the value anticipated without the project, minus the value of additional farm inputs or associated costs required. The concepts and assumptions on the specific composition and value of nonproject resources or associated costs, as used in this report, are outlined below.

A basic assumption is that the national economy will operate at essentially full employment for the period of analysis. With this general assumption, alternative employment opportunities would be expected in the national economy for resources used in the development and operation of irrigated farms, including the labor and management skills of farm operators. Also, the projected levels of farm prices received and paid are higher than they would be with significant unemployment.

Estimates of direct agricultural benefits are based on crop-production budgets that account for the quantity and value of crop and pasture production expected after full development of project farms, and for the cost that will be incurred on the project lands in achieving the level of production expected. Estimates were made for each evaluation area and for the project area as a whole.

The cropping patterns assumed in the benefit analysis are the same as those used in the analysis of water requirements and prospective farm incomes.

Farms with adequate water supplies will require considerably more labor than farms with partial supplies. The additional operator and family labor required is considered as an economic cost in deriving benefits attributable to the project.

Labor and Management Charges

Labor for crop production on project lands will be required during the summer. Thus, the summer hired wage rate assumed in the analysis (\$1.00 per hour) was applied to operator and family labor in evaluating direct agricultural benefits from irrigation water. A management allowance or charge was made for the farm operators also. This amounts to 15 percent of the hired wage rate. Based on these rates and an allocation of 75 percent of the hours to the operator and 25 percent to the family, the hourly rate would be \$1.11.

Return to Land and Water

Summaries of the average value of crop production, annual production costs, and return to operator and family labor and management, land and water, without and with project development, are shown by evaluation areas in tables 15 and 16. Net income, cost of operator and family labor and management, and the weighted average increase in net income with project development by evaluation areas are shown in table 17. Deduction of all expenses and allowances except those for land and water leaves a weighted average net return to these resources ranging from \$34.71 per acre for evaluation area G to \$9.67 per acre for evaluation area B.

	00		00		E	valuati	on	areas		
Item	00	Unit	00	A	00	В	00	E	00	F
Total land		Acre		130.0		150.0		135.0		155.0
Alfalfa		do		48.8		61.3		91.0		105.0
Rotation pasture		do		22.4		26.7				
Corn silage		do		9.9				000 640 mar 040 620		an an an an an an
Barley		do		18.9		35.0		36.0		41.0
Sugar beets		do		6.0						
Idle		do		16.0		18.0				
Farmstead, etc.		do		8.0		9.0		8.0		9.0
Operator and family labor		Hour		1,158		1,396		1,058		1,236
Investment Buildings and improvement Machinery and equipment Other		Dollar do do do		9,224 1,455 6,718 1,051		8,905 1,435 6,440 1,030		8,776 1,386 6,440 950		8,880 1,451 6,440 989
Value of production		do		7,392		6,898		5,265		5,414
Production expenses $1/$		đo		4,057		3,439		2,917		3,133
Net crop income $2/$		do		3,335		3,459		2,348		2,281
Interest <u>3</u> /		đo		461		445		439		444
Net income 4/		do		2,874		3,014		1,909		1,837

Table 15.- Net income from crop production to operator and family labor and management, land, and water, without project development, by evaluation areas, Silt project

1/ Excluding interest, land and water development, and O&M.

 $\overline{2}$ /Return to operator and family labor and management, land and irrigation water.

3/ At 5 percent.

 $\frac{1}{4}$ Return to operator and family labor and management, land and irrigation water.

Based on price projections by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, September 1957.

					Contraction of the owner of the		Charles to the Color And State	and the second sec		-
	8	8		Ει	valuati	ion are	a			-
Item	Unit	8 A 8	B	°C a	D	e E s	F	G a	Н	-
Total land	Acre	130.0	150.0	135.0	155.0	135.0	155.0	140.0	160.0	
Alfalfa	do	50.6	67.5	30.6	43.0	80.0	94.5	48.5	40.5	
Rotation pasture	do	25.6	33.5	49.6	61.0	11.0	10.5	28.5	66.5	
Corn silage	do	10.9		15.9		18.0		7.5		
Barley	do	19.9	40.0	15.9	42.0	18.0	41.0	22.5	43.0	
Sugar beets	do	15.0		15.0		aito ano aito aito aito		25.0		
Farmstead, etc.	do	8.0	9.0	8.0	9.0	8.0	9.0	8.0	10.0	
			•							
Operator and family										
labor	Hour	1.627	1.862	1.501	1.784	1,729	1.982	1.764	1.777	
Investment	Dollar	9.602	9.247	9.415	8.891	10.477	9.622	9.486	8.755	
Buildings and im-		.,	,,	.,	,,,	,	.,	,,	-,	
provements	do	1.475	1.435	1.532	1.451	1.557	1.451	1.1.71	1.167	
Machinery and emiin-		-,+12	-,4))	-,//-	-,4/-	-,///	-,4/-	-,414	-,401	
ment	do	6 718	6 1.1.0	6 711	6 1.1.0	6 818	6 1.1.0	6 783	6 1.1.0	
Other	do	1 100	1 382	1 11.2	1 000	2 102	1 731	1 220	81.8	
UCITET	uu	1,409	1,502	1,142	1,000	2,102	1,1)1	1,227	040	
Volue of production	de	11 088	0 1.20	10 01.8	0 1.58	0 800	0 1.11	12 720	0 070	
value of production	45	11,900	9,430	12,240	9,450	9,090	9,411	13,129	9,010	
De luchier annour 1/	4.	r 11.4	2 095	r 719	2 002	1. 261.	1. 111	6 1.27	2 000	
Production expenses 1/	ao	5,440	3,905	5,110	3,993	4,304	4,111	0,431	3,959	
		1 -10	~ 11 ~	1 720	- 1/2		r	-		
Net crop income 2/	do	0,542	5,445	0,530	5,405	5,520	5,300	1,292	5,111	
		100	1 10	1.54		7-1	1.04	1 -1	1.00	
Interest 3/	do	480	463	471	445	524	401	474	438	
	1.20	1 -1-	1	1			1 01-	1 0.0	1 /	
Net income 4/	do	6,062	4,982	6,059	5,020	5,002	4,819	6,818	4,673	

Table 16.- Net income from crop production to operator and family labor and management, land, and water, with project development, by evaluation areas, Silt project

1/ Excluding interest, land and water development, and O&M.

 $\overline{2}$ /Return to operator and family labor and management, land and irrigation water.

3/ At 5 percent.

 $\frac{1}{4}$ Return to operator and family labor and management, land and irrigation water.

Based on price projections by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, September 1957.

Item	° ° Net income <u>1</u>	*Operator &:C * family * /* labor *	cost of operat & family labor <u>2</u> /	or: Net income 2	° Weighted /sfarm size:	Net income per acre 3	<pre>% Increased % net income % per acre /%with project</pre>
Evaluation a	rea Dollar	Hours	Dollar	Dollar	Acres	Dollar	Dollar
A (with) A (without)	6,062 2,874	1,627 1,158	1,806 1,285	4,256 1,589	130 130	32.74 12.22	20.52
B (with) B (without)	4,982 3,014	1,862 1,396	2,067 1,550	2,915 1,464	150 150	19.43 9.76	9.67
C (with)	6,059	1,501	1,666	4,393	135	32.54	32.54
D (with)	5,020	1,784	1,980	3,040	155	19.61	19.61
E (with) E (without)	5,002 1,909	1,729 1,058	1,919 1,174	3,083 735	135 135	22.84 5.44	17.40
F (with) F (without)	4,819 1,837	1,982 1,236	2,200 1,372	2,619 465	155 155	16.90 3.00	13.90
G (with)	6,818	1,764	1,958	4,860	140	34.71	34.71
H (with)	4,673	1,777	1,972	2,701	160	16.88	16.88

Table 17.- Summary: Weighted average increase in net income, with project development, by evaluation areas, Silt project

1/ Return to operator and family labor and management, land and water.

2/ At \$1.15 per hour for operator labor and management and \$1.00 per hour for family labor. Weighted average is based on 75 percent of hours by operator and 25 percent of hours by family.

3/ Net return to land and irrigation water.

42

Based on price projections by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, September 1957.

Land Development Costs

The acreage of each evaluation area, the projected land values and the additional cost of land and farm irrigation systems, and annual cost per acre are shown in table 18. Costs of farm buildings, machinery, fences, domestic water, and maintenance and replacement costs of the farm irrigation system are included as farm expenses in the budgets. The degree of development anticipated on land and farm irrigation systems for each evaluation area was considered in setting up man and machine requirements.

Table 18.- Estimated average annual additional cost per acre of irrigable land for land and land development, with project development, by evaluation areas, Silt project

	0	0		Eva	aluatio	on areas	3		
Item	: Unit	° A	B	°C :	° D	°E	s F	s G	° H
Land area $1/$	Acre	3,005	1,356	657	215	181	177	341	346
Land values Irrigated land Range, improved Range, unimproved	Dollar do do	200.00	190.00	15.00	15.00	115.00	100.00	25.00 15.00	25.00 15.00
Weighted average	do	177.98	168.93	15.00	15.00	115.00	100.00	23.36	23.82
Additional land in	mproveme	ent							
Land	Dollar	1.79	1.81	15.00	15.00		65 68 63 40 66 60 6 0	23.36	23.82
Land clearing	do	1.20	.90					2.63	4.56
Land leveling Farm irrigation	do	36.24	15.05	31.70	23.44	24.86	18.15	39.82	18.00
system	do	15.43	8.59	34.83	28.93	14.18	8.75	27.32	15.36
Drainage	do	12.16	1.53		ao 🛥 ao ao ao	CC 20 CO 20 CO 20 CO	ano caso ango cano saso ango		
Total	do	66.82	27.88	81.53	67.37	39.04	26.90	93.13	61.74
Annual cost									
Land 1/	Dollar	.09	.09	.76	.76			1.18	1.20
Land clearing 2/	do	.06	.05				~~~~~	.13	.23
Land leveling 2/ Farm irrigation	do	1.83	.76	1.60	1.18	1.25	.91	2.01	.91
system 3/	do	.85	.47	1.91	1.58	.78	.48	1.50	. 84
Drainage 3/	do	.67	.08			යන කට ගත කට කො			
Total _	do	3.50	1.45	4.27	3.52	2.03	1.39	4.82	3.18

1/ Excludes lands in the present pump area.

 $\frac{2}{\text{Land}}$, land clearing, and land leveling amortized over a 100-year period at 5 percent interest (factor .05038).

3/ Farm irrigation system and drainage amortzed over a 50-year period at 5 percent interest (factor .05478).

Based on price projections by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, September 1957. Projected additional investment in land, land improvements, and development of farm irrigation systems per irrigable acre, required with project development, for evaluation areas A through H, are \$66.82, \$27.88, \$81.53, \$67.37, \$39.04, \$26.90, \$93.13, and \$61.74, respectively. At 5 percent the annual amortized cost per acre for the total additional investment required would be \$3.50, \$1.45, \$4.27, \$3.52, \$2.03, \$1.39, \$4.82, and \$3.18.

Development Period

Benefits from the use of supplemental water would begin to accrue immediately after completion of the project. The 559 acres of nonirrigated land, which are in small, scattered tracts, are projected to be developed in conjunction with land already under irrigation. Development of the 1,559 acres of nonirrigated land, on which new farms are projected to be established is likely to proceed at a slower rate. Several years may elapse before the full level of benefits are attained. The assumption is made for the Silt project that a period of three years will be required before the full level of projected benefits are achieved on the presently irrigated and intermingled new lands, and five years will be required for lands on which new farms are projected. Project benefits are discounted accordingly.

Findings

Increased net income per acre with project development for evaluation areas A through H are \$20.52, \$9.67, \$32.54, \$19.61, \$17.40, \$13.90, \$34.71, and \$16.88, respectively (table 19). Annual amortized cost of additional land investment and development ranges from \$4.82 per acre for evaluation area G to \$1.39 for evaluation area F (table 18). Discount factors are based on three-and five-year development periods, an interest rate of 5 percent, and an evaluation period of 100 years.

The present annual equivalent values per acre of direct agricultural benefits for the eight evaluation areas are estimated at \$16.22, \$7.83, \$25.68, \$14.62, \$14.64, \$11.92, \$27.15, and \$12.45, respectively (table 19). The weighted average annual direct agricultural benefits for the 6,278 acres, except for those lands which presently have a full water supply from pumping, are \$15.56 per acre, or \$97,657 annually.

It was assumed that project lands which presently have a full water supply from pumping would have benefits equal to the savings in pumping costs minus abandonment losses for pumping equipment. Evaluation area A has 213 acres of pumplands and evaluation area B 106 acres. On the basis of present pumping costs, direct agricultural benefits from the 319 acres of pumplands are estimated at \$21.55 per acre annually, or \$6,874 for the total acreage.

The weighted average annual direct agricultural benefits are \$15.85 per acre or \$104,531 for the proposed project.

Evaluat	ion area:L	and area :	Increas income pro	sed net a e with a ject a	Amortize of addi land inv and deve	ed cost : tional : estment : lopment :	Direct	benefits	: : : Discount : factor 1/	: : Net d : benet	irect fits
		Acres	Per acre	Total	Per acre	Total	Per acre	Total		Per acre	Total
A	2/	3,005	\$20.52	\$61,663	\$3.50	\$10,518	\$17.02	\$51,145	<u>3</u> /.95271	\$16.22	\$48,726
В	2/	1,356	9.67	13,093	1.45	1,966	8.22	11,147	<u>3</u> /.95271	7.83	10,620
С	and and a	657	32.54	21,379	4.27	2,805	28.27	18,574	4/.90844	25.68	16,873
D		215	19.61	4,216	3.52	757	16.09	3,459	4/.90844	14.62	3,142
E	.) - 1 ⁴ 	181	17.40	3,149	2.03	367	15.37	2,782	<u>3</u> /.95271	14.74	2,650
F		177	13,90	2,460	1,39	246	12.51	2,214	<u>3</u> /.95271	11.92	2,110
G		341	34.71	11,836	4.82	1,644	29.89	10,192	<u>4</u> /.90844	27.15	9,226
н	1	346	16.88	5,841	3.18	1,100	13,70	4,741	4/.90844	12.45	4,310
Total		6,278	\$19.70	\$123,657	\$3.09	\$19,403	\$16.61	\$104,254	-	\$15.56	\$97,657
Present lands	pump- 2/	319								\$21.55	\$6,874
Project	total	6,597								\$15.85	\$104,531

Table 19.- Summary of estimated annual direct agricultural benefits, by evaluation areas, Silt project

1/ At 5 percent. Present annual equivalent value per \$1.00 of benefits accruing during a 100-year period. 2/ Benefits figured separately on 319 acres of land in evaluation areas A and B which presently have a full supply from pumping but will be included in the project. Of the 319 acres, 213 are in evaluation A and 106 in evaluation area B.

3/ Assumes a 3-year development period. 4/ Assumes a 5-year development period.

37

Based on price projections by the U. S. Department of Agriculture, September 1957.

Prospective Farm Incomes

Estimates of prospective farm incomes were made for several types and sizes of farms with the proposed project development. Farm incomes were estimated for grade A dairy, range beef, feeder calf, farm-flock of sheep, and cash-crop farms.

Budgets were developed for the following farm types and evaluation areas: range beef on evaluation areas A, B, E, and F; grade A dairy on evaluation areas A and C; feeder calves on evaluation areas A, B, and H; farm-flock of sheep on evaluation areas A, B, and G; and cash-crop farms on evaluation areas A and G.

Many kinds of input-output and price information are needed for farm budgets, among them labor requirements, machinery and building needs, land investment, and feed requirements. Published research in similar irrigated areas was relied upon. These data were supplemented by information collected from farmers in the project and nearby areas.

Livestock Enterprises and Production Rates

Sales of livestock and livestock products likely will be the predominant sources of income on the project. Project development probably will effect no basic change in the livestock economy of the area, but will however, result in an increase in feed crops and pasture available for livestock. Because of the increased feed supply, numbers of dairy cows, farm sheep, and feeder calves will be increased. It is anticipated also that development of the project will increase the acreage of sugar beets and the number of cash-crop farms in the area.

A production rate of 325 pounds of butterfat per dairy cow is assumed. Feeder steers are assumed to gain 390 pounds and feeder heifers 375 pounds in 11 months. Farm ewes are assumed to produce a 90-pound grass-fat lamb and 10 pounds of wool each. Beef cows are assumed to produce calves averaging 393 pounds.

Types of Farms

Projected types of farms with project development are based on the future market for each agricultural commodity, existing types of farms on the project, and available Federal grazing permits. Among the farms surveyed, four types predominated--range beef, feeder calf, sheep, and cash-crop. The feeder calf and sheep farms utilized most of the forage and grain crops produced. Cash-crop farms produced primarily grain, sugar beets, and alfalfa for sale.

Brief descriptions of the projected farm types follow:

Range beef - Part of the feed supply is furnished by Federal grazing permits, which limit the number of breeding cows to the equivalent of twelve 134-cow herds. The irrigated land serves as a winter feed base for the breeding herd and summer pasturage for yearlings. Sale of calves and grass-fat long yearlings is the principal source of income. Development of the project is not expected to result in an increase in the number of beef farms with range permits, or in the number of cows in the breeding herds on these farms.

Grade A dairy - The analysis of dairy enterprises is based on 45 cows per farm. Labor requirements are near maximum for a familysize operation. Seventy-three percent of the milk produced is sold at a grade A price and 27 percent at a grade C price. All milk will be produced under grade A standards and sold to grade A plants.

Feeder calf - Calves are purchased in fall from owners of range herds, wintered and grazed on irrigated pasture the following summer and sold as grass-fat long yearlings in the fall. The size of herd used in the analysis was 150 head.

Farm-flock sheep - Farm flocks consist of 350 mature ewes per farm. sale of grass-fat lambs and wool is the principal source of income.

Cash-crop farms - Alfalfa hay and small grains are produced and sold to ranchers and dairymen on the project and surrounding areas. Sugar beets are also produced on these farms.

Captial Requirements

Projected capital requirements on several farm types on the Silt project are shown in table 20. Capital requirements on beef farms vary from \$77,500 to \$88,000. Grade A dairy farms require capital ranging from \$67,000 to \$89,000. Capital needs for feeder calf operations vary from \$48,500 to \$72,000. Capital needed for sheep farms varies from \$45,000 to \$68,000. Needs on cash-crop farms range from \$36,500 to \$55,000. These figures represent the cost of new structures and equipment and assume a farm residence value of \$10,000.

Farmers who are presently on the Silt project have most of the capital items needed, with the possible exception of additional land development and expansion of livestock numbers. New farms will require most of the capital items listed except for the investment shown for present land and water supply. New farms will require approximately \$20,000 less capital than present farms because of the large investment in present water supply.

Return to Operator and Family Labor and Management

An appraisal of the adequacy of projected farm incomes requires a guide or standard in terms of returns to operator and family labor and management. An average return of \$3,100 for essentially full-time family-type farms has been considered an acceptable minimum. This amount is used as a general guide in appraising the adequacy of prospective farm incomes. For farms with greater or less than average operator and family labor inputs, capital requirements, or managerial skills, this return would vary accordingly. The farm dwelling and domestic water supply system are not included as farm expenses or farm receipts in the budget analysis. Table 20.- Capital investment for illustrative farm types, with project development, by evaluation areas, Silt project

Item	° ° Unit	Range : beef :	Grade A dairy	: :C as h crop	SFeedersF calves:	arm-flock sheep
Evaluation area		A	A i	A i	В	В
Irrigable land (project)	Acre	130	130	130	150	150
Irrigable permanent pasture (nonproject)	đo	15	15		11	11
Land and present water supply	Dollar	32,619	32,619	31,494	30,086	30,086
Farm buildings and improve- ments 1/ Equipment 1/ Livestock	do do do	5,032 11,675 28,825	14,562 18,048 13,725	2,283 11,245	4,540 11,313 12,750	7,463 11,313 6,420
Total farm	do	78,151	78,954	45,022	58,689	55,282
Residence 2/ Total needs	do do	10,000 88,151	10,000 88,954	10,000 55,022	10,000 68,689	10,000 65,282

1/ Cost of new structures and equipment.

 $\overline{2}$ / Value assumed for purposes of approximately total capital requirements.

Based on price projections by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, September 1957.

The \$3,100 does not necessarily represent the total income received by the farm family from operation of the farm business. In addition to return for labor and management, the farm family will receive a return on equity owned in the farm business. Return on investment owned by the operator, in addition to returns for labor and management, would be available for family living expenses, including income and social security taxes, savings, and retirement of debt.

Findings

Net incomes for the various sizes and types of farms, from tables 21A, 21B, 21C, and 21D are summarized below:

Evaluation area	Range beef	Grade A dairy	Feeder	Farm-flock sheep	Cash crop
A	\$4,297	\$7,665	\$6,199	\$3,903	\$5,448
В	4,448		4,457	3,934	
С		8,606	7,180		
D			5,412		
E	5,257				
F	5,010				
G				6,563	6.512
H			5,094	4,576	

- 40

Table 21A .- Projected agricultural incomes and selected sizes and organizational items for farm budgets by type of farm, evaluation area A, Silt project

	8	8	EN	aluation	area A	
	8	: Range	Grade A	A:Feeder:F	arm-floc	k s
Item	: Unit	s beef :	dairy	«calves»	sheep	«Cash crop
Total land	Acre	145.0	145.0	145.0	145.0	130.0
Alfalfa	do	71.5	50.0	21.0	40.0	69.0
Rotation pasture	do	15.5	37.0	48.0	47.0	
Corn silage	do	17.5	17.5	14.0	17.5	
Barley	do	17.5	17.5	14.0	17.5	28.0
Sugar beets	do	and cos (cos 1		25.0		25.0
Farmstead, etc.	do	8.0	8.0	8.0	8.0	8.0
Permanent pasture (non-						
project lands)	do	15.0	15.0	15.0	15.0	
		1.01				
Productive livestock	Number	134	45	150	350	
Operator and family labor	Hour	3,217	4,451	2,229	2,595	1,836
Investment	Dollar	73,463	61,491	56,196	52,063	41,076
Land	do	32,619	32,619	32,619	32,619	31,494
Buildings and improvements	do	3,019	8,737	2,776	4,513	1,370
Machinery	do	7,005	10,829	7,166	7,005	6,747
Livestock	do	28,825	13,725	12,750	6,420	
Other	do	1,995	1,587	885	1,506	1,465
Farm receipts	Dollar	11, 932	20 216	16.855	11.984	13 500
Crop sales	do	2,491	2.861	6.716	2.326	13,100
Livestock and products	do	12.341	17.149	10.009	9,558	
Other	do	100	206	100	100	100
				200		100
Farm expenses $1/$	Dollar	6,962	9,176	7,846	5,478	5,998
Farm income 2/	Dollar	7,970	11,040	9,009	6,506	7,502
Interest on investment 3/	Dollar	3,673	3,375	2,810	2,603	2,054
		1 000		1		2.110
Adjusted farm income 4/	Dollar	4,297	7,665	6,199	3,903	5,448

1/ Does not include interest on capital or annual water costs, including 0&M.

2/ Return to operator and family labor and management, capital and irrigation water.

3/ At 5 percent, excluding investment in project water. 4/ Return to operator and family labor and management, project irrigation water, and total O&M charges.

Based on price projections by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, September 1957.

Table 21B.- Projected agricultural incomes and selected sizes and organizational items for farm budgets by type of farm, evaluation areas B and C, Silt project

	8	rea B	: Evaluat:	ion area C		
	:	: Range :	Feeder		: Grade A	: Feeder
Item	: Unit	: beef	calves	Sheep	: dairy	: calves
Total land	Acre	161,0	161.0	161.0	135.0	135.0
Alfalfa	do	82.0	45.0	46.0	48.0	19.0
Rotation pasture	do	19.0	56.0	55.0	43.0	54.0
Corn silage	do		an an an an an an		18.0	14.5
Barley	do	40.0	40.0	40.0	18.0	14.5
Sugar beets	do	000 00 00 0 1 00 000				25.0
Farmstead, etc.	do	9.0	9.0	9.0	8.0	8.0
Permanent pasture (non-						
project lands)	do	11.0	11.0	. 11.0		400 CB CD CB CB CB 640
Productive livestock	Number	13/1	150	350	15	150
Operator and family labor	Hour	3.412	2.535	2.89/1	1,111	2,209
Investment	Dollar	70.179	53.335	18.851	15.806	31,503
Land	do	30.086	30.086	30.086	11,007	11,007
Buildings and improvements	do	2.93/1	2.72/	1,178	8,683	2,722
Machinery	do	6.788	6.788	6.788	10,829	7,166
Livestock	do	28.825	12.750	6.120	13,725	12,750
Other	do	1,546	987	1,082	1,562	858
Farm receipts	Dollar	14,849	12,756	11,670	20,147	16,891
Crop sales	do	2,408	2,647	2,012	2,792	6,782
Livestock and products	do	12,341	10,009	9,558	17,149	10,009
Other	do	100	100	100	206	100
Farm expenses 1/	Dollar	6,892	5,632	5,293	9,251	7,986
Form income 2/	Deller	7 057	7 1 21.	6 277	10 806	8 005
Tarm meone 2/	Dollar	1,751	1,124	0,511	10,090	0,905
Interest on investment 3/	Dollar	3,509	2,667	2,443	2,290	1,725
Adjusted farm income 4/	Dollar	4,448	4,457	3,934	8,606	7,180

1/ Does not include interest on capital or annual water costs, including O&M.

2/ Return to operator and family labor and management, capital and irrigation water.

3/ At 5 percent, excluding investment in project water.

4/ Return to operator and family labor and management, project irrigation water, and total O&M charges.

Based on price projections by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, September 1957.

- 42 -

Table	21C	Projec	cted	agric	cultural	ind	comes	and	i selec	cted	sizes	and	organ	ni za	tions	11
		items	for	farm	budgets	by	type	of	farm,	eva	luation	area	as D	, E,	and	
		F, Sil	lt pi	roject	t											

	°	: Evaluation	: Evaluation : area E	Evaluation
Item	: Unit	: Feeder calves	: Range beef	Range beef
Total land Alfalfa	Acre do	155.0 43.0	179.0 80.0	205.0 94.5
Rotation pasture Corn silage Barley	do do do	61.0 42.0	11.0 18.0 18.0	10.5 41.0
Sugar beets Farmstead, etc. Permanent pasture (non- project lands)	do do do	•••••••••••••• 9.0	8.0 44.0	9.0 50.0
Productive livestock Operator and family labor Investment Land Buildings and improvements Machinery Livestock Other	Number Hour Dollar do do do do	150 2,537 33,631 10,442 2,692 6,788 12,750 959	134 3,285 64,085 22,995 3,208 7,005 28,825 2,052	134 3,458 62,586 22,170 3,172 6,788 28,825 1,631
Farm receipts Crop sales Livestock and products Other	Dollar do do do	12,897 2,788 10,009 100	15,213 2,772 12,341 100	14,909 2,468 12,341 100
Farm expenses 1/	Dollar	5,803	6,752	6,770
Farm income 2/	Dollar	7,094	8,461	8,139
Interest on investment 3/	Dollar	1,682	3,204	3,129
Adjusted farm income 4/	Dollar	5,412	5,257	5,010

1/ Does not include interest on capital or annual water costs, including O&M.

2/ Return to operator and family labor and management, capital and irrigation water.

3/ At 5 percent, excluding investment in project water.

 $\frac{1}{4}$ Return to operator and family labor and management, project irrigation water, and total O&M charges.

Based on price projections by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, September 1957.

Table	21D	Proje	cted	agric	cultural	ind	comes	and	d seled	cted	sizes	and	orga	niza	tion	nal
		items	for	farm	budgets	by	type	of	farm,	eval	luation	are	as C	and	Η,	
		Silt 1	proje	ect												

	:	:Evaluat	ion area	: Evaluation : H	area
Item	: Unit	: Sheep :	Cash crop	Feeder calve	s: Sheep
Total land Alfalfa Rotation pasture	Acre do do	140.0 20.0 57.0	140.0 77.0	160.0 40.0 67.0	160.0 41.0 66.0
Barley Sugar beets Farmstead, etc. Permanent pasture (non- project land)	do do do do	15.0 15.0 25.0 8.0	30.0 25.0 8.0	<u>43.0</u> 10.0	43.0
Productive livestock Operator and family labor Investment Land Buildings and improvements Machinery Livestock Other	Number Hour Dollar do do do do do	350 2,779 32,107 13,038 4,049 7,166 6,420 1,434	1,909 22,778 13,038 1,403 6,747 1,590	150 2,525 32,972 9,878 2,719 6,788 12,750 837	350 2,897 28,505 9,878 4,470 6,788 6,420 949
Farm receipts Crop sales Livestock and products Other	Dollar do do do	15,919 6,261 9,558 100	13,838 13,738 100	12,967 2,858 10,009 100	11,880 2,222 9,558 100
Farm expenses 1/	Dollar	7,751	6,187	6,224	5,879
Farm income 2/	Dollar	8,168	7,651	6,743	6,001
Interest on investment 3/	Dollar	1,605	1,139	1,649	1,425
Adjusted farm income 4/	Dollar	6,563	6,512	5,094	4,576

1/ Does not include interest on capital or annual water costs, including 08M.

2/ Return to operator and family labor and management, capital and irrigation water.

3/ At 5 percent, excluding investment in project water. 4/ Return to operator and family labor and management, project irrigation water, and total O&M charges.

Based on price projections by the U. S. Department of Agriculture, September 1957.

These incomes are available as return to the operator and his family for their management and labor, project irrigation water, and for payment of all operation and maintenance costs. Many farms will have larger or smaller net incomes than those shown here. The conclusion from this analysis is that the income prospects for these fully developed farms would be adequate to provide a reasonably satisfactory level of living and to permit some payment for costs of irrigation water.

Relationship Between Farm-Income and Crop-Production Budgets

Two types of budgets were used in the economic analyses of this project. Farm-income budgets were used in appraising the prospects for a successful, stable agriculture and also as a basis for the crop-production budgets used in estimating direct agricultural benefits. Cropping patterns assumed in the benefit analysis are the same as those used in the analysis of prospective farm incomes; thus they reflect the need for hay, pasture, and other feed crops in livestock enterprises. In the benefit analysis it was assumed that forage crops would be purchased by the livestock enterprises. This assumption also governed estimates of forage prices and cropping patterns.

The estimate of direct agricultural benefits was based on crop-production budgets. The results are shown below by evaluation areas together with benefit estimates based on farm-income budgets. Costs per unit of inputs used in production were the same in the farm-income and crop-production budgets. Distribution of farm types by acreage assumed in both analysis are as follows: (1) With the project--range beef, 26 percent; grade A dairy, 12 percent; feeder calves, 28 percent; farm-flock sheep, 16 percent; and cash crop, 18 percent; (2) Without the project--range beef, 35 percent; grade A dairy, 10 percent; feeder calves, 21 percent; farm-flock sheep, 14 percent; and cash crop, 20 percent. Estimates of net direct agricultural benefits are \$15.85 per acre for the crop-production budgets and \$16.61 per acre for the farm-income budgets.

Crop-production budgets	Farm-income budgets
\$16.22	\$17.17
7.83	8.27
25.68	28.81
14.62	15.08
14.64	17.17
11.92	13.60
27.15	25.39
12.45	10.28
21.55 15.85	21.55 16.61
	Crop-production budgets \$16.22 7.83 25.68 14.62 14.64 11.92 27.15 12.45 21.55 15.85



GPO 844324

CHAPTER III

RELATIONSHIP OF THE SILT PARTICIPATING PROJECT TO THE MANAGEMENT, PROTECTION AND USE OF THE WHITE RIVER NATIONAL FOREST AND NONFEDERAL FOREST RESOURCES

Introduction

This section of the report considers the impact of the Silt Participating Project on the White River National Forest and on nonfederal forest and forest-range lands. It is aimed at determining what facilities, resources, and uses will be affected and at evaluating these effects.

Area Concerned

The proposed project features including Rifle Gap Dam and Reservoir, Grass Valley Canal, and Davie Ditch are entirely outside the exterior boundary of the White River National Forest. The proposed reservoir is at a distance of seven to eight miles from the national forest boundary. The watershed area above the dam on Rifle Creek is about 130 square miles of which 35 percent is national forest land, 43 percent public domain, and 22 percent privately owned land. There are no forested lands, either federally or privately owned, within the 300 acre flowage area of the reservoir. See map attached.

Present Status and Current Use

Existing Facilities

Project construction and operation will not affect any existing Forest Service developments, improvements, or services now provided.

Current Management

The national forest area involved within the watershed is under administration and management which is compatible with the proposed project.

Current Use

The watershed is used primarily for growing timber and forage, and for water production, recreation and wildlife habitat.

Annual timber cut, all from national forest lands within the watershed, has averaged approximately 500,000 board feet over the past five years, with a minimum stumpage value of \$3,300 per year.

On the national forest, 16 permittees graze 1,150 cattle and horses and 3,100 sheep, for a total of 5,050 animal unit months. Receipts from this use amounted to \$2,755 in 1958. Private and public domain lands are also grazed but at different times of the year.

Recreation use on national forest lands within the watershed is moderate; it is estimated the use for hunting, fishing, camping, picnicking and sightseeing has risen to 7,800 mandays annually. Heavy recreation use occurs on a scenic section of East Rifle Creek between the national forest boundary and the reservoir site. This is the Rifle Mountain Park, an area maintained by the City of Rifle for picnicking, camping, fishing and sight-seeing.

One reservoir, 3 ditches, 15 stockwater ponds, 5 pastures and cabins, one resort, and one summer home are authorized under special use permits on national forest lands within the watershed. These will not be affected by the project.

At present, there are no Forest Service rights-of-way, or withdrawals within the area.

There is very little mining activity, including oil and gas leasing within the area. There are some mining claims, but little or no development work has been done.

Estimated Future Status Without Project Developments

Timber harvest will continue at about the present rate on national forest lands. There will be no significant amount of cutting on nonfederal forest lands.

Adjustments in grazing use on the national forest will be continued to bring stocking and actual use into agreement with carrying capacities and proper use of the range. This action will provide better protection of the project watershed.

The trend of increasing recreation use will continue. An estimate of 35 percent increase in the next five years is conservative.

The forest and forest-range lands in other Federal and private ownerships will continue to be used for grazing, forestry, wildlife, and recreation purposes.

Impacts of Project Construction and Operation on the National Forest (Estimated Future Use With the Project Development)

Construction and operation of this project will have no significant effect upon general administration, management, and protection of the Rifle Ranger District, White River National Forest.

General Administration

The project will not require any change in principles or objectives of administration or management. No changes or additions will be necessary in forest improvements needed for administration or services now provided on the national forest.

Protection

No additional improvements for fire prevention or control will be needed.

Resource Use and Development

The proposed Rifle Gap Reservoir will attract visitors for picnicking, boating, and fishing. Some of this increased recreational use will probably also be extended to national forest lands. However, this increased use is not expected to be heavy and costs of preparing or extending recreational area plans will not be significant.

There will be no conflicts with forest areas such as wilderness, research, or other special areas.

Losses or Benefits to Resource Values

The project will have no effects on forest resource volumes or values.

Impacts on Nonfederal Forest and Forest-Range Lands

Construction and operation of this project will have no significant effect upon nonfederal forest and forest-range lands. Flooding of the privately owned ranch lands will not affect any grazing permits or grazing use of national forest lands. The forest-based economy will not be affected. Recreational use, including boating and picnicking, will occur on and around the reservoir and will contribute to the local economy.

Summary and Findings

- 1. The proposed Rifle Gap Dam, Reservoir, Canals, and Ditches are outside the boundary of the White River National Forest.
- 2. As far as can be foreseen at this time, the project will not impair or affect any existing facility or service on national forest lands.
- There will be no appreciable losses or gains in resource values now provided by forest and forest-range lands of national forest or nonfederal ownerships.



CHAPTER IV

RELATIONSHIP OF WATERSHED CONDITIONS TO THE SILT PROJECT

Watershed conditions covered in this report are common to most irrigation projects. They do not materially affect feasibility of the project. However, improvement of watershed conditions will extend the life of the project and reduce operating difficulties and maintenance expenses. These conditions are pointed out here so local, state and federal agencies which deal with watershed lands can orient their programs to the solution of these problems.

Location and Size

The watershed affecting the Silt project is northeast of the town of Rifle in Garfield County, Colorado. The watershed is bounded on the west by the Grand Hogback, on the north by the White River drainage divide, on the east by the ridge between East Rifle Creek and Elk Creek, and on the south by U. S. Highway 6-24 (see map). There are about 10 square miles on the Elk Creek drainage east and north of Harvey Gap Reservoir included because it contains project lands.

West Rifle, Middle Rifle and East Rifle Creeks are the main streams in the watershed. The watershed is comprised of 112,000 acres, or 175 square miles, and is divided into three subwatersheds as shown in table 22.

Subwatershed number	Drainages	Square miles
1	Above Rifle Gap Reservoir	130
2	Area including project land and facilities draining south from Grand Hogback or through Harvey Gap Reservoir	35
3	That area in Dry Elk Valley above Harvey Gap Reservoir that drains into Elk Creek	_10
Total		175

Table 22. - Subwatersheds, Silt project

Watershed Characteristics

Topography and Geology

West Rifle, Middle Rifle and East Rifle Creeks make up the triangular shaped watershed that drains into the reservoir proper. Elevation ranges from about 5,800 feet at the confluence of the creeks, to about 9,200 feet on the northwest and northeast summit lands. A large, gently rolling table land characterizes the upper part. Stream canyons dissect the area, becoming steep and broken at lower elevations. The remainder of the watershed comprises those lands lying south of the Grand Hogback to the Cactus Valley Canal north of Highway 6-24 and the west portion of Dry Elk Valley north of Harvey Gap Reservoir.

Thick beds of Pennsylvanian Age limestone characterize the upper watershed. Sandstones and shales (mostly Permian formations), dominate the eastern and southern portion. Mancos shale outcrops follow West Rifle Creek to the head and make up a sizable area in the southeast corner of the watershed. Dakota and Jurasic sandstone and shale lies above the Mancos and occurs in the same area at slightly higher elevations. The Grand Hogback (Mesa Verde Age), flanks the west side of the watershed and divides the project land between Dry Elk Valley and Harvey Mesa.

Valley floors are generally narrow. Near the reservoir pool area and for short distances up West Rifle and East Rifle Creeks, alluvial bottoms are wide enough to cultivate. The alluvial soils range from loam to clay loam and are derived from reworked sandstone and shale. The Harvey Mesa area consists of wind-lain and alluvial soils overlying Wasatch shales and sandstone. Dry Elk Valley is a small upland valley of reworked loam and clay soil which runs eastward from Harvey Gap Reservoir.

Precipitation and Runoff

Annual precipitation varies from about eleven inches on the project's irrigated lands to nearly thirty inches in the higher mountain areas. Approximately fifty percent of the precipitation is received as snow in the winter. June is the driest month. Some high-intensity rainstorms occur in July, August and September.

Peak streamflows can be expected from snowmelt during April and May, and from high intensity rains in July, August and September.

Vegetative Cover

Vegetative cover for the watershed, by principal type, is shown in table 23.

Туре	Square miles
Conifer timber	5
Aspen	20
Oakbrush	40
Other mountain brush	20
Sagebrush	20
Grass	23
Pinon juniper	<u>30</u>
Subtotal	158
Naturally barren	4
Cultivated land	13
Tota1	175

Table 23. - Vegetative types, watershed area, Silt project

Soils and Erosion

Drainages are characterized by steep slopes with a thin soil cover. Deeper soil is found in the narrow valley bottoms of alluvial deposits and of the upper park areas. The main streams have moderate gradients while the feeder tributaries are steeper. Lands with poor and very poor vegetative conditions are losing soil.

Upper elevation zones have good vegetative cover with practically no erosion except for roads, trails and a stock driveway. In East Rifle Creek and its tributaries, many inactive beaver ponds are deteriorating and releasing the accumulated sediment.

There is an intermediate brush zone type, predominantly oak, which has deep soils, steep slopes, and slight erosion. Most of the lower elevation zones are classified as wild lands having raw, highly erosive soils on steep slopes with a sparse cover of pinon and juniper.

Valley floors above the reservoir site have been deeply gullied. Erosion at the present time is active on all meandering sections of these gullies; however, some sections appear to be in the process of stabilization. Most of these areas are privately owned and the land use is dry and irrigated farming. Improper use and disposal of irrigation water continues to aggravate the problem.

Land Use

A major portion of the upper watershed is federally owned and is used for



grazing of sheep, cattle, and big game animals. Timber production, wildlife, and recreation are other uses of this area. Lower elevations are about equally divided between privately owned land and public domain. About one-fourth of the privately owned land is irrigated. A very small percentage of land is being used for dry farming. Nearly three-fourths of the area is used for grazing by domestic livestock and big game animals.

Mining and oil explorations are being conducted within the watershed area. If these explorations lead to development of mineral and oil resources, watershed conditions will be affected.

Land Ownership

Land ownership is shown in table 24.

Table 24. - Land ownership, watershed area, Silt project

Class of ownership	Square miles	Percent of total
Federal land		
Public domain National forest land	65 45	37 26
Private	65	_37
Total	175	100

Watershed Problems

Subwatershed No. 1 (The area above the Rifle Gap Dam Site)

Sediment which may be carried into the reservoir by the major drainages is the most significant problem in this subwatershed.

Contributing factors to the sedimentation problem are: (1) Erosion of the Mancos shale areas, (2) sheet erosion where proper grazing use and distribution are not being practiced, (3) farming practices on lands near the severely gullied areas on the lower drainages, (4) roads, trails, driveways, drainages and recreation use, (5) loss of protective cover by fire, (6) abandoned beaver dams that break and contribute accumulated soil material to the stream.

Subwatersheds No. 2 and 3 (That portion east and south of the Rifle Gap Reservoir including the project irrigated lands)

Significant watershed problems in this area are flood water and sediment

that are carried into the irrigation systems. Factors aggravating these conditions are the erosive types of soils, steep sparsely vegetated slopes, and the occurrence of thunderstorms and rapidly melting snow.

Land Treatment

Land treatment measures that will help to solve these watershed problems are listed in table 25.

Table 25. - Land treatment, Silt project watershed

		Estimated Amounts by Land Ownership 1/		
Treatment :	Unit	Private	: Bureau o	f : National
:		: Lands	: Land Mgt	Forest Lands
Proper use of range resource				MONCHIQUE (MONONCHICH CHICH CH
A. Domestic livestock B. Big game	Acres Acres	10,000 28,700	10,000 41,600	4,000 28,800
Stockwater Development	Number	30	25	10
Gully Control (Erosion control dams)	Number	130	300	
Irrigated Land Practices	Acres	12,900		
Fences for Grazing Control	Miles	10	15	20
Brush and Weed Control	Acres	3,000	1,000	4,000
Range Reseeding	Acres	1,000	750	
Relocation, betterment and maintenance of roads, trails, and stock driveways				
a. Roads b. Trails c. Driveways	Miles Miles Miles	20 3	35 10 3	30 5 7
Proper beaver management	Mile o Strea	f m		7
Fire Protection	Acres	(A11	ownerships	- total 112,000)

1/ Estimates prepared by Soil Conservation Service, Bureau of Land Management and Forest Service.
Federal Lands

National Forest Lands

Protection and conservation measures on national forest lands can be accomplished by proper land use and proper management of all resources. The greater amount of protection will be accomplished through proper management of domestic livestock and big game. Grazing adjustments of domestic livestock and big game will be made in accordance with range analysis surveys.

Beaver management plans are in the process of preparation in cooperation with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and the Colorado Game and Fish Department. Upon completion of this plan, an action program will be initiated to bring the population of beaver into balance with the resources and watershed requirements.

The Forest Service is in the process of preparing a multiple use land management plan for the Rifle Ranger District, which includes the watershed area. This plan when completed will provide direction and policy for proper land management within the watershed.

Location of roads, trails and stock driveways within the national forest should be given careful consideration to minimize accelerated erosion.

Public Domain

The greater portion of public domain lands are in the intermediate and lower elevation zones. The lands in the intermediate zone are predominantly used for grazing of livestock by operators of adjoining private lands. The Bureau of Land Management will complete range analysis studies soon. Many small erosion control dams are being planned in gullies in this area.

Lands in the lower elevation zones are wild lands with such highly erosive soil, steep slopes and sparse cover, that very little can be done for improvement. Lands in the project area which are below these wild lands will need to be protected from flooding and deposition. Grazing-use adjustments will be made wherever necessary to provide watershed protection.

Private Land

The Soil Conservation Service, through the Bookcliff Soil Conservation District, has assisted in the planning and installation of conservation treatment in the area. This treatment includes improvement of irrigation systems, land leveling and drainage on irrigated lands within farm and ranch units. Treatment on rangelands has not been extensive. Range practices that have been installed are principally stockwater developments, grass management, and small acreages of range seeding.

Many of the farms or ranches within the area have both irrigated and rangelands within their units. The application of conservation work has been somewhat limited due to deficient irrigation water and a low financial return from farm and ranch operations. About one-third of the landowners within the area have signed cooperative agreements with the Bookcliff Conservation District. Soil Conservation Service technicians have worked with ditch companies and water users in planning and application of irrigation improvements. Much conservation and improvement work remains to be done. As the economic conditions of the area improve, the conservation activities will accelerate.

Flood Prevention Structural Measures

The high and intermediate elevation zones do not pose any general flood problems to the project. Due to this situation no large flood control structures are required. Wherever critical areas do exist, improved management and use, plus related measures such as fencing, revegetation and small structures, will correct erosion problems.

The lower elevation zone has steep slopes, raw soils and sparse vegetation. Flood prevention structures will be ineffective under these conditions. The amount of flood water will be small due to short slopes and low rainfall.

Canals serving project lands will be affected by runoff from lands in this lower elevation zone. One shale area above a reach of the proposed Davie Ditch is quite critical. Ditch and canal design should provide protection from runoff from these lands.

Irrigation Aspects

Irrigated lands of the project are interspersed between natural drainageways through the project. Most of these drainageways are well channelized and will contain most flood flows. There will be some bank cutting along edges of cultivated fields that will need attention. The installation of efficient farm irrigation systems, improved irrigation water management and proper disposal of waste water will reduce bank cutting where fields are next to deep channels. Some drainageways may require head stabilization and erosion control structures to protect them from cutting. Proper use and disposal of irrigation water may alleviate some of the subsurface drainage problems that exist within the project area. Assistance is available from Federal, State and local agencies to install necessary irrigation improvement, erosion control, and drainage practices.

Findings

Watershed conditions do not pose a flood hazard to the project. They do produce sediment which will be deposited in the project reservoir and will cause canal cleaning problems. The Rifle Gap Reservoir is designed to provide storage for 100 years of sediment accumulation without encroachment on the active irrigation capacity. Any reduction in the sediment will lengthen this period. Most of the sediment comes from problem areas which can be improved by watershed treatment measures. Watershed treatment can be accomplished under programs of federal land administering agencies and by private landowners with assistance normally furnished by Federal and State agencies through Soil Conservation Districts. There should be greater emphasis by all interested parties on proper land management to improve watershed conditions and reduce the sediment problem.

CHAPTER V

ACTIVITIES OF THE U. S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PARTICULARLY AFFECTED BY THE SILT PROJECT

Introduction

The U. S. Department of Agriculture and the Colorado State University are carrying out a number of agricultural activities in Garfield County, Colorado. With the increased agricultural activity that will accompany the proposed development of the Silt project, these programs will need to be accelerated.

Agricultural Extension Education and Information

The Colorado Cooperative Extension Service maintains an office at Glenwood Springs. The services of a resident Extension Agent, Assistant Extension Agent, Home Demonstration Agent, and the nonresident specialists located on the campus at Fort Collins are available to farmers in the project area.

Additional information and educational services will be required. This is particularly true in connection with any expansion in the dairy and livestock industry. Some additional information and education in connection with better irrigation water management and pasture development will also be needed.

Technical Assistance

The triangular shaped watershed of the Silt project lies within the Bookcliff Soil Conservation District. It includes about 40,000 acres of private lands. The Soil Conservation Service, Glenwood Springs Work Unit, includes the area of the Bookcliff Soil Conservation District. A soil conservationist is resident at Rifle. The unit conservationist at Glenwood Springs furnishes supervision and assistance in soils, engineering, agronomy, woodland and range management. Close working arrangements are maintained with the Forest Service and the Bureau of Land Management.

Additional technical services and on-site assistance from Soil Conservation Service technicians will be required in the planning and application of conservation practices, which will include land leveling, improvement of farm irrigation systems, improved water management, grass management and soil fertility management.

Stream flow forecasts for seasonal flows of Rifle Creek are recognized in the hydrologic study as necessary to the successful management and operation of the Silt project. Installation of two new snow survey courses and a soil moisture station would probably suffice to provide the essential forecast data. Snow-cat or other over-snow transportation would be required to obtain snow course readings. The Soil Conservation Service could provide installation and subsequent operation in accordance with customary cooperative arrangements between the Service and the Bureau of Reclamation or other interests. Initiation should be at the earliest possible time, since several years operations will be necessary before reliable forecasts can be made.

Farm Credit and Financing

With the completion of the Silt project, it is anticipated that the demand for Farmers Home Administration services will be increased. This demand will largely be for loans of the soil and water conservation and operating types. Some farm-housing type loans will probably also be requested.

Loans will be used for the establishment of conservation measures such as the enlargement and repair of canal and ditch systems, construction of new ditches, land leveling and other related practices.

The above-mentioned farm improvement measures and farm adjustments will, in many cases, require long-term credit that cannot be supplied by local commercial credit sources. Farmers Home Administration credit programs will be called upon to provide this needed assistance.

Cost-Sharing for Conservation Measures

Completion of the Silt project will assure an adequate and stable supply of irrigation water to the farms under the project, with subsequent improvement of both rural and urban economy in the community.

The extension of existing laterals and relocation of others will require extensive reorganization of many farm systems to make efficient and economical use of the water.

The Garfield County Agricultural Stabilization and Conservation Committee, whose office is located at Glenwood Springs, offers cost-sharing for needed soil and water conserving measures through the Agricultural Conservation Program to participating farmers and ranches. Projects requiring cooperative effort on the part of groups of farmers acting as single interests may apply for assistance on such projects through the local ASC Committee.

National Forest Lands

The proposed project features and project lands are all outside the exterior boundary of the White River National Forest. The proposed Rifle Gap Dam and Reservoir will attract visitors to the area and many of these will seek recreational opportunities on adjacent national forest lands.

Restoration, proper management of timber and plant cover, and stabilization of the soil mantle are prime objectives of the White River National Forest. Programs aimed at these objectives are now being carried out and are achieving good results. Construction of the project will add further impetus to early accomplishment of the range improvement, range management, and timber harvesting aspects of these programs. These activities will aid the general watershed protection objective of reducing floodwater and sediment hazards to project installations and reduce their maintenance.

Research Needs

A comprehensive report covering general research needs for the area of the Colorado River Storage Project will be developed by representatives of the U. S. Department of Agriculture research agencies, state agricultural colleges, and experiment stations. As far as the Silt project is concerned, there appear to be no research needs peculiar to this project that would not be covered in the above-mentioned report.

TECHNICAL SUPFLEMENT

to

A report of reappraisal of direct agricultural benefits and project impacts

> Silt Project Colorado River Storage Project

A Reference of Basic Data, Computation and Assumptions

U. S. Department of Agriculture Salt Lake City, Utah - July 1961

INTROLU CTION

The material contained in this technical supplement is intended to assist personnel in the Department of Agriculture, Colorado State University, Bureau of Reclamation and others in analyzing the "Report of Reappraisal of Direct Agricultural Benefits and Project Impacts" for the Silt project, State of Colorado, Colorado River Storage Project.

It includes basic field data collected from the project area, together with assumptions, tabulations, worksheets, and other work data used by Field Party personnel in preparing the report.

This material appears in the same general sequence as the report proper and is arranged in the following sections:

- 1. Soils
- 2. Engineering
- 3. Economics

REFERENCE MATERIAL

The following reference material was used in the preparation of the Silt report.

- American Society for Testing Materials 1955 Symposium on permeability of soils. Spec. Tech. Pub. 163.
- Blaney, H. F. nd Consumptive use data. Unpublished.
- Blaney, H. F., Criddle, W. D. 1949 Consumptive use of water in the irrigated areas of the Upper Colorado River Basin. Soil Cons. Serv. Mimeo.
- Blaney, H.F., Criddle, W. D. 1949 Consumptive use and irrigation water requirements of crops in Colorado. Soil Cons. Serv. Mimeo.
- Blaney, H. F., Criddle, W. D. 1950 Determining water requirements in irrigated areas from climatological and irrigation data. Tech. paper 96. Soil Cons. Serv.
- Blaney, H. F., et al. 1951 A symposium: Consumptive use of water. Am. Soc. Civ. Engr. 2524.
- Blaney, H. F., Israelson, O. W. 1946 Water application efficiencies in irrigation. AGU Feb. 27. Mineo. paper.
- Bookcliff Soil Conservation District (formerly Rifle-Silt SCD) 1951 District program and work plan. Unpublished.
- Brough, O.L., Walker, A.L., Franklin, E.R., McManis, P.M., and Divers, Vernon 1956 Relative land productivity and income. Columbia Basin project. Wash. Agric. Exp. Sta. Bul. 570.
- Criddle, W. D. nd Consumptive use data. Unpublished.
- Criddle, W. D. 1958 Methods of computing consumptive use of water. Am. Soc. Civ. Engr. 1507.
- Criddle, W. D., Davis, Sterling, Pair, C. H., and Shockley, D. G. 1956 Methods of evaluating irrigation systems. Agric. Handbook 82. Soil Cons. Serv.

Denver Livestock Exchange

1957 Schedule of charges for market services at the Union Stock Yards, Denver, Colorado. Diebold, C. H. Irrigation trials in the southwest region. Reg. Bul. 106, 1952 Soil Series 14. Soil Cons. Serv. Donnan, W. W. Drainage of irrigated lands. Mimeo, Mayer, 1954 Donnan, W. W. and Bradshaw, G. B. Drainage investigation methods for irrigated areas in 1952 western United States. Soil Cons. Serv. Tech. Bul. 1065. September. Fenzau, C. J., Van Arsdall, R. N. Economies in farm dairy buildings and equipment. U. S. Dept. 1957 of Agric. Agric. Info. Bul. 153. Fuhriman, W. U., Blanch, G. T. and Stewart, C. E. An economic analysis of the agricultural potentials of the 1952 Weber Basin Reclamation project, Utah. Utah Agric, Exp. Sta. Spec. Rep. 7. Garfield County, Colorado Abstract of assessment, 1957, Garfield County. 1957 Goodrich, R. D. Methods of determining consumptive use of water in irrigation. 1956 Am. Soc. Civ. Engr. Separate 884. Haise, H. R. nđ Irrigation and consumptive use data. Unpublished. Haise, H. R., Donnan, W. W., Phelan, J. T., Lawhon, L. F., Shockley, D. G. The use of cylinder infiltrometers to determine the intake 1956 characteristics of irrigated soils. Ag. Research Serv. and Soil Cons. Serv. ARS 41-7. Harris, Karl Irrigation and consumptive use data. Unpublished. nd Hill, Raymond A. Salts in irrigation water. Am. Soc. Civ. Engr. 2165. 1941 Hutchings, T. B. Colorado heat and moisture indexes for use in land capability 1954 classification. Soil Cons. Serv. Mimeo. LeVee, W. M., Dregne, H. E. A method for rating land. New Mexico Agric. Exp. Sta. 1951 Bul. 364.

Lowry, R. L., Johnson, A. F. . Consumptive use of water for agriculture. Am. Soc. Civ. 1941 Engr. 2158. Mech, Stephen J. 1949 Effect of slope and length of run on erosion under irrigation. J. Am. Soc. Agric. Eng. 30:8; 379-383, 389. August. Morrison, E. M. Cost and return in grade-A and manufacturing mild production. 1957 selected areas in Utah, 1956. Agric. Exp. Sta. Bul. 401. November. Morrison, F. B. Feeds and feeding. 22nd edition, unabridged. 1956 Orcutt, E. P. 1956 Wintering Montana ewes. Montana Ext. Serv. Bul. 291. March. Phelan, J. T. Impriving estimates of irrigation water requirements for 1954 short periods of time. . Am. Soc. Agric. Engr. June 22. Mimeo. paper. Phelan, J. T. nd Irrigation and consumptive use data. Unpublished. Potts, C. G. 1953 Sheep raising on the farm. USDA Farmers' Bul. 2058. April. Record Upper Colorado River Basin Compact Commission Consumptive use of water. Appendix B. Mimeo. 1948 Shockley, D. G. Capacity of soil to hold moisture. J. Am. Soc. Agric. 1955 Engr., 36:2; 109-112. Shockley, D. G. nd Irrigation and consumptive use data. Unpublished. V Sitler, H. G., Rehnberg, R. D. 1954 Irrigated pastures. Colo. Ext. Serv. Bul. 437-A. November. State of Colorado 1948-59 Colorado agricultural statistics. Vol. I, Nos. 1-5, Vol. II, Nos. 1 & 2. Stoddart, L. A. 1944 Gains made by cattle on summer range in northern Utah. Utah Agric. Exp. Sta. Bul. 314. June. U. S. Agricultural Research Service

1956 Changes in farm production and efficiency. ARS 43-55.

U. S. Agricultural Research Service

1958 Farm costs and returns: Commercial family-operated farms by type and location. Agric. Info. Bul. 176. Revised June 1958.

- U. S. Agricultural Research Service, U. S. Agricultural Marketing Service 1957 Agricultural price and cost projections. September.
- U. S. Agricultural Research Service, U. S. Soil Conservation Service 1956 Use of cylinder infiltrometers to determine the intake characteristics of irrigated soils. ARS 41-7, May.
- U. S. Bureau of Agricultural Economics
 1953 Crop production practices-labor, power, and materials by
 operation; Mountain and Pacific States. F.M. 92, Sec. 5.
- U. S. Bureau of Agricultural Economics
 1952 Labor inputs for livestock enterprises. So. Dakota Agric.
 Exp. Sta. Agric. Econ. Pamphlet 40. September.
- U. S. Bureau of the Census 1954 Census of agriculture, Wyoming and Colorado. Vol. 1, part 29, U. S. Dept. of Commerce.
- U. S. Bureau of Reclamation nd Farm ownership index, alphabetical with Irrigable acreage and water right data, Silt project.
- U. S. Bureau of Reclamation 1957 Land clearing methods and cost in southwestern Colorado. Durango, Colorado. Mimeo.
- U. S. Bureau of Reclamation nd Soil investigation data, Silt project. Unpublished.
- U. S. Bureau of Reclamation 1945 Types of farming. Columbia Basin Joint Investigation, prob. 2.
- U. S. Bureau of Reclamation 1951 Silt project Colorado feasibility report.
- U. S. Department of Agriculture 1954 Diagnosis and improvement of saline and alkali soils. U. S. Salinity laboratory staff, Agric. Handbook 60.
- U. S. Department of Agriculture nd Monthly average price for 100 pounds, Denver 1947-56. Livestock Division, Agric. Marketing Serv. Unpublished.

U. S. Department of Agriculture

nd

Seasonal average milk prices, Colorado 1947-56. Agric. Marketing Serv., Denver, Colorado. Unpublished.

- U. S. Department of Agriculture 1941 Yearbook, Climate and Man.
- U. S. Department of Agriculture 1955 Yearbook, Water.
- U. S. Geological Survey nd Water supply papers, part 9, series publication. 1950-60
- U. S. Soil Conservation Service 1957 Instruction and criteria for preparation of irrigation guides. Portland, Ore. M-1473.
- U. S. Soil Conservation Service 1951-53 Land development cost estimates, Missouri Basin project, Scotia. Sargent and Farwell units.
- U. S. Soil Conservation Service nd Technical guide, Bookcliff Soil Conservation District.
- U. S. Weather Bureau 1930 Bulletin W and Supplement 11-5.
- U. S. Weather Bureau nd Climate summary of the United States supplement through 1952.
- Wenzel, L. K., and Fishel, V. C. 1942 Methods of determining permeability of water-bearing materials. U. S. Geo. Sur., Water supply paper 887.

SOILS SECTION

INTERPRETATION OF SOIL SYMBOLS ON SOIL MAPS

----- Soil Color or Special Condition I Geologic Formation 1 1 - - - Workability 1 1 1 - - - - - - - - - Subsoil Permeability 11111 ----- Soil Depth to Gravel, Sandstone, etc. 111111 - - - - - - - Physiographic Position ----- Site Factor - Salinity or Alkalinity BE32312 S1 W1 1 - B - 1 - - - - - Site Factor - Watertable In man - - - - - - Erosion - Water In Slope Group 3 In non a menon a menon Soil Type or Phase Tonsoil Texture Suberil Permeshility Substratum Permeability Denth

7002017 Yerroure	COUPO a de la constante a la se vy	Stop of the other a state of the a by	24 W 14 W 14 h
1-Heavy	1-Very slowly perm.	1-Very slowly permeable	1-Deep-more
2-Moderately Heavy	2-Slowly permeable	3-Moderately permeable	than 36"
2-Medium	3-Moderately perm.	5-Very rapidly perme-	2-Moderately
L-Moderately Light	4-Rapidly permeable	able	deep 20-36"
5-Light	5-Very rapidly perm.	a na tanàna mandritra dia minina mandritra amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fisiana amin' amin' amin' am	3-Shallow 10-20

SOIL COLOR OR SPECIAL CONDITION

В	00	Brown Soils	M	Ciria	Swamp Soils gleyed
С	-	Dark Brown Soils	Z	110	Alkali Soils
F	69	Gray Wooded Soils	101	100	Mottled - Used in sub-position
Ħ	cm.	Very Dark Brown Soils			following color to indicate
P	-	Very Dark Brown Soils with thick subsoils			mottling due to prolonged irri-
S	-	Soils of Low Organic Matter			gation.

GEOLOGIC FORMATIONS

- A Acid Igneous undifferentiated
- B Basic igneous undifferentiated
- C Mancos shale
- U Fort Union undifferentiated
- V Lance undifferentiated
- D . Loess undifferentiated
- E Wasatch shale and sandstone undifferentiated
- G Gypsum beds
- F Green River undifferentiated
- I Iles undifferentiated
- J Jurasic undifferentiated

- K Dakota Sandstone
- L Lewis Shale
- M Mesa Verde undifferentiated
- N Permian and Pennsylvanian undifferentiated
- 0 Mixed undifferentiated
- P . Browns Park
- Q Mississippian undifferentiated
- W Williams Fork undifferentiated
- T Peat
- R Arkosic

ENT MATERIALS

- A Acid igneous
- B Basic igneous
- C Light textured shale
- D Loess
- E Heavy textured shale
- F Limestone
- G Gypsum
- H Cobble or stones in medium textured materials

- J Gravel in light textured materials
- K Cobble cemented in lime
- L Soft limy materials
- M Hard sandstone
- N Soft sandstone
- P Clean sand
- R Arkosig
- T Peat
- Z Use where soils are alkali
 - and color needs to be shown

PHYSIOGRAPHIC POSITION

z - Bottomland

x - Swales and depressed areas

y - Footslope

SLOPE

	%	Z	. %
Group	Irrig.	Dryland	Range
A-Nearly level	0-1	0=1	0-1
B-Gently sloping	1-7	13	1-3
C-Sloping to gently			
rolling	3-6	3-6	. 3-6
D-Rolling	6-12	6-12	6-12
E-Steep hilly	12-25	12-25	12=25
F-Very steep	25-65	25-65	25-65
G-Very steep	65+	65*	65+

EROSION

*1-Slight-Topsoil intact or over six	- Wind Accumulations
2-Moderate Topsoil and subsoil inter-	- Gullies Over 2º Deep - Active
3-Severe-Topsoil plus subsoil very thin or absent-cultivated land only	- Eroding Ditch
W-Severe-Topsoil plus subsoil very thin or absent-rangeland only	
-recent deposition	

W-Geologic-Use on barren geologic materials only-Class VIII

Severe effect

*Erosic: severity based on thickness of topsoll or topsoil plus subsoil remaining.

	*	Miscellaneo	us Land Type	S		
	Rg - Rgw - Rv -	Severely gu Raw gullied Riverwash	111ed land - l areas - Cla - Class VIII	Class VI ss VIII		
Wused in place (for -	stones, or suri	ace covered cobbles ~ C	lass VIII	rock Irag	lents,
		SPECIAL	FACTORS			
	Salinity -	Alkalinity	- Watertable	- Overflo	w - Stones	- Cobble
Slight effect Moderate effect	S1 S3	A1 A2	W1 W3	F ₁	XĴ	(x) ₁

WJ.

F2

SILT PROJECT SOILS BY EVALUATION AREAS

Evaluation Area "A" (Harvey Mesa)		Evaluation Area "B" (Harvey Mesa)				Evaluation Area "C" (Davie Mesa)				Evaluation Area "E" (Dry Elk Valley Irrigated)					Evaluation Area "G" (Dry Elk Valley New Land)									
Soi1 BC2221 2221 3331 BD3231 3211 3331 3231 3231 3231 3221 3221	Slope C C B B B C C C C C	A1W3 A1W3 W1 A1W3	L.C.U. IIIes1 IIIes1 IIE IIE IIE IIE IIE IIIE IIIE IIIE	Acres 7 2 10 440 20 7 16 715 4 10 191	<u>Soi1</u> BC22H2 BD3231 33H1 33H1 33H2 33H3 BE2221 2231 3231 3331	Slope D D D D D D D D D D D D D D	X1	L.C.U. IVe2 IVe1 IVe1 IVe1 IVe1 IVe1 IVe2 IVe2 IVe IVe	Acres 4 298 49 531 29 16 16 2 18 20 20	Soi1 BD3231 3231 32H2 3331 ZE3331 33H1	Slope B C C B C Tota	<u>Factors</u>	L.C.U. IIe IIIe IIIe IIIe IIIes2 IIIes2	Acres 280 216 17 11 127 6 657	<u>Soi1</u> BC2221 BD3231 BN3231 BN3231 CC33231 CC3331 3331 3331 WA3331	Slope C C C B C B C C C C	W2 W4	L.C.U. IIIes1 IIIe IIIe IIIs IIIe IIE IIIe IIIe IIIe	Acres 38 37 12 12 10 16 21 7 14 14	<u>Soi1</u> BC2221 BD3231 32H1 BO2221 32H1 32H1 CD3231 CO3231	Slope C C B B C C B T	Factors	L.C.U. IIIes1 IIIe IIIs IIIs IIe IIIe IIIe III	Acres 67 97 57 39 20 17 8 <u>36</u> <u>341</u>
32H1 32H2 3331 BE22221 3231	C C B B B B	A1W1	IIIe IIIe IIIs1 IIes1 IIes1	221 2 136 13 19 6	33H3 33H3 BM32C1 32H2 33H3 33H3		X1 X1	IVE IVE IVE1 IVS4 IVS4 IVS4	19 5 19 55 48	Evalu	ation A	rea "D" (Special	(Davie Me	sa)	(D	Evalu ry Elk	ation Are Valley Ir Special	a "F" rigated)	101	(Evalua Dry Elk	ation Are Valley N Special	a "H" ew Land)	
3231 3331 3331 3331 3331 3331 BM3231 32H1	CBBCCCCC	A1W3 A1W1 A1W3 A1W3	IIIes IIe1s1 IIe1s1 IIIes IIIes IIIe IIIe	13 36 7 15 10 35 114	33H3 3H B03231 32H1 33H1 33H1 33H3	ם כ ם מ	X1 A1 X1	IVel IVs5 IVe1 IVe1 IVe1 IVe1 IVe1	132 3 15 13 20 6 24	BD3231 3331 33H2 BE3331 33H1 BO33H3	D D D D D D D D	ractors	IVe1 IVe1 IVe1 IVe IVe IVe	10 54 5 77 4 20	Soil BD3331 33Cl 33K2 BJ2221 BN3331 B02121 2221	D D D D D D B D	X1	L.C.U. IVe1 IVe1 IVe4 IVe2 IVe1 IVs IVe2	Acres 12 15 6 3 5 6	Sol1 BC2121 22H2 22H2 BD3231 32H1 32H2	C D D D D D D D	X1	L.C.U. IVs1 IVe2 IVe2 IVe1 IVe1 IVe1 IVe1	Acres 92 28 10 102 32 21
32H2 33H3 BN3231 BO3231 3231 3231 321 32H1 32H2	C C C A C C C C	A1W3	IIIe IIIe IIC IIIe IIIe IIIe IIIe IIIe	175 35 9 48 75 9 28 12	3H ZD3231 3331 ZE2221 3331 33H1 3331 33H1	С о о о о о	A1W1 A3W4 A3W4 F1	IVs5 IVe4 IVe4 IVs3 IVs2 IVs2 IVe4 IVe4	16 13 9 8 7 14 7 22	2£3331	D Tota	Al Al Acres	IVeų	<u>45</u> 215	32H1 32H2 32H3 33H1 CD 32 31 CD 32 31 CD 2221 3331	D D D D C B	X1 A3W4 X1	IVe1 IVe1 IVe1 IVe1 IVe1 IVs3 IVs4	24 30 12 11 18 27 5	33H1 33K3 B03331	D D D T	otal Acre	IVel IVel IVel IVel s	11 35 9 346
3331 3331 3331 CD3231 CO3331 ZE2221 2221	A C C C B B C C	A3W4 A1W1 A3W4	IIS IIIe IIIe IIIe IIIs3 IIIes3	10 17 8 77 10 2 10		1	fotal Acre:	s	1,462							То	tal Acres		<u>177</u>					
2221 2221 2221 3231 3331 3331 3331	C C B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B	W1 A1W1 A1W3 A3W3 A1W1 A1W3	IIIes3 IIIes3 IIIes3 IIIs2 IIes2 IIes2 IIIes2	14 24 8 3 95 202 21																	PROJ	ECT TOTA	_ 6,597 A	ACRES
3331 3331 3331 3331 3331 3331 33H1	в С С С С С	A3W3 A3W4 A1W1 A1W3	II IS2 III S2 IIIes2 IIIes2 IIIes2 IIIes2 IIIes2	80 30 80 76 6 5																				

3,209

Total Acres

BC 2121 The BC 2121 mapping unit is characterized by weak to moderately developed soils occurring on gently sloping topography in upland valley areas. Elevation varies from 5500 to 6500 feet, with rainfall of about 12 to 15 inches. Soil of this unit is developed on heavy reworked materials derived from the Mancos formation.

In some cases, sandstone strata give rise to a stony condition in the soil profile.

Soil Profile:

- A1 0-2" Very dark grayish-brown (10YR 3.5/2 moist and crushed) clay loam with weak coarse platy structure that breaks into weak medium crumb; hard when dry, moderately firm when moist; slightly calcareous with an abrupt smooth boundary.
- AB 2 -11" Gray brown that changes to very dark grayish-brown when crushed (10YR 5/2 moist) heavy clay loam; moderate medium prismatic structure that breaks into weak fine angular blocky aggregate that is hard when dry, moderately firm when moist; slightly calcareous, with nearly continuous clay skins; clear smooth boundary.
- B2 20-30" Dark grayish brown (10YR 1/2 moist and crushed) light clay; weak medium prismatic that breaks into fine subangular blocky; very hard when dry, very firm when moist; slightly calcareous with a pH of 8.4; nearly continous clay skin; gradual smooth boundary.
- B_{3ca} 30-52" Dark grayish-brown (10YR L/2 moist) heavy clay; hard when dry, moderately firm when moist; violently calcareous; visible lime in cracks and voids; pH of 8.5; thin patchy clay skin; gradual smooth boundary.
- C_{ca} 52-70" Dark grayish-brown (10YR 4/2 moist and crushed) clay with weak fine angular blocky structure; hard when dry, firm when moist; violently calcareous; visible lime, pH 8.5; thin patchy clay skins; gradual smooth boundary.
- C 70+ Dark brown to brown (10YR 4/3 moist and crushed) clay; massive; hard when dry; calcareous; no visible lime; no clay skins.

Range in Characteristics

Soil development in this mapping unit varies from weak to moderate with hue 10YR to hue 2.5YR range. Texture ranges from light clay loams to clay in the surface, and from clay loam to clay in the subsoil. Top soils are

BC 2121 - Continued

thin, often being less than 4 inches and sometimes as thin as 2 inches; clay skins are found almost to the surface. The parent materials show a high pH and probably contain sodium salts. The upper part of the profile has a pH of less than 8.3 and shows no slick spots. The developed soil shows no sign of black alkali. Closely related to and often included within this mapping unit are the following taxonomic units: BC 22H1, BC 22H2, BC 2111, BC 2221, BC 21H1, BC 21H2.

Topography

Gently sloping to moderately sloping upland valley and side slopes.

Drainage

Surface drainage is slow to moderately slow; internal drainage is very slow due to heavy texture of the solum.

Vegetation

In its native state, vegetation consists of sagebrush and native grasses, especially western wheatgrass. As observed in this area, very little greasewood occurs on this mapping unit.

Use

To date, very little irrigation water has been available for this type. Where limited irrigation has been used, fair yields of alfalfa and small grain have been grown. No evidence of seep or alkali has been noticed.

Distribution

This soil is found wherever exposures of Mancos shale occur in a 12 to 20 inch precipitation zone.

Location

This soil was described $\frac{1}{4}$ mile S of NE corner of Sec. 7, T5S, R91W, Garfield County.

<u>BC 2221</u> Mapping unit BC 2221 is characterized by slightly to moderately developed soils on foot slope alluvium derived from reworked Mancos shale. It occurs in a 12-15" precipitation zone, at an elevation of 6000 feet. It generally occurs on moderately to steeply sloping topography that lies adjacent to shallow exposures of Mancos shale. Soil horizons are moderately to slightly defined with nearly continuous clay skins in the subsoil and visible lime accumulation in the B_{3ca} zone.

Soil Profile

- Ap 0 2" Dark brown to brown (10YR 3.5/2 4/3 crushed, moist) heavy clay loam with weak coarse platy structure that breaks into weak fine crumb; firm when moist; slightly calcareous with thin patchy clay skins; boundary is clear and smooth.
- AB 2 7" Very dark gray brown to dark gray brown (10YR 3.5/2 crushed, moist) heavy clay loam with weak coarse prismatic structure that breaks into weak medium angular blocky; firm when moist; slightly calcareous; thin patchy clay skins; clear smooth boundary.
- B21 7 -12" Dark brown to brown (10YR 3/3.5 4/3 crushed, moist) very heavy clay loam; has moderate coarse prismatic structure that breaks into moderate subangular blocky aggregate; firm when moist; strongly calcareous, pH8.2; nearly continuous clay skins; clear smooth boundary.
- B₂₂ 12-20" Dark grayish brown to brown (10YR 3.5/3 crushes to 4/2.5 moist) heavy clay loam; moderate medium subangular blocky; firm when moist; strongly calcareous; continuous clay skins; clear smooth boundary.
- B₂₃ 20-33" Dark brown to brown (10YR 4/2 that crushes to 4/3 moist) clay loam, weak medium prismatic structure that breaks into weak fine subangular blocky; firm when moist; strongly calcareous; nearly continuous clay skins; gradual smooth boundary.
- B_{3Ca} 33-45" Very dark grayish brown to dark brown (10YR 3/h crushes to 3/3 moist) clay loam with weak fine angular blocky structure; firm when moist; violently calcareous; visible lime; gradual smooth boundary.
- C 45-60" Dark brown to brown (10YR 4/3 that crushes to 4.5/3 moist) loam friable when moist; violently calcareous, pH 8.4; lime is visible in splotches and streaks.

Range in Characteristics

Due to the foot slope position, a wide variation in degree of soil development exists. The soil horizons are very weak and immature at the top of the

BC 2221 - Continued

slopes and moderately mature at the foot of slope. Depth also varies for the same reason. Lighter textures are often found near the top of the slope with heavier textures at the bottom of the slope. In some cases, sandstone rock fragments are intermixed with the soil. Taxonomic units that may occur in this mapping unit other than the one herein described are 2111, 22H1, 2121 and in some cases BC 3331 may be included. Color ranges from hue 10YR to hue 2.5Y.

Topography

Topography ranges from moderately steep to steep foot slopes that lie adjacent to mountain exposures of Mancos shale and associated members of Mesa Verde formation.

Drainage

Internal drainage is generally slow due to heavy texture. Surface runoff is rapid because of steep topography. Under irrigation, wet spots often develop, especially at the lower end of the slope.

Vegetation

Vegetation in this native state consists of sagebrush and western wheatgrass.

Use

Where irrigation water is available, this mapping unit is devoted to the production of hay and small grain. The land is very productive under irrigation.

Distribution

This soil occurs wherever exposure of Mancos shale occurs. Total acreage is small but bodies are widely scattered.

Location

Harvey Gap area - 600 feet N., 1 Mi. W., SW Corner, Sec. 7, T7S, R91W.

This mapping unit is characterized by moderately developed BD 32H1 zonal soil developing on loess in the Brown soil zone of Western Colorado. It has been deposited on broad gently sloping mesas and bench land adjacent to major stream systems. Soil horizons are moderately well defined with top soil that varies from 3 to 6 inches in thickness and subsoils that are approximately the same thickness. A very definite lime enrichment zone is characteristic of this type, occurring somewhere between 15 and 24 inches. Also characteristic of this type is a very definite layer of outwash materials which underlie the mantle of loess, somewhere between 2 and 5 feet. Also included within this mapping unit are the following types: BD 32H2, BD33H2, BD33H1 and BD 3231. The above soils occur in association depending on the depth of the loess mantle and the steepness of the slope. The weakly developed soils follow the slopes near drainage ways and the deeper better developed soils occur on the more gently sloping mesa areas. The parent loess from these types has very definite textural characteristics. The percent of very fine sand and coarse silt is high, making up 60 to 70 percent of the total soil texture. Quantity of clay varies from 15 to 25 percent in the unweathered loess. This mapping unit resembles the correlated mellenthin soil of the Brown zone in Southwestern Colorado, except for the presence of outwash materials in the substratum.

Soil Profile:

- A1 0 3" Bark-reddish (5YR 3/3 moist and crushed) light clay loam; weak platy structure that breaks down to weak fine crumb; moderately friable when moist; non calcareous; thin patchy clear skins; clear smooth boundary.
- B₂₁ 3 7" Dark reddish-brown to reddish-brown (5YR 3.5/4 moist and crushed) heavy loan with moderate medium subangular blocky structure that breaks into weak fine subangular blocky peds; hard when dry, moderately firm when moist; non calcareous; nearly continuous clay skin; clear smooth boundary.
- B22 7 11" Dark reddish-brown (5YR 3.5/3 moist and crushed) heavy loam with moderate medium subangular blocky structure that crushes into weak fine subangular peds; hard when dry, moderately friable when moist; non calcareous; nearly continuous to continuous clay skins; gradual boundary.
- B_{3ca} 11-15" Dark brown to brown (7.5YR 4.5/4 moist and crushed) clay loam with weak fine angular blocky to subangular blocky structure; hard when dry, moderately friable when moist; strongly calcareous with 8.4 pH; thin patchy clay skins; gradual boundary.
- C_{ca} 15-29" Brown (7.5YR 5/4 moist and crushed) loam; moderate medium subangular blocky structure that breaks into weak fine subangular blocky aggregates; dry when hard, moderately

firm when moist; violently calcareous; very definite splotches and streaks of lime; thin patchy clay skins; gradual smooth boundary with an occasional lime coated sandstone fragment; this is the lime zone that accompanies the above solum.

29-36" Dark brown to brown (7.5YR 4.5/4 moist and crushed) light clay loam; massive; hard when dry, firm when moist; violently calcareous; definite streaks of lime; gradual smooth boundary.

36-60" Pale brown (10YR 6.5/3 crushed and moist) light clay loam; massive; slightly hard when dry, moderately friable when moist; violently calcareous with a pH of 8.4 and carries from 15 to 30 percent outwash sandstone and cobble fragments.

Range in Characteristics

This mapping symbol BD 32H1 covers a wide range of closely related taxinomic units that differ in color from 5YR to 7.5YR; in texture from very fine sandy loam loess to heavy silt loam loess. Soil development varies from slightly to moderately developed top soils and subsoils. The lime zone ranges between 10 and 24 inches. Clay skins are generally thin and patchy, but may be nearly continuous in the better developed types. The mantle of loess over outwash materials varies from 2 to 5 feet. In some cases, outwash gravels have been brought up through the profile by rodent activity and may occur in the profile or on the surface. Soil development in this mapping unit ranges from weak to moderate, depending upon steepness and direction of slope. Soils on southwest facing slopes are generally thin over outwash and show much less development than corresponding types on south and east facing slopes.

Topography

C

D

Gently to moderately sloping upland mesas.

Drainage

Surface runoff is slow to moderately rapid, depending on slope. Internal drainage is moderate.

Vegetation

Native vegetation consists of sagebrush and native grasses that grow in a climatic zone of 12 inch precipitation.

Use

Where irrigation water is available, a large portion of this type is utilized for the production of small grain and hay, with some corn, potatoes and sugar beets grown.

BD 32H1 - Continued

Distribution

This type is not as extensive as type BD 3231 but occurs in connection with it around the upper edges of the loess covered uplands.

Location

300 feet North, 70 feet East of the northwest coreer of the SE $\frac{1}{4}$ Sec. 26, T5S, R92W.

BD 3231 Mapping unit is characterized by moderately developed zonal soils developing on loess in the Brown soil zone of Western Colorado. It has been deposited on broad, gently to moderately sloping mesa and bench lands adjacent to major stream systems. Soil horizons are moderately well defined with top soils that vary from 4 to 6 inches in thickness and subsoils that are approximately the same thickness. A very definite lime enrichment zone is characteristic of this type occurring somewhere between 15 and 24 inches.

BD 3331, which occurs on steeper slopes and has less soil development, is associated with this type. Also, BD 32H1 is similar in all respects except the mantle of loess lies over cobbly or stony outwash materials. The parent loess from which these types are derived has very definite textural characteristics. The percentage of very fine sand and coarse silt is high, making up 60 to 70 percent of the total soil mixture. Quantity of clay varies from 15 to 25 percent in the unweathered loess.

This soil type resembles the correlated Mellenthin soil of the Brown soil zone in Southwestern Colorado.

Soil Profile:

- Ap 0-3" Dark brown to brown (7.5YR 3.5/3 moist) loam; weak fine granular structure; slightly hard when dry, moderately friable when moist; slightly calcareous with patchy clay skins and a clear boundary.
- B₂ 3 -11" Dark reddish-brown to reddish-brown (5YR 3.5/3 moist) light clay loam; weak coarse prismatic structure that breaks into weak medium subangular blocky peds; hard when dry,moderately friable when moist; slightly calcareous, thin patchy clay skins and a clear wavy boundary.
- B_{2ca} 11-21" Brown to light brown (7.5YR 5.5/4 moist) silt loam, moderate fine angular blocky to subangular blocky structure; hard when dry, moderately friable when moist; violently calcareous with weak nearly continuous clay skins and diffuse boundary; the lime is feasible between peds and in old root channels.
- C_{ca} 21-26" Pinkish gray to light brown crushed (7.5YR 6/3 moist) light loam; weak, coarse, subangular blocky structure; slightly hard when dry, moderately friable when moist; violently calcareous; no clay skins and a clear smooth boundary.
- C_{ca2} 26-39" Dark reddish-brown to reddish-brown (5YR 3.5/4 moist) light loam; weak, coarse subangular blocky structure; slightly hard when dry, moderately friable when moist; violently calcareous, with clear wavy boundary.

C_{1b} 39-66" Light olive brown (2.5Y 5/4 moist and crushed) heavy loam; massive; slightly hard when dry, very friable when moist; violently calcareous with visible lime and gypsum in voids and seams.

Is same as layer above except lime and gypsum are well disseminated.

Range in Characteristics

This mapping symbol BD 3231 covers a wide range of closely related taxinomic units that differ in color from 5YR to 7.5YR, in texture from very fine sandy loam loess to heavy silt loam loess. Soil development varies from slightly to moderately developed top soils and subsoils. The lime zone ranges between 10 and 24 inches. Clay skins are generally thin and patchy, but may be nearly continuous in the better developed types.

A very pronounced characteristic of this group of soils is the different colored crotovinas that occur in the lower horizons.

BD 32H1, a closely related type, has very similar soil development in all respects except it overlays stony outwash materials between 3 and 5 feet.

Topography

Gently to moderately sloping upland mesas.

Drainage

Runoff is slow to moderately rapid. Internal drainage is moderate.

Vegetation

Native vegetation consists of sagebrush and native grasses that grow in a climatic zone of 12 inch precipitation.

Use

Where irrigation water is available, a very large percent of this type is utilized for the production of small grain and hay, with some corn, potatoes and sugar beets.

Distribution

This type is widely distributed on the gently sloping mesas along the Colorado River and its tributaries in the 12 to 15 inch precipitation climatic zone.

Type Location

Section 31, T5S, R91W.

^{66&}quot; +

BD 3231 C-1 Mapping unit is characterized by moderately developed zonal soil developing on loess in the brown soil zone of Western

Colorado. It has been deposited on the broad gently to moderately sloping mesa and bench lands adjacent to major stream systems. Soil horizons are moderately well defined with top soils that vary from 4 to 6 inches in thickness and subsoils that are approximately the same thickness. A very definite lime enrichment zone is characteristic of this type occurring somewhere between 10 and 20 inches. BD 3331 and BD 33K2 occur in conjunction with this soil on steeper slopes adjacent to drainageways. The parent loess from which these types occur is derived from loessial material with a fine sand and coarse silt content of about 60 to 70 percent. Quantity of clay varies from 15 to 25 percent. This soil resembles the Mellenthin of the brown soil zone in Western Colorado. Associated with this soil are BD 33K2, BD 32H1 and BD 32K1.

Soil Profile:

- AB 0-6" Dark brown to brown (7.5YR 3.5/2 crushed and moist) loam, weak medium platy that crushes down to weak fine crumb; very friable when moist; slightly calcareous; thin patchy clay skins; clear smooth boundary.
- B₂ 6 -11" Dark reddish-brown (5YR 3/2 that crushes down to 3/3) light c'ay loam; weak medium angular blocky that breaks down to weak fine subangular blocky; friable when moist; strongly calcareous; nearly continuous clay skins; clear smooth boundary; ant sized lime coated gravels.
- B_{3ca} 11-17" Dark reddish-brown to reddish-brown (5YR 4/3 crushes to 3.5/3) loam that breaks into weak fine angular blocky aggregates; friable when moist; strongly calcareous; visible lime; thin patchy clay skins; clear smooth boundary; small amount of lime coated sandstone gravels.
- C_{ca} 17-24" Dark brown to brown (7.5YR 3.5/2 moist) loam; weak medium angular blocky to subangular blocky; friable when moist; violently calcareous; visible lime in cracks and voids; clear smooth boundary; 1 to 2 inch small lime coated sandstone fragments.
- B_{2b} 24-38" Burried soil layer, dark reddish-brown (5.5YR 3/4 moist); moderate medium subangular blocky that breaks into weak fine subangular blocky; firm when moist; violently calcareous; visible lime in cracks and voids; nearly continuous clay skins; clear smooth boundary.
- B_{3ca b} 38-47" Burried soil layer; dark reddish-brown to reddish-brown (5YR 3/3 that crushes to 3.5/3) light clay loam; has weak fine subangular blocky structure; firm when moist; violently calcareous; visible lime in cracks and voids; thin patchy clay skins; gradual indistinct boundary.

47-60" Reddish-brown (5.5YR h/2 that crushes into h.5/3) silt loam; massive; friable when moist; violently calcareous; high quantity of pinkish-white lime splotches and concretions.

- C 60-68" Brown to light brown (7.5YR that crushes to 5.5/4) loam; massive; friable when moist; violently calcareous, pH of 8.6.
- D 68" + Outwash stones of varying size; usually waterworn.

Range in Characteristics

Continued

Col

C

This soil varies in color from 5YR to 7YR and in texture from very fine sandy loam to silt loam. Soil development varies from weak to moderate; the lime zone ranges between 10 and 20 inches; clay skins are generally thin but nearly continuous in the subsoil layers. This particular type is underlain by weak limy outwash materials that occur between 3 to 6 feet; soil horizons are fairly well defined.

Topography

Gently to moderately sloping upland mesas.

Drainage

Surface runoff is slow to moderately rapid; internal drainage is moderate.

Vegetation

Native vegetation consists of sagebrush and native grasses that grow in the climatic zone of 12 to 15 inch precipitation.

Use

Where irrigation water is available, a very large portion of this type is utilized for the production of small grain and hay with some corn and potatoes.

Distribution

This type is widely distributed on the gently to moderately sloping mesas along the Colorado River and its tributaries in the 12 to 15 Inch climatic zone.

Location

This description was taken in the middle of Sec. 12, T15S, R92W.

BD 33K2 The BD 33K2 mapping unit is characterized by weakly developed soils occurring on shallow loessial uplands overlying limy, stony outwash materials. Soil horizons are very weakly defined. This mapping unit is associated with mapping units BD 3231, BD 32H1, BD 32H2, BD 32K2. It occurs on ridge tops, small knolls and windward facing slopes where soil erosion retards normal soil development.

Soil Profile:

- Ap 0-2" Dark brown to brown (7.5YR 3.5/2 moist-crushed) loam with weak medium platy structure that breaks into weak fine crumb; very fine when moist; strongly calcareous; clear smooth boundary.
- AB 2 ~ 6" Dark brown to brown (7.5YR 3.5/2 crushed-moist) heavy loam with weak fine granular structure; friable when moist; violently calcareous; nearly continuous clay skins; clear smooth boundary; fine gritty sand particles intermixed.
- BC_{ca} 6 -14" Dark brown (10YR 3.5/3 crushed-moist) heavy loam, weak fine angular blocky to subangular blocky; firm when moist; violently calcareous; very little clay skin; clear smooth boundary; a few lime coated sandstone fragments.
- C_{ca} 14-24" Very pale brown (10YR 7/3 moist-crushed) loam; massive; hard when dry, firm when moist; violently calcareous with pH of 8.4; gradual smooth boundary; some lime-coated sandstone fragments.
- C 24-36" Very pale brown (10YR 8/3 crushed-moist) stony loam with about 25% lime coated sandstone fragments.

Range in Characteristics

This soil varies in soil development from very weak to weak; in texture from very fine sand loam to silt loam. Included within this mapping unit are loessial soils of varying depth over limy outwash materials. The outwash materials carry a high content of lime but the sandstone fragments and loamy lime materials are not cemented. Alfalfa roots often penetrate this zone. Taxinomic units included within this mapping unit are: BD 3231, BD 32K1, BD 32H2, BD 32K2.

Topography

Moderately steep to steep. It occurs on ridge tops, knolls and windward slopes.

Drainage

Surface drainage is rapid due to steep slope. Internal drainage is moderately rapid.



Vegetation

In its native state, vegetation consists of sagebrush and native grasses adapted to 12 to 15 inch precipitation zone.

Use

Where irrigation water is available, this soil is used for production of hay and grain.

Distribution

This soil occurs wherever loessial soils are found in isolated bodies associated with deep loessial soils.

Location

Sec. 12, T5S, R92W vicinity of Harvey Gap Reservoir.

<u>BD 3331</u> Mapping unit is characterized by very weakly developed soil occurring on moderately steep to steep slopes in the same area that BD3231 occurs. Normal soil erosion has kept pace with soil development and consequently, this soil has always been thin, even in its native condition. It is developed on the same type of loess as BD3231, varying color from 5YR to 7.5YR and the texture from very fine sand loam to heavy silt loam. It occurs in a 12 to 15" precipitation zone.

Soil Profile:

- Ap 0 2" Dark reddish-brown to reddish-brown (5YR 3.5/3.5 crushed and moist) loam with weak moderately platy, crushed to weak fine crumb structure; very friable mixture; slightly calcareous with thin patchy clay skins and clear smooth boundary.
- AB 3 9" Dark reddish-brown to dark reddish-gray (5 YR 3.5/3 moist) loam with weak medium angular blocky to subangular blocky; friable when moist; slightly calcareous; thin patchy clay skins; abrupt smooth boundary.
- B_{3ca} 9 -17" Brown to pale brown (10YR 5.5/3 crushed and moist) light ioam with weak medium angular blocky to subangular blocky; friable when moist; violently calcareous with visible lime in cracks and old root channels; thin patchy clay skins and clear smooth boundary.
- Cca 17-28" Brown (7.5YR 4.5/4 moist, crushed) light loam to very fine sandy loam; massive; hard when dry, friable when moist; moderately calcareous with no clay skins.

Range in Characteristics

This soil varies in color from 5YR to 7.5YR; in texture from very fine sand loam to silt loam. Soil development is very weak with very slight clay skin development in the subsoil and very faint visible lime accumulations in the lime zone. Included within this mapping unit are shallow loessial soils whose total solum is sometimes less than plow depth and consequently under cultivation, the visible lime layer material is turned over and appears on the surface.

Topography

Moderate to steeply sloping side slopes adjacent to drainage ways that traverse or dissect soil type BD 3231.

Drainage

Surface drainage is rapid due to steep slope; internal drainage is moderate.

Vegetation

In its native state, vegetation consists of sagebrush and native grasses adapted to about a 12 inch precipitation.

Use

Where irrigation water is available, this soil is used for the production of hay, pasture and small grains, and an occasional field of corn is grown on this type.

Distribution

This soil occurs wherever loessial soils are found on the upland mesas and slopes.

Location

950 feet S, 100 feet East in the northeast corner of the NW $\frac{1}{4}$ Sec. 3, T6S, R92W.

BE 3331-B or C This is a Brown zone soil developing in locally transported but unassorted alluvial-colluvial sediments weathered from

the shales and sandstones of Wasatch formation and miscellaneous materials of outwash and aeolian origin. The parent materials are medium textured, weakly to strongly calcareous, and occasionally contain significant amounts of sodium salt. The topsoils are non-chernozemic. This unit closely resembles Unit 30 Mam loam described in the Pitkin County legend, but has a faint in place of distinct lime zone described for Mam.

Soil Profile:

- Ap 0 2" Dark brown (7¹/₂YR 1/2 moist) lowm; slightly hard when dry, friable when moist; weak coarse platy structure that breaks into weak fine crumbly peds; weakly calcareous; lower boundary clear and smooth.
- ABp 2 -12" Dark brown (10YR 3/3 moist) loam; weak medium subangular blocky structure that breaks into weak fine subangular peds slightly hard when dry, friable when moist; thin patchy clay skins; weakly calcareous; lower boundary clear and smooth.
- B₂₁ 21-18" Dark brown to brown (10YR 4/2 moist) loam; weak moderate prismatic structure that breaks into weak medium angular to subangular peds; hard when dry, firm when moist; slightly calcareous; nearly continuous clay skins; lower boundary clear and smooth.
- B22 18-33" Brown (10YR 5/3 moist) loam; weak medium subangular blocky structure that crushes down to weak fine subangular blocky peds; thin patchy clay skins; gradual smooth lower boundary.
- Cca 33-47" Dark yellowish-brown (10YR 4/4 moist) loam; massive structure; slightly hard when dry, friable when moist; violently calcareous; faint veins of lime; gradual smooth lower boundary.
- C 47-60" Brown to yellowish-brown (10YR 5/3-4 moist) loam; massive; slightly hard when dry, friable when moist; violently calcareous; lime disseminated.

Range in Characteristics

The calcareous horizon ranges from weak to moderate veining. Subsoil development ranges from thin patchy to nearly continuous clay skins with a modal of thin patchy. Structural development ranges from weak medium angular to sub-angular blocky, being sufficient to be called a structural B horizon. Topsoil color ranges from $7\frac{1}{2}$ YR 3.5/2-3 to $7\frac{1}{2}$ YR 4/2-3. Topsoil thickness ranges from 2 to 5 inches. Subsoil may be as much as 2 feet thick. Faint indications of buried profiles occur from 1 to 3 feet.

Topography

Occupies gently sloping benches and fans midway between present river bottoms and mesa lands. Slope ranges from 1 to 6 percent.

BE 3331-B or C - Continued

Drainage

Surface runoff is moderate; internal drainage is moderate but may be slightly impeded on nearly level areas.

Vegetation

Native vegetation consists of big sagebrush and western wheatgrass, with an occasional greasewood and saltbush shrub.

Use

Wherever irrigation water is available, a large percentage of this unit is devoted to the production of alfalfa, small grain, sugar beets and corn for silage. None of this unit is dry farmed.

Description

This unit has been observed in Garfield and Rio Blanco Counties in Colorado.

Unit Established

Observed and mapped in WP-3 Silt Reclamation Project in 1958 and 1959.

Type Location

300 feet N and 500 feet W of the southeast corner of Sec. 3, T6S, R92W, Garfield County, Colorado.

Described by

J. L. Nielsen, November 1959.

EM 32C1 The BM 32C1 mapping unit consists of deep to medium deep, moderately developed loamy soil weathering in place on Mesa Verde silty shale. It occurs in a rainfall zone of approximately 12 to 15 inches at an elevation of about 5600 feet. Included within this mapping unit are the closely related taxonomic types BM 3231 and BM 32C2. The depth to shale and soft sandstone varies from 2 to 5 feet and may be entirely absent at the foot of the slope. Also associated with this mapping unit is the very shallow soil SM 33C3.

Soil Profile:

- Ap 0-3" Dark grayish-brown (10YR 4/2 moist, crushed) heavy loam; weak medium platy that breaks down into weak fine crumb; friable when moist; moderately calcareous; patchy clay skins; clear smooth boundary.
- B21 3 -11" Very dark grayish-brown (10YR 3/3 moist and crushed) light clay loam with moderately medium subangular blocky structure that breaks into moderate fine subangular blocky structure; firm when moist; moderately calcareous; nearly continuous clay skins; clear smooth boundary.
- B22 11-20" Gray brown (10YR 4.5/2 5/2 moist and crushed) loam with weak coarse angular blocky to subangular blocky structure that breaks into weak fine subangular blocky aggregates; friable when moist; violently calcareous; nearly continuous clay skins and clear smooth boundary.
- B_{3ca} 20-27" Gray brown (10YR 4.5/2 5/2 moist and crushed) light loam with fine weak subangular blocky structure; very friable when moist; slightly calcareous with 5 percent visible lime streaks of 10YR 5/2 (buried layer).
 - 37" + Shale (10YR 3.5/2 moist and crushed) clay loam texture.

Range in Characteristics

This soil herewith described is a taxonomic unit which is mapped under the symbol BM 32C1. Included in this mapping unit are: BM 3231, BM 32C2 and BM 32C1. Due to the wide range in topography on which this soil occurs, soil development varies from weak to moderately mature. On the tops of the ridges, the depth to shale is shallow; at the foot of the slope, the depth to shale is deep. All degrees of soil development occur between these two points. Color ranges from hue 10YR to hue 2.5YR, depending upon the amount of intermixed materials from sandstone and in some cases, loess. Ordinarily, this soil is not affected by seep, salt or alkali, except in the swales where surplus water due to over-irrigation may cause a seep and salt condition.

BM 32C1 - Continued

Topography

Topography consists of moderately sloping to steeply sloping ridges and rolling hills that run north and south with drainages in between.

Drainage

Internal drainage is generally moderate but may be slow where the shale layers impede water movement. Surface drainage is moderate to rapid due to slope.

Vegetation

In its native state, this was probably a grassland site, but due to vegetative deterioration, most of the native areas are covered with sagebrush, with some native grasses adapted to a 12 inch precipitation zone.

Use

Where water is available, this type is devoted to hay, pasture and grain production. Occasionally, the land is used for potatoes, corn and sugar beet production.

Distribution

This type is of very limited acreage occurring adjacent to the mountainous areas of Mesa Verde formation.

Location

660 feet N and 330 feet W, southeast corner, Sec. 26, T5S, R92N.
BM 32H2 This mapping unit covers slightly to moderately developed soils on reworked materials from the Mesa Verde formation. The parent material consists of a mixture of sandstone, shale alluvium and colluvium. There is a great deal of variation in this mapping unit. The amount of sandstone fragments intermixed with the profile varies from 1 to 2 percent in the upper part to as much as 30 to 40 percent in the substratum layers. Textures range from heavy sandy loams to light clay loams. Subsoil development is weak to moderate. The lime zone ranges from clearly discernible to almost undiscernible. This soil occurs in an approximate 12 inch precipitation zone.

Soil Profile:

- A₁₁ 0 2" Dark brown (7.5YR 3.5/2 moist and crushed) loam with weak coarse platy structure that breaks into weak fine crumb; soft when dry, friable when moist; slightly calcareous with abrupt smooth boundary.
- AB 2-6" Dark brown (7.5YR 3/2 moist and crushed) loam with weak coarse prismatic structure that breaks into weak medium angular blocky to subangular blocky aggregates; slightly hard when dry, moderately firm when moist; slightly calcareous; thin patchy clay skins; clear smooth boundary, very small sandstone fragments intermixed.
- B2 6 -15" Dark brown (7.5YR 3.5/3 moist and crushed) light clay loam; weak medium prismatic structure that breaks into weak medium angular blocky to subangular blocky peds; hard when dry, moderately firm when moist; very slightly calcareous; nearly continuous clay skins; clear smooth boundary, occasional small sandstone fragments intermixed.
- B_{3ca} 15-24" Dark brown to brown (10YR 4.5/3 moist and crushed) loam with weak medium angular blocky structure; hard when dry, firm when moist; violently calcareous with visible lime and patchy clay skins; clear smooth boundary.

C 30-40" Dark brown to brown (10YR 4/3 moist and crushed) sandy loam; massive; loose when dry, loose when moist; violently calcareous with pH of 8.5; lime on sandstone fragments; 30 to 40 percent sandstone fragments intermixed with soil.

Range in Characteristics

This soil is a taxonomic unit occurring in several closely related soils that are mapped under the general mapping unit BM 32H2. They are derived from a mixture of reworked Mesa Verde sandstone and shale and loessial material. Soil development ranges from very weak to moderately mature; thickness

BM 32H2 - Continued

and texture of all horizons vary considerably. Amount of intermixed sandstone varies widely, especially in the substratum layers. Ordinarily, this soil is not affected by salt or alkali. Other taxonomic units included with this soil are: BM 33H2, BM 3331, BM 3231 and BM 32H1.

Topography

Topography consists of gently sloping to moderately sloping upland fans and foot slopes. The areas are associated with a series of small drainage systems that come out of the adjacent mountains.

Drainage

Due to loam and gravelly loam substratum layers, internal drainage is good; surface drainage is moderate due to slope.

Vegetation

In its native state, this was probably a grassland site, but due to vegetative deterioration, most of the native areas are covered with sagebrush with some grass remnants.

Use

Where water is available, a high percentage of this type is devoted to hay and grain production. In years past, such crops as potatoes and sugar beets have been grown successfully. It will grow almost any crop that is adapted to this climatic zone.

Distribution

This soil occurs in the northern part of the Silt project area. Its extent in other parts of Western Colorado is not determined as yet.

Location

50 feet South, 100 feet West in NE corner of Sec. 36, T5S, R92W.

<u>BM 3231</u> Mapping unit covers slightly to moderately developed soils on reworked materials from the Mesa Verde formation. The parent material consists of a mixture of sandstone and shale, alluvium and colluvium. There is a great deal of variation in the soil. The amount of sandstone fragments intermixed within the profile varies from 1 or 2 percent to as much as 10 percent. Textures range from heavy sandy loams to light clay loams. Subsoil development is weak to moderate with considerable clay skin showing on the peds. The lime zone ranges from discernible to almost undiscernible. This soil occurs in an approximate 12 inch precipitation zone.

Soil Profile:

* AP₁ 0 $-1\frac{1}{2}^{n}$ Very dark grayish-brown to dark grayish-brown (moist 10YR 3.5/2) coarse platy, moderately friable loam; slightly calcareous.

- AP_z 1¹/₂-5¹/₂" Very dark grayish-brown to dark grayish-brown (moist 10YR 3.5/2); moderately firm; slightly calcareous loam that grades abruptly into the underlying subsoil layer; the weak prismatic structure breaks down into medium sub-angular blocky peds.
- B2 52-12" Dark brown to very dark brown (10YR 3.5/2.5 moist); clay loam with moderate medium sub-angular blocky structure; hard when dry, moderately firm when moist; clay skins are nearly continuous; slightly calcareous; calcareous condition probably due to polution from irrigation water.
- B_{31ca} 12-22" Dark grayish-brown (10YR 4.2 moist) loam with weak, coarse angular blocky structure that breaks into weak, fine angular blocky peds that are hard when dry and moderately friable when moist; strongly calcareous with thin patchy clay skins; lime is visible in old root channels and between peds.
- B₃₂ 22-36" Dark grayish brown (10YR 4.2 moist) loam with weak coarse angular blocky structure that is hard when dry, moderately friable when moist; violently calcareous; lime is well disseminated.
- C₁ 36-52" Brown (10YR 5/3 moist) massive loam; hard when dry, friable when moist; violently calcareous; gradual boundary.
- C₂ 52-60" Dark grayish-brown (10YR 4/2 moist) massive loam; hard when dry, moderately friable when moist; violently calcareous.

* Note: The color of this profile is an intergrade between the 10YR and 22Y hues. This is especially noticeable for the dry color.

Range in Characteristics

This soil is a taxonomic unit occurring in several closely related soils that are derived from mixtures for reworked Mesa Verde sandstones and shales and loessial materials. Soil development ranges from very weak to moderately mature brown zone types. Thickness and texture of all horizons vary considerably. Amount of intermixed sandstone fragments varies from 1 to about 10 percent. Mapping unit BM 32H2 is closely related to this soil but is influenced much more by loess. Ordinarily, this soil is not affected by salt or alkali.

Topography

Ranges from gently sloping to moderately sloping upland fans and foot slopes. The areas are associated with a series of small drainage systems that come out of the adjacent mountains.

Drainage

Due to the loam or clay loam texture, internal drainage is generally good. Surface drainage is adequate due to moderate slope.

Vegetation

In its native state, this was probably a grassland site, but due to vegetative deterioration, most of the native areas are covered with sage brush.

Use

Where water is available, a high percentage of this soil type is devoted to hay and grain production. In years past, such crops as potatoes and sugar beets have been grown successfully. It will grow any crop that is adapted to the climatic zone.

Distribution

This soil occurs in the northern part of the Silt Project area, its extent in other parts of Western Colorado is not determined as yet. BO3H Mapping Unit BO3H covers a wide group of shallow stony soils that are developing on outwash stony loam material that was deposited when the Colorado River system was several hundred feet higher than it is today. Most of the stones are rough sandstone fragments that range from 2 to 2h inches in diameter. Some shale and basalt fragments make up part of the mixture. The parent soil material ranges from sandy loam to heavy loam and is violently calcareous but not cemented. The unit occurs in a 12 inch precipitation zone on breaks, mesa edges and steep slopes adjacent to present stream courses.

Soil Profile:

- A₁ 0 hⁿ Brown to dark brown (10YR 4/3 moist) light loam; course platy structure that breaks into weak fine crumbs; firm when dry, moderately friable when moist; slightly calcareous. Clear boundary.
- C1 4 -21" Brown (10YR 5/3 moist) massive stony, heavy sandy loam; violently calcareous with at least 30% lime coated sandstone fragments.
- C₂ 21-60" Brown (10YR 5/3 moist) massive stony loam; violently calcareous with 50% lime coated sandstone and shale fragments varying in size from 2 to 24 inches.

Range in Characteristics

This mapping unit covers stony types that range from stony sandy loams to stony clay loams that are too stony for cultivation. Color varies from brown to light brown.

Topography

Topography consists of steep breaks, mesa edges and slopes adjacent to present stream courses.

Drainage

Internal drainage is rapid. Surface drainage is very rapid due to steep slope.

Use

Pasture land. Extra irrigation water will increase grass growth.

Vegetation

Native vegetation consists of pinon-juniper, sagebrush with a sparse stand of grass.

BO3H - Continued

Distribution

Widely distributed in Western Colorado.

Location

Pit silo on east side of road on Ellison Place north of Silt. 1400 feet South and 2000 feet West of northeast corner, Sec. 31, Township 55, Range 91W.

2D 3231 This mapping unit consists of brown zonal soils developing in loessial material that is partially derived from salty Wasatch shales that give rise to a black alkall condition. Two principal taxinomic units are mapped under this unit. One is a fairly well developed solonetz soil that has columnar structure with a weak A₂ horizon, and a slightly affected sodium soil that does not have columnar structure nor the A₂ horizon.

Soil Profile: (Solonetz type) This is the solonetz soil comprising approximately 20% of this mapping unit.

A1 0 - 4" Dark yellowish-brown (10YR 4/4 moist) that crushes to reddishbrown (5YR 4/4) very fine silty loam; moderate platy structure breaks into moderate fine crumb; slightly hard when dry, friable when moist; non calcareous with abrupt smooth boundary.

- B₂₁ 4 8ⁿ Dark reddish-brown to reddish-brown (5YR 3.5/4) heavy clay loam to clay medium columnar structure that breaks into moderate fine angular blocky aggregates; very hard when dry, firm when moist; non calcareous; thin continuous clay skins; clear smooth boundary. Included within and on top of this layer is a very thin showing of highly dispersed clay material that is too thin to show as A₂.
- B₂₂ 8 -12" Reddish-brown (5YR 4/4 moist-crushed) heavy clay loam; moderate medium columnar structure that breaks into medium fine angular blocky aggregates; very hard when dry, firm when moist; strongly calcareous; nearly continuous clay skins; clear smooth boundary.
- B_{3ca} 12-20^u Reddish-brown (7.5YR 4.5/4 moist) clay loam with moderate medium subangular blocky structure; very hard when dry, firm when moist; strongly calcareous; visible lime in cracks and voids; thin patchy clay skins; clear smooth boundary.
- C_{ca} 20-40" Dark brown to brown (10YR 4.5/3 moist) loam with weak medium subangular blocky structure; hard when dry, friable when moist; violently calcareous; visible lime in cracks and seams; gradual smooth boundary.

C

40-60" Dark brown to brown (7.5YR 4.5/4 moist and crushed) massive loam; hard when dry, friable when moist; strongly calcareous loess.

This is non-solonetz and comprises approximately 80% of the mapping unit.

A₁ 0-3" Dark brown to brown (7.5YR 4/4 crushes to 4.5/4) very fine sandy loam; medium platy structure that crushes into weak ZD 3231 - Cnntinued

very fine crumb; slightly hard when dry, loose when moist; non-calcareous; no clay skins; clear smooth boundary.

B21

3 - 6" Reddish-brown (5YR 4/h crushed and moist) silt loam; weak coarse platy structure that crushes into weak fine crumb; slightly hard when dry, firm when moist; slightly calcareous; clear smooth boundary.

- B22 6 -14" Reddish-brown (5YR 4.5/3 moist) clay loam with weak medium prismatic structure that breaks into weak medium angular blocky structure; very hard when dry, firm when moist; slightly calcareous; nearly continuous clay skins; clear smooth boundary.
- .B_{3ca} 14-20" Dark brown to brown (7.5YR 4.5/4 moist) clay loam with weak fine subangular blocky structure; very hard when dry, firm when moist; strongly calcareous with lime in seams and cracks; clear smooth boundary; lime zone.
 - C 20-40" Brown (10YR 4.5/3 that crushes into 5/3) loam; massive; hard when dry; violently calcareous; lime well disseminated.
 - C 40-60" Dark brown to brown (10YR 4.5/4 crushed and moist) loam; massive; hard when dry; strongly calcareous; parent loess.

Range in Characteristics

This mapping unit ZD 3231 is a soil complex in which the above two taxinomic units are so closely associated and in such fine detail that it is physically impossible to separate the types in any kind of a soil survey. Due to the material of the parent materials from which these soils are derived, many variations of sodium affected soil types occur. Solonetz development ranges from very weak to very strong. In places, the affects of sodium are non-discernible and a soil such as BD 3231 and BD 3331 may occur intermixed with the sodium characterized soils. Depth of top soil and thickness of subsoil varies from 3 or 4 inches to as much as 8 to 10 inches of subsoil. Usually, a very definite B_{3Ca} soil zone occurs somewhere between 10 and 20 inches with visible lime in cracks, seams and voids. The parent materials of these types consist of a mixture of loess that is fairly typical of the area except that it shows varying amounts of sodium affectation.

Topography

This mapping unit occurs on generally sloping to moderately steep topography on mesa areas that lie adjacent to actively eroding Wasatch bad lands.

Drainage

Surface drainage is moderate to rapid; internal drainage is moderate but may be very slow where solonetz subsoils predominate. Under irrigation, seep and alkali spots are common in this type.

Vegetation

In its native state, vegetation consists of greasewood and a sprinkling of the present native cover.

Use

Where irrigation water is available, this soil is used for the production of hay and grain. Yields range from poor to good, depending upon the amount of the surface that is affected by black alkali spots.

Distribution

This soil occurs in small bodies within the loessial group of soils and although the acreage is not large, the distribution is quite wide.

Location

General area - Sec. 33, T5S, R92W.

ZE 2221 Mapping unit occurs in a rainfall zone of approximately 12 inches where the summers are warm and winters are cold. Soil development is weak to moderate with ill-defined soil horizons. This soil is developing on reworked clay loam alluvium derived from sandstone and shale of the Wasatch formation. In its native state, it is covered with greasewood and the effects of sodium salts are visible on the surface as slick spots.

Soil Profile:

- A₁ 0 3ⁿ Brown to gray brown (10YR 4.5/2 5/3 moist- crushed) loam; weak coarse platy structure that breaks down into weak fine crumb; friable when moist; slightly calcareous with pH of 8.5; patchy clay skins; clear smooth boundary.
- AB 3 9" Dark brown to brown (10YR 4.5/2 4/3 crushed-moist) heavy clay loam with weak course angular blocky structure that breaks into weak fine angular blocky structure; firm when moist; moderately calcareous with pH of 8.6; nearly continuous clay skins; clear smooth boundary.
- B₂₂ 16-24" Gray brown (10YR 5/2 moist) clay loam; weak medium angular blocky structure that breaks into weak fine angular blocky to fine subangular blocky aggregates; firm when moist; strongly calcareous, pH of 8.8; thin patchy clay skins.
- B_{3ca} 24-31" Brown (10YR 5/2 moist-crushed) loam; weak fine angular blocky to subangular blocky peds; friable when moist; violently calcareous, pH of 9; lime is faintly visible in cracks and voids.
- C 31-48" Gray brown (10YR 5/2 moist-crushed) light clay loam; weak medium angular blocky structure; friable when moist; violently calcareous, pH 9.2; thin patchy clay skins; no lime.
 - 48-60" Dark grayish-brown (10YR 4/2 moist) heavy loan; massive; friable when moist; strongly calcareous, 9.1 pH with visible lime and gyp in cracks and voids.

Range in Characteristics

This mapping unit consists of two principle taxonomic units, ZE 2221 A_1W_1 and ZE 2221 W_1 . In the limited areas where this type has been observed, seep and salt affect the entire area to a limited extent. It is not known whether this is due to over irrigation or whether this is naturally part of the soil. Soil horizons are ill-defined and hard to recognize. Clay skin development is weak to moderate in the subsoil. The lime zone which occurs generally

ZE 2221 - Continued

between 2 and 3 feet is weak, with the lime faintly visible. The entire profile is calcareous, either naturally or from limy irrigation water. The surface layers have a pH that ranges from 8.5 to 8.7, with 8.7 to 9.2 in the subsoil. The parent materials vary from heavy clay loam to loam and may carry an occasional sandstone or shale fragment.

Topography

Gently sloping fan areas broken by drainage ways that originate in Wasatch formation bad lands.

Drainage

Internal drainage is slow to very slow due to heavy texture of materials and gentle slope; surface runoff is slow.

Vegetation

Native vegetation consists of greasewood with a sprinkling of sagebrush; alkali weeds are also common.

Use

Where irrigation water is available, a large portion of this type is used for the production of hay and small grain. Due to over irrigation, a portion of this type has been abandoned because of seep and alkali.

Distribution

This type occurs wherever soils derived from the heavy members of the Wasatch formation occur. The total acreage is small but distribution is wide.

Location

2000 feet north, 300 feet east southeast corner Sec. 35, 75S, R92W.

<u>ZE 3331</u> The ZE 3331 mapping unit covers slightly developed soils on reworked alluvial materials of the Wasatch formation. It consists of a mixture of sandstone and shale alluvium that has a noticeable amount of sodium salts. It is developing in a rainfall zone of approximately 12 inches. Soil development is weak to very weak. Summers are warm and winters are cold.

Soil Profile:

- $A_{11} = 0 3^n$ Dark grayish brown to brown (10YR $\frac{1}{22}$ moist) weak coarse platy, moderately loose loam; abrupt boundary.
- AB 3-12" Dark grayish brown (10YR 4/2¹/₂ moist) loam, weak coarse subangular blocky structure; slightly hard when dry, moderately friable when moist; slightly calcareous; thin patchy clay skins.
- C1 12-16" Dark grayish-brown to gray-brown (10YR 12 moist) loam; massive; friable; slightly calcareous; gradual boundary.
- C_{ca} 16-36" Dark brown to brown (10YR 4/3 moist) light loam; very weak fine subangular blocky structure; moderately friable when moist; violently calcareous, with some visible lime in voids and old root channels.
- C₂ 36-60" Brown to dark brown very fine sandy loam to loam; massive; violently calcareous; lime well disseminated.

Range in Characteristics

This soil is a taxonomic unit occurring as one of several closely associated soils mapped under the heading of ZE 3331. It is generally affected by both salt and alkali. The native vegetation is greasewood with a sprinkling of sagebrush. Slick spots are common but gradually disappear after 30 to 40 years of good farming practices. Textures vary from heavy sandy loams to light clay loams. Subsoil development is very slight and is absent in some locations. The A horizon is always thin and grades imperceptibly into the subsoil or substratum materials. Mapping unit ZE 2221 is the clay loam equivalent of this type and the two soils often grade into each other.

Topography

Gently sloping, small to large alluvial fans at the foot of Wasatch breaks and badlands.

Drainage

Due to the gently sloping topography and over-irrigation, almost all of this mapping unit is affected by seep. Surface drainage is generally slow due to gently sloping topography.

Vegetati on

In its native state, this type is always covered by a mixture of greasewood and sagebrush. The quantity of greasewood varies with the amount of active sodium in the soil. Alkali weeds are also part of the native vegetation and occupy the slick spots in the cultivated fields.

Use

Where water is available, a high percentage of this type is used for production of all crops adapted to the climate of this area. Where the alkall and salt conditions have become worse due to over-irrigation, abandonment is common. Areas that have been drained are now being cultivated again with success. Over a period of years with good farming practices, the slick spots gradually disappear and the land becomes productive.

Distribution

In the Silt project, most of this area occurs north of Antlers and vicinity.

Location

Two locations of this type are 1/4 mile of the SW corner, Sec. 1, T6S, R93W and 200 feet West in the NE corner, Sec. 1, T6S, R93W.

ZE 3331 A3W3 This is a Brown zone soil developing in partially assorted

alluvial sediments weathered from shale and sandstone of Wasatch formation. Parent materials are medium textured; weakly to strongly calcareous and occasionally contain significant amounts of sodium salt. It occurs on gently sloping benches and fans midway between present river bottom and mesa land. Slope ranges from 1 to 6 percent. The unit is imperfectly drained with weak gleyed condition occurring somewhere between 20 and 30 inches. Due to poor drainage, salt accumulations are evident on the surface during the summer season when the soil dries out. This unit may be a phase of ZE 3331. Both soils are without significant B horizon development.

Soil Profile:

- Ap 0-6" Gray brown to dark grayish-brown loan (10YR 4/2 5/2 crushed moist); weak fine crumb structure; slightly hard when dry, friable when moist; strongly calcareous; clear gradual boundary.
- A₁ 6 -12" Gray brown to very grayish-brown (10YR 4/2 4.5/2 crushed moist) loam; weak fine crumb structure; hard when dry, friable when moist; strongly calcareous; clear gradual boundary.
- BC 12-22" Olive brown (2YR 4.5/2 5/2 crushed and moist) loam; very weak moderate subangular blocky structure that crushes down to very weak fine subangular blocky peds; hard when dry, friable when moist; weakly calcareous; faint thin patchy clay skins; clear gradual boundary.
- Cg 22-31" Gray brown to dark grayish-brown (10YR 4.5/2 to 5/2 crushed and moist) loam; very weak medium subangular blocky that crushes to very weak fine subangular blocky; hard when dry, friable when moist; weakly calcareous; weakly gleyed with gray and rust mottlings; clear gradual lower boundary.
- Cg 36-50" Grayish-brown (2.5Y 5/2 crushed and moist) loam; massive structure; hard when dry, friable when moist; violently calcareous; weakly gleyed.

Range in Characteristics:

This soil is a taxonomic unit occurring as one of several closely associated soils mapped under heading of ZE 3331. It is generally affected by both salt and alkali. The native vegetation is greasewood with a sprinkling of sagebrush. Slick spots are common but gradually disappear after 30 to 40 years of good farming practices. Textures vary from heavy sandy loams to light clay loams. Stratification of parent materials is quite common.

ZE 3331 A3W3 - Continued

varying as much as sandy loam to light clay loam in the same profile. Subsoil development is very slight or absent. The A horizon is always thin and grades imperceptibly into the subsoil or substratum materials; faintly discernable buried profiles may occur in the C horizon. Mapping Unit ZE 2221 is the clay loam equivalent of this type and the two soils often grade gradually into each other.

Topography:

Gently sloping benches and fans occurring at the foot of Wasatch formation, breaks and bad lands.

Drainage:

Due to the gently sloping topography, almost all of this unit is affected by seep, especially where it occurs below other irrigated land. Surface drainage is generally slow; permeability is moderate; internal drainage is usually impeded by topographic position. Since almost 100% of this soil unit is irrigated, it is affected by poor drainage of varying degrees.

Vegetation:

In its native state, this unit is covered by a mixture of greasewood and sagebrush. Quantity of greasewood varies with the amount of active sodium in the soil. Alkali weeds are also part of the native vegetation.

Use

Where water is available, a high percentage of this type is used for production of all crops adapted to the climate of this area. Where the alkali and salt conditions have become considerable due to over-irrigation, abandonment is common. Areas that have been drained are now being cultivated again with success. Over a period of years with good farming practices, the alkali and saline areas gradually disappear and the land becomes productive.

Distribution

In the Silt project most of this area occurs north and west of Antlers and vicinity. It also occurs in similar areas in other parts of Garfield and Rio Blanco Counties where soils derived from Wasatch shales and sandstones occur in a 10" to 15" precipitation zone.

Location

800 feet E, 300 feet N, SW corner of Sec. 34, T5S, R92W.

Described by:

J. L. Nielsen, December 3, 1959.

ENGINEERING SECTION

Month	: :	Daylight Hours 1/ Percent	RI	Ma fle W/B <u>2</u> /1	ean Temperature : Harvey & :Davie Mesas <u>3</u> /	s : Dry Elk : Valley <u>3</u> /	:	Effective Pr Rifle W/B 山	ecit /: : I	bitation on Harvey & Davie Mesas	Pro	ject Areas Dry Elk Valley <u>6</u> /
March April Mah June July August September October November		8.33 8.94 10.00 10.06 10.20 9.53 8.38 7.76 6.74		38.5 48.9 57.2 64.5 71.4 69.3 60.8 50.0 36.2	37.5 47.9 56.2 63.5 70.4 68.3 59.8 49.0 35.2	35.9 46.3 54.6 61.9 68.8 66.7 58.2 47.4 33.6		0.75 0.97 0.63 0.31 1.18 0.81 1.35 0.75 0.62		0.75 0.97 0.63 0.31 1.18 0.81 1.35 0.75 0.62		0.91 1.08 0.82 0.57 1.24 0.96 1.38 0.91 0.81
April-Sep	otei	nber <u>Es</u>	tima	ted Average	e Irrigation Se	ason	·	5.15	500 (T)	5.15	5 275 I	6.05
Pre frost Frost-fre Post fros Frost-fre Total day	eltes	ree period period free perio lays	l ođ	May : May : Oct.	1 - May 12 13 - Sept. 30 1 - Oct. 22 141 175	May 1 May 23 Sept.	- 1 28 12	May 22 Sept. 27 - Oct. 18 28 71				
1/ Latit 2/ USWB 3/ Based 4/ USWB 5/ Effec 6/ 85% o and C	ude Bul Bul tiv f a	a 39035' M Lletin W, n adiabati Lletin W, ve (assume average of Lbran W.B.	Supp c lay Supp d 859 ten (ap)	lement 11- pse rate ad lement 11- % of average driest com proximate a	5, 1931-52 ijustments, 3°/2 5; average of to ge) precipitation secutive years same elevation a	1000 ft. en driest com on estimated , based on co as Dry Elk Va	sec san	cutive years ne as average alated relati ay average).	(193 for onsh	1-1940). Rifle. ip between	RIfi	e W.B.

Engineering Table 1. - Climatological data, Silt project

Month	t	p	f	r
*34*804804748047474704822474842747484	Garl anda Egila Qua i I.	Harvey and	Davie Mesas	
March April May June July August September October	37.5 47.9 56.2 63.5 70.4 68.3 59.8 49.0	8.33 8.94 10.00 10:06 10.20 9.53 8.38 7.76	3.12 4.28 5.62 6.39 7.18 6.51 5.01 3.80	.75 .97 .63 .31 1.18 .81 1.35 .75
	1755 Man Dia 605	Dry Ell	k Valley	a am esa cos cos esa
March April May June July August September October	35.9 46.3 54.6 61.9 68.8 66.7 58.2 47.4	8.33 8.94 10.00 10.06 10.20 9.53 8.38 7.76	2.99 4.14 5.46 6.23 7.02 6.36 4.88 3.68	.91 1.08 .82 .57 1.24 96 1.38 .91

Engineering Table 2. - Consumptive use factors, Silt project

Engineering Table 3. - Consumptive use coefficients used, Silt project

	Frost-free period	Pre and post frost-free period
Alfalfa	. 85	.70
Clovers and rotation pasture	.80	. 65
Grass pasture and hay	.75	.60
Corn	.75	00 (Q) (Q)
Small grain	.75	Table crite Claim
Sugar beets	.70	60 gg cz.
Potatoes	.70	6%) Co-Aps

Depth of water appli-	i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i		Peal	k monthly	consumpt	ive use r	ate, inch	25		
cation required	: 3.0	4.0	4.5	5.0	5.5	6.0	6.5	7.0	7.5	8.0
(inches)		ander fan de sjoerte en Buitserten	Pea	k daily d	esign rat	e use, in	ches per	day	ans pice Minacadelicity). Consetty is reque	non the second second second second
1.0	0.16	0,22	0.25	0.27	0.30	0.33	0.35	0.38	0.41	0.44
1.5	0.15	0.20	0.23	0.25	0.28	0.30	0.33	0.35	0.38	0.40
2.0	0.14	0.18	0.21	0.23	0.26	0.28	0.30	0.32	0.35	0.37
2.5	0.13	0.17	0.20	0.22	0.24	0.26	0,28	0.31	0.33	0.35
3.0	0.12	0.17	0.19	0.21	0.23	0.25	0.27	0.29	0.31	0.33
3.5	0.12	0.16	0.18	0.20	0.22	0.24	0.26	0.28	0.30	0.32
4.0	0.11	0.16	0.18	0.19	0.21	0.23	0.25	0.27	0.29	0.31
4.5	0.11	0.15	0.17	0.19	0.21	0.23	0.25	0.27	0.28	0.30
5.0	0.11	0.15	0.17	0.18	0.20	0,22	0.24	0.26	0.28	0.29
5.5	0.10	0.14	0.16	0.18	0.20	0.22	0.23	0.25	0.27	0.29
6.0	0.10	0.14	0.16	0.17	0.19	0.21	0.23	0.25	0.27	0.28
. 7.0	0.10	0.13	0.15	0.17	0.18	0.19	0.22	0.24	0.26	0.27
8.0	0.10	0.13	0.15	0.16	0.18	0.19	0.21	0.23	0.25	0.26

Engineering Table 4. - Peak daily consumptive use rates, inches per day

Soil Groups :	Farm 2/ conveyance losses	: Field : application : efficiency	: Farm 3/ : irrigation : efficiency
enin conzononum estango anar ugru moncos seguntamena e com a hamada. Bo	vila coly into any ous con	Percent	wa 200 c.u 500 cas 400 cm cm notesconentificationenericati enericationenericationenericationenericationenericationenericationenericationenericationenericationenericationenericationenericationenericationenericationenericationericationenericationenericationenericat
IIc,e,s; IIes,1,2; IIe1s1; IIIs,1,2,3; IVs	30	65	57
IIIes2, IVs2,4,5	25	55	53
IIIes1,3; IVs1,3	10	50	55
IIIe, IIIes	25	60	54
IVe2	10	45	52
IVe,1,4	20	50	49
Weighted Averages 4/			
Evaluation Area A B C D E F G H Project			55 49 56 49 55 50 55 51 53
1/ By dominant soils 2/ Includes estimated 10 3/ Includes estimated re 1/ Rounded	osses in farm e-use of tail	supply laterals water	and an angle of the stand of th

Engineering Table 5. - Generalized irrigation efficiency criteria, Silt project, Colorado $\frac{1}{2}$

GENERALIZED IRRIGATION CRITERIA For SILT PROJECT REAPPRAISAL REPORT

	SOIL	s		:		CROPS			IRRIGATION SPECIFICATIONS					
L.C.U.	: : : Typ: : pro: :descr: : : : : : :	ical file iption	Typical available moisture holding capacity by foot increments of depth	: : : Locally : adapted : crops : :	: Root : zone : depth	Average water replacement each irrigation <u>2/</u>	: Peak period consumptive use rate :	Irrigation frequency during period of maximum consumptive use	Usual irrigation methods	Estimated : typical : average : intake rate: Furrow or corrugation g.p.m./100;	Maximum : stream size : Furrows or : corrugations: g.p.m. : ;	Typical furrow or corrugation spacing inches	: Approximate maximum length of run :	: :Estimated : time :required : :
	:		in./ft.	:	: feet:	Net inches	in./day	: Max. days	<u> </u>				feet	: hours
1	:	2 :	3	: 4	: 5 :	: 6	: 7	: 8	: 9 :	10 :	11 :	12	: 13	: 14
IIc,s IIes,1,2 IIe IV S4	Slop 3231 32H1	e Group 3331	2. percent 1.6 2.4 2.4 1.5 1.5	t (0-3) Alfalfa Rotation pasture Small grain Corn Sugar beets	6 3 3 4 4	5.0 3.5 4.0 4.0	.19 .19 .18 .18 .17	26 18 19 22 23	Corrugation Corrugation Corrugation Furrow Furrow	0.5 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6	12 12 12 10 10	22 22 34 22	500 1400 1400 1420 1420	24 12 12 24 16
IIIs,1,2,3 IVs	2221 2121	2231												
IIIe IIIes	Slope 3331 3231	s Group	1.6 2.5 2.5 1.6 1.6	t (3–6) Alfalfa Rotation pasture Small grain Corn Sugar beets	63344	5.0 3.0 3.0 3.7 4.0	.19 .20 .18 .18 .17	26 15 17 21 23	Corrugation Corrugation Corrugation Furrow Furrow	0.5 0.6 0.5 0.5	5 4 4 4	22 22 34 22	350 250 250 270 270	24 12 12 27 18
IIIesl,3 IVs3 IVs1	2221		2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3	Alfalfa Rotation pasture Small grain Corn Sugar beets	53344	4.0 4.0 3.1 2.8 3.3	.19 .18 .17 .20 .18	21 22 18 14 18	Corrugation Corrugation Corrugation Furrow Furrow	0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2	3 3 3 3 3	22 22 22 34 20	330 330 280 270 300	48 48 36 48 36
IIIes2 IVs2 IVs4,5 VIIs,s1	3331		1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5	Alfalfa Rotation pasture Small grain Corn Beets	\$ 3344	4.8 2.8 3.8 3.8	.19 .20 .18 .18 .17	25 14 15 21 22	Corrugation Corrugation Corrugation Furrow Furrow	0.4 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4	14 14 14	18 20 20 34 22	300 240 240 270 270	23 12 12 34 22
IVe,el VIsl	Slope 3231 3H	e Group 3331	8. percent 1.6 1.6 1.6	t (6-12) Alfalfa Rotation pasture Small grain	6 3 3	4.0 2.8 2.8	.19 .20 .18	21 14 15	Corrugation Corrugation Corrugation	0.37 0.56 0.56	2 2 2	20 22 22	260 200 200	24 12 12
IVe2	2221	2231	2.3 2.3 2.3	Alfalfa Rotation pasture Small grain	6 3 3	4.0 4.0 4.0	.17 .18 .16	23 22 25	Corrugation Corrugation Corrugation	0.17 0.17 0.17	2 2 2	10 10 10	250 250 250	24 24 24
[Ve4	3343 3331	32H3 3231	1.5 1.5 1.5	Alfalfa Rotation pasture Small grain	6 3 3	4.5 2.7 2.7	.20 .20 .18	22 13 15	Corrugation Corrugation Corrugation	0.4 0.56 0.56	2 2 2	20 24 24	180 140 140	24 12 12
VIS	1121 33C3	22E2 21H2	2.0 1.8 1.6	Grass pasture Small grain	3 3	2.8 2.8	.19 .17	15 16	Corrugation Corrugation	0.5 0.5	2 2	20 20	200 200	12 12
VIIs1,2	3 3 H3	ЗH	1.5 1.5	Grass pasture	3	2.6	.20	13	Corrugation	0.56	-	22	140	12
VIe VIIs,1,3	Slope 3331	e Group	14 percent 1.6 1.6 1.5	t (12-25) Grass pasture Small grain Grass pasture	3 3 1	2.8 2.8 1.0	.20 .18 .25	14 15 4	Contour ditch Contour ditch Contour ditch		Ξ	Ξ	100 100 100	8 8 4

1/ Grouped by characteristics of dominent acreage 2/ Normal replacement based on 60% extraction; salt content limiting in some soil units; replacement arbitrarily limited by time requirements or local conditions in some cases.

M - 2389 Engineering Table 7. - Consumptive use requirements, Silt project

No. of a	⁸ De la c		3	Alfalf:	1 f	Rotati	on pa	sture		Corn		: Sa	ali gra	lin	Approximation of the second seco	bugar be	ets
FIONCE	1, Date	5 . I	: k	t u	8 2° 8	k	: U	: r	k	: 11	t T 1	k	1 U 1	r	k	; 11 ;	T
		e \$	an m to	em- 040 850	- Dav	le and	1 Harv	ey Mesa	is • E	valuat	on Are	as A,	B.C.	ind D	dan cata Cr	තය දුණා ජාට, ළ	සා ශා කා
May	1-12 13-31	1.93	.70 .85	1.35	.21	.65	1.25	.21 .42	. 75	2.77	.42	at the second	2.77	.42	.70	2.58	. 42
June July		6.39 7.18	. 85 . 85	5.43 6.10	.31 1.18	.80 .80	5.11 5.74	.31	.75	4.79 5.38	· 31 1.18	.75 .75	4.79 5.38	.31 1.18	.70	4.47 5.03	.31
Aug.	1=15 1=30	3.35	. 85	5.53	. 81	. 80	5.21	. 81	. 75	4.88	.81	.75	2.51	. 111 modes	.70	4.56	с 81
Sep.	1-15 1-30	2.70	. 85	4.26	1.35	. 80	4.01	1.35	.75	2.02	e 67	600 100 000	200 CC 200	සම ශිම කාංකා සම කමා කාං	.70	3.51	1.35
Oct.	1-22	2.94	.70	2.06	.56	.65	1.91	.56	෯෩ය	anatikette	100480-005	094940	cat (States	time data disc	60 (69) (79)	decision.	(page an
	Totals			27.87	4.84		26.18	4.84		19.84	3.39		15.45	2.32		20.15	4.07
Consu rec	mptive puiremen	use at (U	-R) ins	23.03			21.34			16.45			13.13			16.08	
		100 (DA	යත දන දන	40) AND 400		Dry E	lk Va	11ey -	Evalu	ation A	Ireas E	, F,	G and H	1 60% CTO C	20 FTA 6779	ctio cio cito cito	රෝ සේ ස
May June July Aug. Sep.	1-22 23-31 1-25 1-31 1-20	4.00 1.46 6.23 7.02 5.27 6.36 3.40	.70 .85 .85 .85	2.80 1.24 5.30 5.97 5.41	.61 .21 .57 1.24 .96	.65 .80 .80 .80	2.60 1.17 L.98 5.62 5.09	.61 .21 .57 1.24	7575	1.10 4.67 5.27 4.77 2.55	.21 .57 1.24 .96	675 675 675 675 675	1.10 4.67 3.95	.21 .57 1.24 .72	.70 .70 .70	1.02 4.36 4.91 mmes 4.45	
Ont	1-27	4.45	.85	3.78	1.24	.80	3.56	1.24	දෙන පෙර ගුන ප්රාන පෙර ගුන	සං ම දුව දේ කොටුය පත වන වැඩැලස	জান কে জি জান কে জি	र्वसः श्वकः वाक्त ब्रह्म क्षत्र क्षत्र	ant (1) ap	අත ලාං යාන ධාං වැන මෙම	.70	3.12	1.24
UCT.	T-19	2.33	.70	1.03	.54	°05	1.51	•54	සෝ සිති සහ	අයි අත අය	640 5 <u>85</u> 650	කාන යන්න අතන	ක්ෂි ලික ස්ව	020 MM (22)	600 A38-Day	628 475 194	000.000-050 0
	Totals			26.43	5.51		24.81	5.51		18.36	3.91		14.99	2.74		17.86	4.22
Consu req	mptive 。(U-R)	use ins.	e Na Kasaron di Sular nya salah	20.92		978 49797 34 10 49705 (journal)	19.30			14.45	ALL FOR DO AL STRUCTURE		12.25			13.64	

Engineering Table 8. - Water supply requirement estimates, Silt project

Crop use	consumptive requirement Inche s	Net : crop : acres :	Seasonal onsumptive use requirement Acre-feet	Net crop acres	Seasonal consumptive us requirement Acre-feet	Net crop acres	Seasonal onsumptive us requirement Acre-feet	: Net : e: crop :c :acres: :	Seasonal onsumptive requirement Acre-feet
		- Evalu	ation Area A	- Evalu	ation Area B	- Evalua	tion Area C -	- Evalu	ation Area D
Alfalfa Pasture Corn Small grain Beets	23.03 21.34 16.45 13.13 16.08	1253 633 270 492 375	2404.7 1125.7 370.1 538.3 502.5	658 326 390	1262.8 579.7 426.7	148 241 77 77 75	284.0 428.6 105.6 84.3 100.5	60 85 58	115.1 151.2 63.5
Total			4941.3		2269.2	·	1003.0		329.8
Weighted ave irrigation Total farm of requirement	erage farm n efficiency lelivery nt, acre-feet		55% 8984.2		49% 4631.0		56% 1791.1		49% 673.1
Irr. acres p Farm headgat acre-feet/	per evaluation te delivery re /irrigable act	n area equt. re	3218 2.79		1462 3.17		657 2.73		215 3.13
		- Evalua	ation Area E -	- Evalu	ation Area F	Evalu	ation Area G	Eval	uation Area I
Alfalfa Pasture Corn Small grain Beets	20.92 19.30 14.45 12.25 13.64	107 15 24 24	186.5 24.1 28.9 24.5	108 12 47	188.3 19.3 48.0	123 72 19 57 50	214.4 115.8 22.9 58.2 56.8	88 144 93	153.4 231.6 94.9
Total			264.0		255.6		468.1		479.9
Weighted ave irrigation Total farm d	erage farm efficiency lelivery		55%	1	50%		55%		51%
requiremen Irr. acres r Farm headcat	nt, acre-feet per evaluation delivery re	area	480.0 181		511.2 177		851.1 341		941.0 346
acre-feet/	'irrigable acr	8	2.65		2.89		2.50		2.72

.

Engineering Table 9. - Project water supply requirement summary

The state of the s			C Bartinking According to Market and	
	Harvey Mesa	Davie Mesa	Dry Elk Valley	Project Total
Evaluation areas	A & B	C & D	E,F,G&H	
Irrigable acreage	4680.	872.	1045.	6597。
Gross irrigation water requirement at farm headgate, acre-feet	13615.	2464.	2783.	18862.
Acre-feet/irrigable acre	2.91	2.83	2.66	2.86
Proposed average project water supply at farm headgate, acre feet/ irrigable acre	2.74	2.71	2.74	2.74
Percent of estimated requirements met by proposed project water supply	94.1	95.8	100.	95.7

Engineering Table 10. - Development cost estimates, Silt project, Colorado

		Cost Per Irrigable Acre						
a so so so su	: Clearing	: Leveling :	Farm Irrig. System	n : Drainage	: Total			
	9% 55 98 6% 40 0u du	7 CD 54% 607 57% 629 629 67%	a o Dollars a a		ca ea co ea co ev			
Evaluation Area A	1.20	36.24	15.43	12.16	65.03			
Evaluation Area B	0.90	15.05	8.59	1.53	26.07			
Evaluation Area C	-	31.70	34.83	-	66.53			
Evaluation Area D	-	23.44	28,93	-	52.37			
Evaluation Area E	-	24.86	14.18	-	39.04			
Evaluation Area F	-	18.15	8.75	274	26.90			
Evaluation Area G	2.63	39.82	27.32	Ché	69.77			
Evaluation Area H	4.56	18.00	.15.36		37.92			

 ECONOMIC SECTION

Economic table 1 - Projected farm operating costs, Silt project, Colorado

Item	Unit	Price
ŧŗĸĸĸŧġŎĸĊĸĸĊŦġĊţĸĸĸĊŎŧĊĬŎĊĊĊĬŎĸĊĊĊĸĸġĸĸġĸĸĸġĸĸŧġĊĬŎĿĊĸĊĸŎŎ ſ ŎĿĸĸĸġĊĬŎĿĬĿŎĸŎĊŎġŎġŎŎŎŎĿŎŎĸŎġŎ	an a	Dollars
Crops		
Alfalfa seed (10# per acre)	Pound	.40
Pasture seed (19# per acre)	Pound	.luo
Corn seed (17# per scre)	Pound	.17
Sugar beets (6# per acre)	Pound	.55
Custom and contract hire:		
Farm labor	Man hour	1.00
Cutting hav	Acre	1.00
Raking hav	Acre	1.00
Baling hav	Ton	5.00
Baling straw	Ton	7.50
Channing Corp	Acre	16.00
Hauling corn silage	Hour	3.00
Combining grain	Acre	5.50
Thiming beets	Acre	17.50
First hoeing	Acre	8.00
Second boeing	Acre	5.00
Pulling topping, loading by machine	Per ton	1.50
Hauling to dump	Per ton	1.00
Baling twing	Too	.60
Baling wire	Ton	.90
Plastic silace cover	Per ton of silane	50
Commercial fortilizer:	tor our or straße	
Dhorobata (available)	Pound	10
Mitzaraz (available)	Pound	15
Nicrogen (available)	PORTRY	-12
Spraying: 1/	80.00	50
Alialia (insects per cutting)	Acres	,50
Com (weeds)	ACTE	- 50
Grain (weeds)	ACTE	- 50
Livestock		
Veterinary and supplies (beef)	Сом	2.00
Veterinary and supplies (feeders)	Head	1.50
Veterinary and supplies (dairy)	Cow	8.50
Veterinary and supplies (sheep)	Ewe	.50
Artificial insemination Cov	or heifer over 1 year	7.00

1/ Includes cost of materials only.

Economic table 1, continued

Item	Unit	Price
livestock continued	₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩	Dollars
Livestoca, continued		
Bull depreciation (beef)	10% of inv	entory value
Buck depreciation	10% of inv	entory value
Shearing (30¢ shearing + sack, twi	ne. etc.	and and a second s
20¢)	Per head	.50
Salt	AU	.50
Death loss breeding herd (dairy)	3% of number or 3% of inven	tory value
Death loss breeding herd (beef)	3% of number or 3% of inven	tory value
Death loss feeder steers	2% of number or 2% of sales	value
Death loss farm sheep eves 7.	5% of number or 4.5% of inv 4.5% of woo	entory value a
Range permits (beef): National for	est, 32 months \$1.75; BLM,	1 month 15#;
private range, ½ month \$1.50	Cow and calf	3.40
Herder (beef): Five months, \$250 p	23	
month (500 cows)	Cow and calf	2.50
DHIA (.925¢ per cow month first 12	cows plus 30¢ per cow mont	h over 12 cous
Concentrates	Ton	60.00
General		
Electricity (farm share):		
All farm types except dairy	Year	30.00
Dairy farms	Per cow	5.00
Telephone (farm share)	Year	20,00
Truck license and insurance	Year	45.00
Fire insurance (per \$1,000 of buil	ding	
inventory)	Year	5.00
Blacksaith	Year	40.00
Farm organization fees(all except)	lairy/ear	25.00
Auto (farm share)	Year	150.00
Truck (mileage 3,000 per year) fue	1, 011 & greese per mile	.029
Tractor Fue	1, 011 & grease per nour	.41
Miscellaneous expenses (2% of crop	, livestock and general eq	enses)
Taxes	Anna	ad valuation
Livestock:		
Dairy cows	\$50.00	per head
Deace antit	36.00	non hand

Dairy cows Range cows Calves Long yearlings Stock sheep Range bulls Bucks \$50.00 per head 36.00 per head 22.50 per head 36.00 per head 4.50 per head 90.00 per head 15.00 per head Economic table 1, continued

Taxes, continued	Assessed valuation
Machinery and equipment:	One-half of inventory
Truck:	License and insurance
Buildings, other improvements	Twenty-seven percent of inventory value
Land: Evaluation areas A, B (without and all greas with Evaluation ereas E & F (without) Irrigated permanent pasture Rangeland	h) \$67.00 40.00 13.00 per acre 2.50 per acre
Mill levy 1957 includes 1/2 mill for Silt Water ConseSchool Dist. C-148.05School Dist. C-248.32School Dist. 1044.16School Dist. 1339.16Simple average44.92Use 44 mills witho	rvancy District ut, 45 with
Projected inventory values	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Values per acre
Land and present water supply:	\$200.00
Eveluation area A	\$200.00
Evaluation area B	115 00
Evaluation area E	115.00
Evaluation area r	100.00
Range, laproved	25.00
Range, unimproved	15.00
Permanent pasture (evaluation areas A & B)	75.00
Permanent pasture (evaluation areas E & F)	50.00
Livestock:	Value per head
Dairy cow	\$250.00
Dairy heifer (over 1 year)	150.00
Dairy heifer (under 1 year)	75.00
Beef cow	175.00
Beef replacement heifer	75.00
Feeder steer	90.00
Feeder helfer	75.00
Rance bull	250.00
Eve (mature)	15.00
Eve (vound)	12.00
Buck	30.00
Building and improvements	60% of new cost
Machinery	60% of new cost

Based on price projections by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, September 1957.

: New :Annual :Service :cost 1/:repairs 2/:life 3/ Description Item : Dollars Percent Years 2,450 3.0 Truck 1 ton, dump hoist 10 35-40 horsepower 2,450 14¢/hr. use Tractor 10 2X14" bottom, 2-way 480 4.0 16 Plow 300 3.0 15 Disk Tandem 3-section, spike Harrow 196 1.0 15 Land leveler 4/ 196 2.0 20 Eversman 314 16 Grain drill 4/ 108 2.0 Corn planter 4/ 2-row 113 2.0 16 Beet drill 4/ 237 2.0 4-row 16 Combination cultivatorh/Corn & beet, 5-row 250 2.0 10 Corn cultivator 4/ 182 2.0 5-row 10 20 -10 Corrugator shovels 195 5.0 Tractor-mount 10 Sprayer Ditcher 4/ Blade, 71 108 2.0 20 71 5.0 323 10 Mower Side delivery, 8 **L60** 5.0 15 Rake PTO, large 2,360 3.0 Baler 12 Rubber tired, hay 230 3.0 20 Wagon Trailer Lowboy 196 2.0 20 Portable, w/motor 20 200 5.0 Elevator 15 Manure spreader 4/ 75 bu. 274 2.0 15 Manure loader 4/ 279 3.0 Electric Fence control 50 5.0 11 3-unit, circular washing 2,140 Pipeline milker 3.0 30 1,017 Stalls & fedders 6/ Automatic feeders 2.0 30 2,500 Bulk, 300 gal. Milk tank 2.0 30 Bulk, 400 gal. 2,895 Milk tank 2.0 30 40 gal, electric 80 3.0 10 Water heater Sink 2-compartment 75 3.0 10 5 Small tools

Economic table 2 .- Estimated new cost, repairs and service life of farm equipment, Silt project, Colorado

1/ Inventory value 60 percent of new cost.

 $\overline{2}$ / Percentage of new cost.

 $\frac{3}{4}$ Based on a straight-line depreciation and a salvage value of 10 percent. $\frac{1}{4}$ One-half ownership.

5/ Five percent of new cost of all equipment except tractor, truck, baler, and dairy equipment.

Based upon price projections by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, September 1957.

Item	: Description	: : Capacity	: : New cost 1/	: Annual : repairs 2/	: Annual : depreciation 3/
ੑੑੑਗ਼੶੶੶੶੶੶ੑਗ਼ੑਖ਼ੑਖ਼ੑੑੑੑ੶ੑਫ਼ਗ਼ਫ਼ਗ਼ਖ਼ਖ਼ਖ਼ਖ਼ਖ਼ਖ਼ਖ਼ਖ਼ਖ਼ਖ਼ਖ਼ਖ਼ਖ਼ਖ਼			Dollars	Percent	Percent
Milking parlor	Herringbone, double 3 26' X 96'	50 cows 45 cows or 500	4,700	3.0	6.0
		ewes	2,676	2.0	6.0
open shed	26* X 72*	35 cows or 375	0 125	2.0	6.0
men shed	261 X 181	ewes 25 cows or 250	2,135	2.0	0.0
Shorr Buod	LO 1 40	ewes	1.653	2.0	6.0
Calf shed	15° X 30°	11 calves	804	2.0	6.0
Calf shed	15° X 24°	9 calves	686	2.0	6.0
lalf shed	15° X 16°	6 calves	523	2.0	6.0
Lambing shed	See appropriate open shed				
Machine shed	26' X 36', open	Shown on all far	us 1,332	2.0	6.0
Pence silo	24 × 80	200 tons	217	5.0	15.0
Fence silo	24 × 64	150 tons	168	5.0	15.0
ence silo	24° X 40°	100 tons	113	5.0	15.0
Corral fences (dairy)	12" pipe, 2 pipes high	175 sq. ft./cow	2.00/1in. ft.		6.0
orral fences (feeders)	Slab-board, 6º high	100 sq. ft./head	1.00/lin. ft.	2.0	6.0
Corral fences (sheep)	Slab-board, h' high	30 sq. ft./ewe	.75/lin.fft.	2.0	6.0
Corral & chutes (beef)	200'X100', pole fence, brand	iing			
	chute, adjustable loading	chute 100-200 cows	1,300	2.0	6.0
arm fences(dairy, beef,					
feeders)	4-strand barb	5 rds/acre	1.80/rod	2.0	6.0
arm fences (cash crop)	4-strand barb	3/rds/acre	1.80/rod	2.0	6.0
arm fences (sheep)	1-strand barb & net	5 rds/acre	2.75/rod	2.0	6.0
langers (dairy)	12" pipe & concrete	30"/head of stock	k h.85/lin. ft.		6.0
langers (feeders)	Lumber & concrete	24"/head	3.95/lin. ft.	2.0	6.0
eeder panels (sheep)	Lumber	18"/head	1.00/lin. ft.	2.0	6.0
Concrete corral (dairy)	u" slab, reinforced	50 sq.ft./head	.25/sq. ft.		6.0
omestic water supply	Dairy	1.4	500	2.0	6.0
omestic water supply	Livestock		375	2.0	6.0
omestic water supply	Cash crop		250	2.0	6.0

1/ Inventory value 60 percent of new cost. 2/ Percent of inventory values.

Based on price projections by the U. S. Department of Agriculture, September 1957.

	Vind	: Production	: Annual : basis	: For	age er Mo	requi	ure	Resi	due	: Concentrates
e miner verbinde in Ohrende	Ama	r fullaction	, AO	AU a	110.	· AU a	rio.	S AU	110 ,	sconcentrates
Dairy Cow Heif Heif	er (over 1 yr.) er (under 1 yr.)	325# b.f.; calf crop 95%; 2/ 8 tons manure from cow and replacement; (cull cow wt. 1,200#)	1.41 .74 .37	1.27 .74 .29	766	1.27 .74 .29	555	.74 .29	- 1 1	1000# grain 400# grain, 25# b.f.
Cow He if	er (replacement)	Calf crop 82%; 2/ Calf weight, steers 410#, heifers 375#; 2 tons manure (cull cow wt. 1000#)	.96 .55	.70	6 6	1.32	55	:70 .68	1 1	
Feeder: Heif Stee	er (yearling) r (yearling)	Purchase wt. 375#, sale wt. 750#) 2 ton manure Purchase wt. 410#, sale wt. 800#) 2 ton manure	.55	.42	6	.68 .73	45	.68 .73	1 1	
Sheep Ewe		Lamb crop 120%; wool 10#; 3/ 1amb wt. 90#; .4 tons manure (cull ewe wt. 135#)	.216	.18	6	- 24	5	.18	1	74# barley
Dairy I Beef ho Ewe lan	neifers required eifers required : abs required for	for herd replacement 25 percent of cow inventory. for herd replacement 20 percent of cow inventory. herd replacement 20 percent of mature ewe inventory.								

Economic table 4 .- Projected livestock production rates and feed requirements, 1/ Silt project, Colorado

IDN DEL AUM AUM.

2/ At time of sale. For dairy calves, dal old; beef calves, 6-7 months; lambs 5-6 months. 3/ Average weight per head sheared.

Economic	table 5	 Labor requirem	ents,	man-hours	per	unit	of	livestock	and
		miscellaneous	items	, Silt pr	oject	, Col	ora	do	

: Unit	: Hours
Per cow	65.0
Per cow	70.0
Per cow	80.0
1/ Per cow	10.0
Per head	4.0
Per ewe	3.0
Per ton	-4
4/ Per acre	.5
	Percent
Inventory value	0.5
Crop & livestock labor	5.0
	Per cow Per cow Per cow Per cow Per cow Per head Per ewe Per ton U/ Per acre Inventory value Crop & livestock labor

Economic table 6 .- Labor, tractor, and truck requirements, per acre of different crops by evaluation areas, Silt project, Colorado

	: W	ithout	project	, 1				
	:	develo	pment		: Wit	h proje	ect deve	lopment
	5	: Man :	1	1 1	1	: Man :		:
Crop	:Yield	:labor:	Tractor	Truck	Yield	:labor:	Tractor	:Truck
		Hours	Hours	Hours		Hours	Hours	Hours
Evaluation area A								
Alfalfa	3.0	11.60	5.10	2.1	4.0	14.7	6.2	2.7
Barley	60.0	8.75	5.85	.7	70.0	9.75	5.85	8
Corn silage	11.5	15.95	9.75	2.0	15.0	17.3	10.0	2.1
Sugar beets	13.5	40.55	8.55	4.8	16.0	41.85	8.65	5.0
Rotation pasture	6.0	3.1	1.0	10. cb cb cr as	8.0	5.1	1.8	
Evaluation area B								
Alfalfa	2.8	12.75	5.8	1.95	3.5	15.85	7.05	2.4
Barley	55.0	9.35	6.0	.65	60.0	10.4	6.0	.6
Rotation pasture	5.6	3.75	1.05	-	7.0	6.2	1.9	****
Evaluation area C								
Alfalfa	10 CT 10 CT 10		-	-	4.0	14.7	6.2	2.7
Barley	@			-	70.0	9.75	5.85	.8
Corn silage	age and some cap		-	-	15.0	17.3	10.0	2.1
Sugar beets	#6421431428488	mp say are cloudly.	-	Name of Coloradory on Coloradory	16.0	41.85	8.65	5.0
Rotation pasture	are official and all			-	8.0	5.1	1.8	-
Evaluation area D								5
Alfalfa	-		distant distant		3.5	15.85	7.05	2.4
Barley	45 (ben 49 %)			0	60.0	10.4	6.0	.6
Rotation pasture				*****	7.0	6.2	1.9	-
Evaluation area E								
Alfalfa	1.7	6.45	2.55	1.10	3.7	14.3	6.1	2.55
Barley	50.0	8.10	5.75	.6	70.0	9.75	5.85	.8
Corn silage					15.0	17.3	10.0	2.1
Sugar beets	-	-	dimension .	-	16.0	41.85	8.65	5.0
Rotation pasture	3.4	2.1	-9		7.4	5.1	1.8	-
Evaluation area ?								
Alfalfa	1.5	7.0	2.80	1.00	3.2	15.35	6.85	2.25
Berley	45.0	8.6	5.9	.55	60.0	10.4	6.0	.6
Rotation pasture	3.0	2.45	.95	-	6.4	6.2	1.9	-
Evaluation area G			e.					
Alfalfa	****				3.7	14.3	6.1	2.55
Barley		de atras estus		****	70.0	9.75	5.85	.8
Sugar beets			-	-	16.0	41.85	8.65	5.0
Rotation pasture					7.4	5.1	1.8	-

Economic table 6, continued

(a) The manufacture contains the control of characteristic of the destination of the d			the spectrum dearth				and the spectrum with a se		
	3	W	i thout devel	project		: Wit	h proj	ect deve	lopment
		-	: Man	-	:	:	: Man	2	:
Crop	:	Yield	labor	Tractor	Truck	Yield	:labor	Tractor	Truck
<u>, 19,21107-19,2449 0349,4919 146,19428 (16,411,5749,10,697), 1999 1499 1499 1499 1499 1499 1499 149</u>			Hours	Hours	Hours	2 1 1	Hours	Hours	Hours
Evaluation area H									
Alfalfa			AN AN AN AN AN AN	- do earlie ch		3.2	15.35	6.85	2.25
Barley		ana (2014) ang ang ang	********			60.0	10.4	6.0	.6
Corn silage		The state of the state of the	69 CD 60 PD (D)			15.0	17.3	10.0	2.1
Rotation pasture		കരുന്നുയ	46 65 65 63 46	ets nor correct 4%	ute etgi cay age ensi	6.4	6.2	1.9	All Threads Co
Permanent pasture									
Evaluation areas	A&B	3.0	2.3	.55		3.0	2.3	.55	-
Evaluation areas	E&F	2.0	1.45	.45	-	2.0	1.45	.45	-

4

choose table 7 .- Method of arriving at annual value of rotation pasture per AUM based on alfalfa hay value, when fed to livestock on farms, evaluation area A, with project development, Silt project, Colorado

	1	Alfal.	fa (4.0 tor	ns)		:	Past	When YOOU AU	M)	and another surveying
	:Man-hours	\$	Production	costs		:Man-hours	1:	Production	COSTS	
Item and description	per acre	:Materials	Tractor 1/	:Labor 2/	: Total	per acre	S FILS T	:Tractor 1/	Labor 1/	: Total
n na series de la constant de la forma de la constant de la constant de la constant de la constant de la const La constant de la constant de la forma de la constant de la constant de la constant de la constant de la constant La constant de la const	Hours	Dollars	Dollars	Dollars	Dollars	E'LLIE'S	Dollars	<u>Dollars</u>	Dollars	Dollars
lowing, seedbed preparatio	an.									
and planting (misc. crop)				Sudr	ged to si	mall grain	s			40 10 11 12
eed		. 80			.800		1.52			1.52
ertilizing 3/	.1	3.00	.055	.111	3.166	. 6	9.60	.330	.666	10.596
praying .	.1:	:. 50	.22	alilit	2.164					0.5.5
preading droppings						•5		.475	•555	.830
enovering	.3		.165	.333	.498					
Lipping pacture						1.0		•55	1.11	1.66
owing	1.5		.825	1.665	2.490					
aking	1.5		.825	1.665	2.490				,	
aling	. 2.2	2.40	1.22	2.442	6.062					
auling & stacking	2-4			5.994	5.994					
itching	.3		.165	.333	.498	.3		.165	.333	.498
rrigating	3.1			3.441	3.441	3.3			3.663	3.663
mentory 4/		1.03			1.030					
verhead 57	.74		.174	.821	- 995	.29		.066	.322	.388
iscellaneous 6/	1.41	.175	.073		.248		.222	.028		.250
Total	15.54	8.905	3.722	17.249	29,876	5.99	11.342	1.414	6.649	19.405
xpense difference										10.47
alue of alfalfa @\$20.60										02.40
ess 5% shrinkage									\$	4.12
ross value of alfalfa										10.20
ess difference in expenses										10.41
ross value of pasture										07.01
alue per AUM										0.40
	and statements of the sufficient of the	The second s	and the second					an lanan asl difting in this is the factor of the		
1/ Tractor cost 55¢ per h	our.				4/ One	-fourth of	alfalfa p	roduction,	\$20.60 p	er ton
2/ Man labor cost \$1.11 p	er hour.			a	5 percent	t				

3/ Assumes phosphate applied at time of seeding and

trogen applied annually.

5/ Five percent of tractor and man labor cost.

6/ Two percent of material costs.